LESSO Hx%3

CHINA LESSO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEHEEEERERA A
Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
REERETMRINERAF

Stock Code BR#H3% : 2128

— ANNUAL REPORT FE3R

N 2020

)
A\
\\\gz




CORPORATE PROFILE
TEBHN

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange: 2128) is a leading large-scale industrial group that
manufactures building materials and interior decoration products in
mainland China. China Lesso is one of the constituent stocks of the
Hang Seng Composite MidCap Index and is a stock eligible for trading
through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s Stock Connect. In addition,
China Lesso was officially made a constituent stock of MSCI China
index in November 2019. After more than 30 years of rapid
development, the Group has evolved into a leader in the industry of
building materials and interior decoration products. It provides high-
quality products and services such as plastic piping, building materials
and interior decoration, environmental protection, and operates a
supply chain service platform.

Currently, the Group has established over 30 advanced production
bases in 18 provinces of China and in foreign countries. The Group has
established a nationwide sales network and has also developed long-
term strategic partnerships with 2,397 independent and exclusive first-
tier distributors that enable timely and efficient supply of
comprehensive, quality products and professional services to
customers. As an integrated manufacturer of a comprehensive range of
building materials and interior decoration products, China Lesso
provides over 10,000 types of quality products, which are widely
applied to such fields as interior decoration, civil architecture,
municipal water supply, drainage, electric power transmission,
telecommunication, gas supply, fire services, environmental protection,
agriculture and marine aquaculture.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 75 4 22

Change
2020 2019 25
For the year ended 31 December BE12A3MALEE
(RMB’000) (AR%T )
Revenue WA 28,073,065 26,344,523 6.6%
Gross profit E7 8,383,979 7,537,119 11.2%
Finance costs N 435,892 577,194 (24.5)%
EBITDA BR ST AT 2 6,195,368 5,555,866 11.5%
Profit before tax BRA A A 4,753,560 3,981,921 19.4%
Profit for the year FRREM 3,757,389 3,028,335 24.1%
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AN &1#H A FE(5 G T 3,750,829 3,024,701 24.0%
At 31 December (RMB'000) M12A31B(AR%T )
Total assets BEMR 46,527,562 40,784,797 14.1%
Cash and bank deposits e RBITER 7,447,436 7,604,221 2.1%
Total debts® Lz 16,236,163 13,537,099 19.9%
Net debt® ErEEY 8,788,727 5,932,878 48.1%
Total equity L eyt 20,354,122 17,094,396 19.1%
Share information (RMB) BRAER(ARE)
Earnings per share® FREFN
- Basic o 7\ 1.22 0.98 24.5%
- Diluted —#58 1.22 0.98 24.5%
Dividend per share (HK cents) SRR BI)
— Interim dividend —FHHRE 12 12 -
— Proposed final dividend — R KRB E 38 28 35.7%
- Total dividend — 18RS 50 40 25.0%
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &4 7)1 A ALz
per share 6.40 5.34 19.9%
Financial ratios Bt =
Gearing Ratio (%) BEBER%) 44.4 44.2
Net debt to equity® (%) (B FEE AR L K (%) 43.2 347
Interest cover® (times) FEBFIL = (1) 14.21 9.63
Note: PRS-
(a) Represented borrowings, lease liabilities and debt component of convertible loans. (a) BlEW - HEABERARRERERDH -
(b) Represented total debts less cash and bank deposits. (b) EEBEERIES RRITER

() Details of the calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share of the (o) AR GRERNRBERA 2T EFARGEVBRE
Company are set out in note 11 to consolidated financial statements. MiEETT ©

(d) Represented equity attributable to owners of the Company divided by the number  (d) EADNRMA AELRER AR RER RS BEITROE

of issued Shares at the end of the reporting period. g -
(e) Represented net debt divided by total equity. (e) FE1ETS FRERR ARE 2R 4278 -
G} Represented EBITDA divided by finance costs. G} BB EBITEA BTG UARERKAK o
2 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
h B2

For the year ended 31 December
BE12A3MBHLEFE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB‘000
RESULTS : ARSTR ARBTT AR®ETT ARETRE ARETT
REVENUE WA 28,073,065 26,344,523 23,733,517 20,360,000 17,221,052
GROSS PROFIT ER 8,383,979 7,537,119 6,228,449 5316783 4,581,778
EXPENSES* Bz # (3,851,675) (3,459,637)  (3,033,265)  (2,700,377)  (2,188,759)
FINANCE COSTS BE R A (435,892) (577,194 (415,403) (229,309) (107,061)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AT SRR 4,753,560 3,981,921 3,235,539 2,954,586 2,424,792
Income tax expense FiS B2 (996,171) (953,586) (789,315) (688,779) (511,088)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 3,757,389 3,028,335 2,446,224 2,265,807 1,913,704
Profit attributable to: AT FE(E R A -
Owners of the Company NATHEAA 3,750,829 3,024,701 2,491,774 2,293,055 1,922,027
Non-controlling interests JEF A 2 6,560 3,634 (45,550) (27,248) (8,323)

3,757,389 3,028,335 2,446,224 2,265,807 1,913,704

At 31 December

M12H31H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FINANCIAL POSITION B AR R ARETRT ARETRT ARETT AREFTT ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREEE 26,858,971 23,053,463 19,752,950 15,825,153 12,136,602
Current assets REVEE 19,668,591 17,731,334 14,883,327 12,148,472 10,058,684
Total assets BELRTE 46,527,562 40,784,797 34,636,277 27,973,625 22,195,286
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities IEREEE 10,115,058 3,163,655 6,458,341 6,116,343 935,722
Current liabilities TEIAE 16,058,382 20,526,746 13,105,071 8,073,791 9,721,892
Total liabilities NGk 26,173,440 23,690,401 19,563,412 14,190,134 10,657,614
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ REBEEFE
(LIABILITIES) (BE) 3,610,209  (2,795,412) 1,778,256 4,074,681 336,792
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners RARMERA
of the Company fEfL R 19,841,127 16,576,245 14,803,329 13,489,915 11,231,509
Non-controlling interests FEEHI R 512,995 518,151 269,536 293,576 306,163
Total equity Rexksasa 20,354,122 17,094,396 15,072,865 13,783,491 11,537,672
# Represented the sum of selling and distribution expenses, administrative expenses # EHEE LD MY TSI A MBI ST A4 o

and other expenses.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERHMEE

The year 2020 was marked by extraordinary circumstances for the
world. The outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia (“COVID-19")
at the beginning of the year severely damaged the global economy
and affected society profoundly. However, China recorded a V-shaped
economic recovery in the second quarter and became the only major
economy in the world to have achieved growth despite the difficulties
and challenges. Furthermore, the country steadfastly upheld the
principle that “houses are for living in, not for speculation” in its policy
on the domestic property market even though the pandemic had
dampened the economy. The state continued its “City-specific Policy”
on the regulation of the property market with precision as it aimed to
stabilise the market. Since the second half of the year, the authorities
have continuously stepped up their regulation on the financing of the
real estate sector. As a result, in the case of many cities with unstable
prices for properties and lands, the local authorities have successively
stepped up a series of regulatory policies in an effort to restore the
property market to normal. Meanwhile, the central government also
tried to restore the national economy to normal quickly in the
aftermath of the pandemic outbreak. It has introduced a series of
economic stimulus policies, including those supporting the
development of the “New Infrastructure, New Urbanisation Initiatives
and Major Projects”, which not only stimulate consumption and
improve people’s livelihood, but also form a part of the ongoing
economic restructuring that can add impetus to the momentum of
economic growth. The Chinese government was forging ahead with
major projects such as those on new infrastructure, new urbanisation,
transportation and hydraulic engineering with aim of unlocking the
huge potential of the domestic demand that can boost economic
growth in the long term. All these policies can contribute to continuous
and steady growth in the pipeline industry and also favour the
development of the industries of building materials and interior
decoration products as they can generate stable demand.

As a leading large-scale industrial conglomerate that manufactures
building materials and interior decoration products in mainland China,
China Lesso capitalises on the Chinese government’s favorable policies
and the strong demand of the domestic market by fully developing all
lines of its business. It had successfully entered the field of applications
in agriculture in 2020. The Group also succeeded in overcoming the
difficulties caused by the pandemic outbreak and global economic
downturn as it made considerable progress in sales, market expansion
and in terms of other key performance indicators during the year by
leveraging its leading market position, excellent brand image,
economies of scale, and high-quality products and professional
services. The Group's revenue grew by 6.6% to RMB28,073 million in
2020 from RMB26,345 million in 2019. Gross profit rose by 11.2% to

4 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

RMB8,384 million and profit attributable to owners of the Company
increased by 24.0% to RMB3,751 million. To express gratitude to the
Shareholders for their support and to share with them the fruits of the
Group's endeavours, the Board proposed payment of a final dividend
of HK38 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year, plastic piping systems remained the mainstay business
and the major source of income of the Group. Despite the impact of
the pandemic and the suspension of production in early 2020, the
Group had made an all-out effort to resume business and production
since March. As a result, its production capacity quickly returned to the
pre-pandemic level and further improved in the following months. The
Group continued to carry out technological innovation and actively
developed new products and technologies to meet demand. During
the year, it successfully began to mass-produce fiberglass reinforced
thermoplastic pipes, which is expected to inject fresh momentum into
future sales growth. In addition, the Group was driving the sales growth
of its business by extending the scope of the application of its plastic
pipes and pipe fittings, to expand its market and grow its market
shares. During the reporting period, the Group actively expanded its
business that served the agricultural sectors. It launched a variety of
products that could be applied to various types of farming and deep-
water aquaculture, thus widening the scope of its business and
enriching its source of income. The Group is constantly looking for
prospective business partners and will try to give full play to the
synergies between itself and the business partners through multi-
channel cooperation. This will enable the Group’s own businesses to
develop consistently and steadily.

In terms of production and business operation, the Group actively
raised the levels of automated production and smart manufacturing
and upgraded both the technology and equipment for production; it
also implemented effective procurement strategies, seeking to keep
the rising costs of raw materials and production in check so as to
maximise the Group's economies of scale. In order to satisfy the huge
demand in China and Southeast Asian markets, the Group will scale up
its production step by step.

THRBEE

112% 2 ANRHEB8384EIL » RARIEA AEIL G
RSB AN 24.0% = ANREE37511BIT » BRIEFER
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

THRBREE

The COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020 almost brought economic
activities to a standstill in China, thus dealing a heavy blow to the
country’'s economy and real estate sector alike. During the reporting
period, the central government adhered to the principle that “houses
are for living in, not for speculation” in its policy on the property sector
and forged ahead with new urbanisation and the restructuring of rural
villages. As the pandemic gradually abated in the second quarter, the
economy recovered gradually. This allowed the central and provincial
governments to regulate the real estate sector with flexibility, which
contributed to a rebound in property sales. According to the National
Bureau of Statistics of China in 2020, sales of commodity properties
increased by 8.7% to more than RMB17 trillion, which was a milestone,
and rose by 2.6% in terms of gross floor area sold in the country in
2020, against a decline of 0.1% in 2019. These developments will foster
the development of the industries of building materials and interior
decoration products. The Group will strive to optimise its sales
channels and product mix, further enhance its competitiveness, and
satisfy customers’ demand for high-quality building materials and
interior decoration products. Benefiting from the state policy of
expediting national development with “New Infrastructure, New
Urbanisation Initiatives and Major Projects”, the Group remains
confident about the future development of its businesses of building
materials and interior decoration products, and expects to achieve
synergies between these businesses and its other businesses in the
long term. This will lead to steady growth in the Group’s overall
business.

In recent years, the Chinese government has pursued a series of
environmental policies to foster the development of the environmental
protection industry. To capitalise on this trend, the Group further
developed its environmental protection business and increased
investment in technological innovation during the year to enhance its
research and development capability. Through the creation of a value
chain that covers both upstream and downstream businesses of the
industry of the pipe and fittings products, the Group has endeavored
to attain synergies between its environmental protection business and
plastic piping system business in the long term. The Group seeks to
establish itself as a provider of one-stop environmental services in
China, creating a green lifestyle for residents and fulfilling its corporate
social responsibility.

6 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

As to its supply chain service platform, the Group aims to establish a
multinational platform for Chinese manufacturers of building materials,
interior decoration products and consumer goods so as to help them
display, distribute and retail their goods, mainly in the Southeast Asian
market. At present, this business is still at an early stage of
development. The Group will seize opportunities for development by
building up the distribution network of its supply chain service platform
in Southeast Asia as it aims to make the business a new growth driver
in the long term.

All citizens and enterprises have worried about the havoc caused by
COVID-19 in China. As a corporate citizen, the Group felt duty-bound
to help fight the pandemic. Therefore, it aided hospitals across the
country in the fight against the disease by promptly allocating and
providing relevant resources and various types of pipe products in
large batches required for the construction of emergency hospitals. In
addition, the Group provided necessary construction materials for the
existing hospitals which were being renovated or expanded. The
Group gave full support to the people all over the country in their fight
against the disease.

In 2021, although the pandemic has not yet been fully brought under
control in the world and the global economy still faces severe
challenges, the market generally expects the world’'s economy to
rebound from the trough in 2020 and gradually improve because of the
introduction of effective vaccines and the successful implementation of
vaccination programmes. The prospect has boosted the global
market’s confidence. In fact, China’s economy has recovered from the
impact of the pandemic and resumed its uptrend. The outlook for
China’s economy in 2021 is far more optimistic than that for other
economies. The momentum of China’s economic growth is expected
to continue. The Group will actively grasp the opportunities arising
from the government policies that favor the development of the
industries. We will expand our businesses of plastic piping systems,
building materials and interior decoration products and environmental
protection, and strive for synergies among the various business
segments. These efforts can lead to sustainable growth in revenue.
Looking ahead, the Group will continue to raise the levels of
automated production and smart manufacturing and actively build up
its production bases so that its production capacity can be increased to
match its business expansion. The Group will also continue to increase
investment in innovation, research and development, expand the
scope of the application of its pipe systems and improve product
quality with the aim of consolidating its leading position in the market.

THRBEE

AEENHERERBFEES  THRTERE
EMREEREERREYERTYS  RTEMK
REERNOERTE  SHBRR@EMS -
BAT - HEERE T XD RERERIE -
RE - AEEHERICEZRREE £ P
REREDMHEEERSE T & XKD HBE B
IMEHEERE T EEBRAAEBRERRN
H—RRH -

HEMARBEDEAE—EA  F—KEEN
Lo EREEAR  BMBEEETRE  HEX
E2ESwBERURER  BSHEERTES
BAMEEBERTARMNEZNEZERA
B AEENAREE—FRERBEEPHER
REMFERDE  2HAXBESMWARNERE -

RE20215F  2HRRBEHEARTERE  BRERLK
EAERERR B BEmSEREHRERRER
R EEEMR - RREEA LR 2020 FHESR
[3E - WEFHE  RIREERTISED - FEL
BAKED A RBRZIERNESL ERE - B
2021 FRISERAEMEHERBEE  BENBE T
SRE - AEBERKRASLEMNFTERRNOBEX
RIS RNBERME  MREBEERR - 2
MERELRRREEES  ZBBEREEHRR
B0 15 (B R - BB R A Y AT A IR & o R2K
AEBBORAREGEESEN  BEREEBDL
KRBl WEBRhREEEMGE  WAELE
A FEBRE - AR AEBESHEMAY
BIFT AT OIRA - BAEBRRNERARE LT
rReEmEE  UEEHSREMA -

Annual Report 2020 425 Vi

| —



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

THRBREE

The year 2021 is characterised by a lot of uncertainties and changes.
The Group will have to rise to even bigger challenges of achieving
growth in business. We will give full play to the advantages of our
strong brand and extensive distributor network and proactively
diversify our product lines so as to enhance our competitive strength.
On the one hand, the Group will actively extend the scope of the
application of its plastic pipes and pipe fittings and explore new
market opportunities such as those in the agricultural sectors in order
to expand its source of revenue and attain synergies between its
various businesses in the long term. On the other hand, the Group will
strive to develop the supply chain service platform business, open up
new sources of revenue growth, and actively explore new overseas
markets, laying a solid foundation for growth in revenue and profit. The
Group has confidence in the prospect of its business and expects it to
perform steadily in the future.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude
to our shareholders, management, all the staff members, business
partners and customers for their support. The Group will continue to
fulfil its mission to “improve the quality of urban life” by providing the
market with high-quality, innovative building materials and interior
decoration products. Furthermore, the Group will actively grasp the
opportunities arising from the state policies and infrastructure
construction to achieve rapid development and better business
performance and create greater value for our customers, employees,
shareholders and society at large. China Lesso is determined to scale
new heights in the future!

Wong Luen Hei
Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei, aged 58, is the founder of the Group, the chairman
of the Company and was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 5 November 2009. He is also a director of various
companies within the Group. He is primarily responsible for the
Group’s overall strategic planning and business management. Mr.
Wong has approximately 24 years of experience in plastic pipe
operations and management. He served as the chairman in Shunde
Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to April 1999 and was awarded
"Outstanding Private Entrepreneur of Shunde” by Shunde People’s
Government of Foshan in 2003. Mr. Wong has been a permanent
honorary president of Foshan Shunde Longjiang General Chamber of
Commerce since 2018. Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping
and the brother-in-law of Mr. Zuo Manlun. Mr. Wong is the founder of
a trust which holds the entire issued share capital of Xi Xi Development
and New Fortune, the controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Zuo Manlun, aged 48, is the chief executive of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various
companies within the Group. He is primarily responsible for the
management of the daily business operations of the Group. Mr. Zuo
has approximately 21 years of experience in the plastic pipe industry.
Mr. Zuo joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various
positions in operation management since joining the Group. Mr. Zuo is
currently a non-executive director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings
Limited (stock code: 98), which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Zuo
won several awards including “Outstanding Worker of the Plastic
Industry in the PRC" by China Plastics Processing Industry Association
in 2009 and was awarded as “Senior Plastic Product Engineer
(Technical Entrepreneur)” by the Guangdong Human Resources and
Social Security Department in 2019. Mr. Zuo is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Wong Luen Hei and the younger brother of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping.

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, aged 54, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. She is also a director/supervisor of various companies within the
Group. She is primarily responsible for procurement control and
logistics management of the Group. Ms. Zuo has approximately 24
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Ms. Zuo served as a
director of Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996. In 1999,
upon establishing the Group together with Mr. Wong Luen Hei, she
held various positions in procurement. Ms. Zuo is the spouse of Mr.
Wong Luen Hei and the elder sister of Mr. Zuo Manlun.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELEREEAERERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lai Zhigiang, aged 54, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies within the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the production and technical management of
the Group. Mr. Lai has approximately 24 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry and served as a workshop manager of Shunde
Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to November 1999. Mr. Lai
joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various positions in
production management since joining the Group.

Mr. Kong Zhaocong, aged 55, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various
companies within the Group. Mr. Kong is primarily responsible for the
China’s sales of the Group and has approximately 27 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Kong joined the Group in
December 1999 and has held various positions in production
management and sales since joining the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Kong served as a factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian
Plastic Materials Factory from March 1993 to January 1999 and served
as a manager in the production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial
from January 1999 to November 1999.

Mr. Chen Guonan, aged 53, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies within the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the management and production of certain
companies in the Group. Mr. Chen has approximately 31 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Chen joined the Group in
December 1999 and has held various positions in production
management and engineering since joining the Group. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Chen was a manufacturing engineer in the technology
department at Guangdong Province Zhaoging Gaojiang Plastic
Products Co., Limited from July 1989 to July 1993. From July 1993 to
September 1999, he was a deputy factory manager at Foshan City
Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory. Mr. Chen served as a manager in
the production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from
September 1999 to November 1999. Mr. Chen has been a deputy
secretary general of Plastic Pipe Special Committee of China Plastics
Processing Industry Association since 2005. Mr. Chen obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in polymer chemical from South China University of
Technology in July 1989.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Lin Shaoquan, aged 45, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies within the Group. Dr.
Lin is primarily responsible for the research and development and
overseas sales of the Group. Dr. Lin has approximately 18 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Dr. Lin joined the Group in July
2002 and has held various positions in research and development and
overseas sales since joining the Group. Dr. Lin is currently an executive
director of WIIK Public Company Limited (stock code: WIIK), which is
listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Over the years, Dr. Lin has
won various awards including “National May First Labour Medal” by
All-China Federation of Trade Unions in 2006. Dr. Lin received a
doctorate degree in polymer chemical and physics from Sun Yat-sen
University in June 2002.

Mr. Huang Guirong, aged 45, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various
companies within the Group. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible for the
overall management of the factories and production facilities of the
Group and has approximately 24 years of experience in the plastic pipe
industry. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 1999 and has held
various positions in production management since joining the Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang served as a deputy factory
manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory from 1996
until 1999 and served as a deputy manager of the plastic production
department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from June 1999 to November
1999. Mr. Huang completed a programme of marketing from Hubei
University of Technology from September 2001 to July 2005.

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, aged 49, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 2 April 2010. He is also a director/general manager/
supervisor of various companies within the Group. Mr. Luo has
approximately 28 years of experience in accounting and worked at
Shunde City Accounting Firm from July 1993 to March 1996,
Guangdong Dezheng Accounting Firm with Limited Liability from April
1996 to December 2001 and Guangdong Gongcheng Accounting Firm
from January 2002 to December 2007. Mr. Luo worked for Foshan City
Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co., Limited as a certified public
accountant from January 2008 to April 2016. Mr. Luo is currently an
executive director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (stock code:
98), which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Luo is a member of The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Luo obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in economics from Guangdong University of
Business Studies in June 1993.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELEREEAERERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lin Dewei, aged 60, has been re-designated as an executive
director of the Company on 11 July 2018. Mr. Lin was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010. He is also
a director/supervisor of various companies within the Group. Mr. Lin
has more than 25 years of experience in the legal field and worked as a
part-time lawyer at various law firms in the PRC between 1995 and
2001. In 2001, Mr. Lin practised as a lawyer at Guangdong Everwin Law
Office and became a partner at the firm in 2004. Mr. Lin practised as a
lawyer at Guangdong Yogo Law Firm from 2013 to 2020. Mr. Lin is
currently a non-executive director of HC Group Inc. (stock code: 2280),
which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lin obtained a bachelor’s
degree in physics from South China University of Technology in July
1982. Mr. Lin received a certificate of lawyer qualification in the PRC in
January 1990.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. Since 2002, Mr. Wong has been practising as a barrister of the
High Court in Hong Kong specialising in both civil and criminal
litigation. Mr. Wong is a member of The Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from Hawaii Pacific University in August 1997 and a
bachelor's degree in law from City University of Hong Kong in
November 2001. Mr. Wong received a postgraduate certificate in laws
from City University of Hong Kong in July 2002.

Ms. Lan Fang, aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 January 2015. Ms. Lan has
been the President of Guangdong Construction and Decoration
Materials Association since March 2008 and the President of
Guangdong Construction and Decoration Design Association since
August 2014. Ms. Lan graduated from Guangdong University of
Technology with a college diploma in June 1996 and then pursued
further studies in the EMBA CEO training programme of Sun Yat-sen
University and the business management CEO training programme of
Tsinghua University. She worked as the chairman of the materials
committee of Guangzhou Architecture & Decoration Association from
February 1998 to October 2006. Ms. Lan has accumulated over 23 years
of experience with respect to the administration of social organisation
and in the industry of construction and decoration materials.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Dr. Tao Zhigang, aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2015. Dr. Tao is
Professor of Economics and Strategy in the Faculty of Business and
Economics and the director of the Institute for China and Global
Development, the University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining the
University of Hong Kong in 1998, he taught at Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology from 1992 to 1998. Dr. Tao received his B.Sc.
in management science from Fudan University in 1986, and PhD in
economics from Princeton University in 1992. Dr. Tao is currently an
independent non-executive director of Huadian Fuxin Energy
Corporation Limited (stock code: 816), which is listed on the Stock
Exchange. Dr. Tao is senior fellow at Tsinghua University's National
Center for Economic Research, senior fellow at Tsinghua University's
Center for China in the World Economy, and special-term professor at
Fudan University School of Management. He is also co-director of the
Asia-Pacific Competitiveness Program of Hong Kong Institute of
Economics and Business Strategy.

Mr. Cheng Dickson, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 11 July 2018. Mr. Cheng is
currently (i) an independent director of Magnum Opus Acquisition
Limited (Ticker: OPA.U), which is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange; and (ii) the managing director and head of the investment
banking department of Shanggu Securities Limited. He acts as its
responsible officer and holds licences for types 1, 4 and 6 of regulated
activities under the SFO.

Prior thereto, Mr. Cheng worked in J.P. Morgan between August 1994
and February 1996. In December 1995, he was promoted to TCRM
professional in its global markets department. Between March 1996
and June 2000, Mr. Cheng worked in the securities lending department
of The Bank of New York, Hong Kong Branch. From July 2000 to
August 2002, Mr. Cheng worked as an assistant vice president in the
equity capital markets division of BOCI Asia Limited. In August 2002,
Mr. Cheng joined ICEA Capital Limited and worked in its investment
banking division until October 2005 when he was a senior vice
president. Mr. Cheng was an executive director at the respective
capital markets department in the investment banking division of
Mitsubishi UFJ Securities (HK) Capital, Limited and Mizuho Securities
Asia Limited from November 2005 to October 2016. Mr. Cheng has
more than 23 years of experience in investment banking industry. Mr.
Cheng obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts majoring in economics
from University of Toronto in June 1994 and a master of applied
finance degree majoring in corporate finance from Macquarie
University of Australia in November 2000.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELEREEAERERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Ms. Lu Jiandong, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2020. Ms. Lu is
currently the director and chief financial officer of Rise Education
Cayman Ltd (“Rise”) (Ticker: REDU), which is listed on NASDAQ. Ms. Lu
has served multiple positions in Rise since October 2017, including as
an independent director and the chief operating officer. Prior to Rise,
Ms. Lu served as an executive director in a subsidiary of the Company
from January 2018 to July 2018. With over 15 years of experience in
investment banking, Ms. Lu has extensive management and capital
markets experiences with deep knowledge about corporate finance,
accounting and operations. Ms. Lu served as a managing director in
the Global Real Asset Asia Fund of J.P. Morgan Asset Management
Real Assets (Asia) Limited from May 2016 to March 2017, and as a
managing director and chief operating officer in J.P. Morgan First
Capital Securities Co. Ltd. from April 2012 to March 2015. Ms. Lu joined
J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited in August 2001 and
became a managing director in May 2011. Ms. Lu served as a senior
representative at John Hancock Mutual Life Insurance Company Beijing
Representative Office from July 1994 to June 1999, and she also served
as a public officer and chief translator in The Chinese People’s
Friendship Association with Foreign Countries from August 1991 to
July 1994. Ms. Lu obtained a master degree in business administration
from The Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in May 2001
and a Bachelor’s degree in economics from Beijing International
Studies University in July 1991.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Guanggen, aged 39, is the chief financial officer of the Group
and is responsible for the Group's overall financial and accounting
affairs. Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 2008. Prior to this, he
worked as a finance manager in The Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China, Shunde Branch from 2004 to 2006, and was a sub-branch
manager of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Foshan
Shunde Haiginwan Sub-Branch from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Liu completed a
diploma in finance from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics in September 2005, a program in laws at Guangdong
University of Business Studies from March 2007 to January 2010, as well
as obtaining a master degree in engineering from Chongging
University upon the completion of courses for the master degree in
software engineering (specialised in financial informatisation) in June
2014. He is an associate member of the Association of International
Accountants.

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel, aged 43, is the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Kwan has more than 20 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Kwan joined the Group in June
2010 as secretary on a full time basis. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Kwan worked in CWCC Certified Public Accountants from March 2000
to November 2004, PricewaterhouseCoopers from November 2004 to
October 2007 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from November 2007 to
September 2009. The latter two firms are amongst the biggest
international accounting firms. Mr. Kwan graduated with a bachelor’s
degree in Commerce from Deakin University of Australia in September
2000 and obtained a master degree in business administration from
University of South Australia in August 2012. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member
of the CPA Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

China Lesso is always committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices and business ethics of the Group. The
Board believes in good corporate governance practices and business
ethics which are essential for achieving sustainable development,
establishing investors’ confidence in the Company and safeguarding
and enhancing the interests of the Shareholders.

In pursuit of good and high standards of corporate governance
practices, the Board reviews the corporate governance practices of the
Company from time to time so as to meet the expectations of the
Shareholders for continual improvement, and fulfill its commitment of
pursuing excellent corporate governance. In the opinion of the
directors, the Company complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the Code during the year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code governing
securities transactions by directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to the directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year. The Model Code is also applicable to other
specific senior management of the Company. The directors’ and chief
executive's interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on page 64.

BOARD

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Dr. Lin Shaoquan was appointed as an executive director of WIIK Public
Company Limited (stock code: WIIK), which is listed on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand with effect from 27 November 2020.

Mr. Cheng Dickson was appointed as an independent director of
Magnum Opus Acquisition Limited (Ticker: OPA.U), which is listed on
the New York Stock Exchange with effect from 23 March 2021.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the Directors’
biographical details which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the 2020 interim report
of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD (Continued)

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 15 directors, including 10 executive
directors and 5 independent non-executive directors.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”),
any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing directors shall hold office only until the next annual general
meeting ("AGM") of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. In addition, at every AGM of the Company,
not less than one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Apart from
retirement by rotation pursuant to the Articles, each non-executive
director has a term of within three years. Therefore, no director will
remain in office for a term of more than three years. For details relating
to any relationship among the members of the Board, including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship, please
refer to the sections headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” and “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of
the Directors’ Report.

CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF BOARD AND BOARD
COMMITTEES

Mr. Cheung Man Yu has resigned as an independent non-executive
director and a member of each of audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company with effect from 1 September 2020.
Subsequent to Mr. Cheung’s resignation, Mr. Cheung has joined the
Group as an executive director of our subsidiary and is responsible for
daily operations of the subsidiary and other relevant matters as
assigned by the Company from time to time.

Ms. Lu Jiandong has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director and a member of each of audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company with effect from 1 September 2020.
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BOARD (Continued)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

To segregate the management of the Board from the daily
management and business operations of the Group effectively, the
post of chairman and the chief executive are held by Mr. Wong Luen
Hei and Mr. Zuo Manlun, respectively. One of the important duties of
the chairman is to lead the Board to ensure the Board always acts in
the best interests of the Group. The chairman shall ensure the effective
operation of the Board and fully perform his/her duties and ensure all
important issues are discussed at Board meetings in a timely manner.
All directors will be consulted for any proposed items in the agenda.
The chairman has delegated the drafting of the agenda of each Board
meeting to the chief executive and the company secretary. With the
assistance of the chief executive and the company secretary, the
chairman aims to ensure all directors are adequately briefed on any
issues being put forward at a Board meeting and receive sufficient and
reliable information in a timely manner.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors provide various expertise
and experiences, and maintain balance of interest to safeguard the
interests of the Group and the Shareholders. They participate in Board
meetings and committee meetings and make independent judgements
on issues related to the Group's strategies, performance, interest
conflicts and management process so as to ensure the interests of all
Shareholders are properly considered.

The Company has received annual confirmation made by each of the
independent non-executive directors under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules regarding their independence. The Company regarded all
independent non-executive directors are independent in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shoulders the responsibility of providing effective,
responsible and reliable leadership to the Group. The Board exercises
its rights in management decision on the aspects of the Company’s
development strategy, management structure, investment and
financing, planning, financial control and personnel in accordance with
the requirements of the Code.
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BOARD (Continued)

DUTIES OF THE BOARD (Continued)

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the Company's
independent auditor to review the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 and to audit the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2020. The directors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements
included in the annual report and the interim report. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020, the directors have selected and applied appropriate accounting
policies and have made prudent and reasonable judgements and
estimates in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external
auditor of the Company on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 72
to 81.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties
including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

()  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to review of the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control system;

(e) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

() to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate

Governance Report).

The Board has performed the above activities during 2020.
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board convened seven
meetings to review operating performance, funding requirement and
recent market conditions. The Board also considered and approved
the Group’s overall strategy, audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2019 and reviewed interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2020.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman of the audit committee,
the nomination committee and the remuneration committee, attended
the AGM of the Company held on 22 May 2020.

The table below sets out the attendance of all members of the Board
at the meetings held in 2020:

EEgeERBREREAE
HE2020612A31BIEFE  EF2dHALXR
g% UBMEERE BT REREETR -
BTN RN ERER 2 BEERE - HE
2019F 12831 BIEFENEEZEFEEREE
20204 6 H 30 B LE/NE A w9 &R R A 248 -

BEeITRENEZZTES REZESRFIE
BEeMEREHELFARFR202045 H 22 5
TRRERFERS -

TREFI2020FEFEERENHFEERENR -

Meetings attended/eligible to attend®
HRERE SEREENRY

Audit Nomination Remuneration

AGM® Committee Committee Committee
Directors RRAFAE® ENZEE REZEE FMzEE
Executive directors HITES
Wong Luen Hei BHE 17 77 - n 17
Zuo Manlun it 11 717 - 11 11
Zuo Xiaoping Vi S:a ”n 5/7 - - -
Lai Zhigiang raEE 11 717 - - -
Kong Zhaocong KR ”n 717 = - -
Chen Guonan FREIR 11 717 - - -
Lin Shaoquan whe 11 77 - - -
Huang Guirong BEE 1" 717 - - -
Luo Jianfeng BEE 1”1 717 - - -
Lin Dewei e 11 6/7 - - -
Independent non-executive directors BIFHITES
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan TEx 171 6/7 2/2 n 17
Lan Fang BF 171 5/7 - 171 -
Tao Zhigang )t 11 5/7 22 1/1 11
Cheng Dickson e ”n 6/7 2/2 - -
Lu Jiandong® BRERY - 2/2 - - -
Cheung Man Yu© RXFO ”n 5/5 2/2 - ”n

Note: Mz
(a) Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone or through other means of  (a) RIEBRRAANATE  EFHART BREFLEME

video conference in accordance with the Articles.
(b) There was no other general meeting held in 2020.

(o) The changes of the Board and Board Committees are set out under the section

headed “Change in Composition of Board and Board Committees”on page 17.
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued)

The Company gives proper notices of Board meetings to the directors
and the procedure of Board meetings is in compliance with the Articles
and the relevant rules and regulations. The agenda and the relevant
documents will be provided to all directors in a timely manner. The
chairman will give a proper briefing to all directors on items to be put
forward at a Board meeting. To ensure compliance with the procedure
of Board meetings and all applicable rules and regulations, all directors
may gain a full understanding of all relevant data in a timely manner
and may receive advice and services from the company secretary. The
minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary and are
available for inspection by the directors and the auditor of the
Company.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company would provide a comprehensive induction package covering
the summary of the responsibilities and obligations of a director of a
Hong Kong listed company, the Company’s constitutional documents
and the Guides on Directors’ Duties issued by the Hong Kong
Companies Registry to each newly appointed director to ensure he/she
to have sufficient awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest changes
and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other regulatory regime to the directors with written materials, as
well as organises seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties
and responsibilities.

In 2020, the Company provided a seminar on the topic of "ESG:
Development and Practice” to Board members.
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BOARD (Continued) EE2 @)
TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS (Continued) EEEIIRIE @

Apart from the above training offered by the Company, based on the B 7T it AR A RHIREHAEIIN - BIEEERAAK
training records provided to the Company by the directors, the A FHIRHAEIEEEE - N2020F EF AR HE

directors also participated in the following trainings during 2020: PATESF -
Type of trainings

Directors E= b2 i
Executive directors BITES
Wong Luen Hei =HE AC
Zuo Manlun Vs AC
Zuo Xiaoping TKSE AC
Lai Zhigiang FEER AC
Kong Zhaocong FLIKER AC
Chen Guonan FREIFS AC
Lin Shaoquan oz AC
Huang Guirong HFEHE AC
Luo Jianfeng BEE AC
Lin Dewei Wi AC
Independent non-executive directors BAKHITES
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan FE= AC
Lan Fang BE ABC
Tao Zhigang B8 25 AB.C
Cheng Dickson B 36 5 AC
Lu Jiandong® AR @ AC
Cheung Man Yu® TR F O AC

Note: ffET -

A attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A HEMTE R Kem ik WmiE

B: delivering talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums B: R E R/ SEHER AREES

C: reading information, newspapers, journals and materials relating to the  C: MEEHRESFRE KF o/ U REKERD

responsibilities of directors, economy, fiscal, financial, investments and business of RIEBHEA - RE - AW RER

the Company

(@) Director who was appointed with effect from 1 September 2020. (a) H2020F9 A1 BREZTAES -
(b) Director who resigned with effect from 1 September 2020. (b) B202049 A1 BEEHIES -
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BOARD (Continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Board so as to ensure
compliance with the procedures of the Board meeting and ensure the
Board is fully briefed on all legislations, regulations and corporate
governance development and has considered their opinions when
making a decision. The company secretary is also directly responsible
for the Group's compliance with its continuing obligations under the
Listing Rules, Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Buy-backs, Companies Ordinance, SFO and other applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

During the reporting period, the company secretary has received no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to refresh his
knowledge and skills.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in the
discharge of their duties while holding office as the directors and
officers of the Company. The directors and officers shall not be
indemnified where there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust
proven against them.

In accordance with the Articles, subject to the Cayman Island
Companies Law (2013 Revision, as amended from time to time), every
director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a director, auditor or other
officer of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is
acquitted.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain committees
under its supervision, including the Company’s audit committee
("Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) and nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
(collectively known as “Board Committees”). Board Committees can
engage intermediaries to provide professional opinions and the
reasonable expenses incurred as a result are borne by the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Dr. Tao
Zhigang (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Wong Kwok Ho
Jonathan, Mr. Cheng Dickson and Ms. Lu Jiandong (all are
independent non-executive directors). The major responsibility of the
Audit Committee is to conduct independent and objective audit of the
truth and accuracy of the Group's economic operation and financial
activities, financial policies, financial procedures, risk management,
internal control, external audit, internal audit, financial information
reporting and financial data and assist the Board in discharging its
relevant duties.

The Audit Committee shall convene at least two meetings each year. In
2020, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The attendance
record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on page 20.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during 2020:

o review of the annual report and the annual results announcement
for the year ended 31 December 2019, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

J review of Ernst & Young's confirmation of independence and its
report for the Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2019, with a recommendation to the Board for the re-
appointment of Emnst & Young at the 2020 AGM,;

o review of continuing connected transactions;
o review of the Group's internal audit reports;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

review of the interim report and the interim results announcement
for the six months ended 30 June 2020, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval;

review and approval of Ernst & Young's report for the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2020;

consideration and approval of audit and non-audit services;

review of the corporate governance report for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the corporate governance disclosures for
the six months ended 30 June 2020, with recommendations to
the Board for approval;

review of the corporate social responsibility report for the year
ended 31 December 2019 with a recommendation to the Board
for approval; and

review of the annual report on effectiveness of risk management,
internal control system and internal audit function under the
Code, with a recommendation to the Board for approval.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed the annual

report and annual results announcement for the year ended 31

December 2020 with a recommendation to the Board for approval.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the service fees paid or payable

by the Group to the external auditors are set out as follows:
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o  EBEE202056A30H 1L/ E AR H
BRERPHREQE  YTEFEFTSRSB

o  EHRBALKESHMELBEZZES
HZE 20206 A30 HIE/NME A RS

o  ERIWBBESKIFERY

. EFHE2019FE12A3NBILEENLEE
BMRE MEE2020F6 A30H IENE AR
CEEREE  TEZEFSRGB

. EBHE2019F12A3MBILFENMEM
GEMNRE  WEZEFTRE K
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RABMBZINERSRE  TRHEFTSR
i o
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NNALFENFRLFERERNES  UEZAES
a8 -

SMEEAZ BEm
HZE2020F12A31BIEFE » KAEE M INERZ
EE I EN 2 RIFEBAHTIOT ¢

RMB million
AREBER

Annual audit services FEETRE 8.77
Non-audit services IEEET AR

— Interim results review — R EREE R 1.65
— Others* — Efb? 1.98
Total @t 12.40

#

"Others” were mainly for providing advice on matters in relation to taxation. The
provision of these services by external auditors were cost effective and efficient due

to their professional knowledge.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely Dr.
Tao Zhigang (chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
independent non-executive director), Mr. Wong Luen Hei (executive
director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Wong Kwok Ho
Jonathan and Ms. Lu Jiandong (both of them are independent non-
executive directors).

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for studying and
formulating the Company’s remuneration policy and incentive
mechanism and is responsible for formulating the standards for the
appraisal of the Company’s directors and senior management and
conducting appraisals.

The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility to
determine the specific remuneration packages of all directors and
senior management. In order to determine the level of remuneration
and fees paid to members of the Board, market rates and factors such
as each director’s workload, responsibility and job complexity are taken
into account. The following factors are considered when determining
the remuneration packages of directors and senior management:

° business requirements;

J individual performance and contribution to results;

o company performance and profitability;

. retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

o changes in relevant markets, including supply and demand

fluctuations and changes in competitive conditions; and
. general economic situation.

During the review process, no individual director is involved in
decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2020, the Remuneration Committee convened one meeting,
assessed the performance of the Company’s directors and senior
management, reviewed terms of their service contracts, and made
recommendation of the remuneration packages for directors and
senior management to the Board. The attendance record of the
meeting is set out on a named basis on page 20.

Details of directors’ remuneration and five highest paid employees are
set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the remuneration of the two senior management fell within the band of
less than RMB1 million.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely Mr.
Wong Luen Hei (chairman of the Nomination Committee and executive
director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Wong Kwok Ho
Jonathan, Ms. Lan Fang and Dr. Tao Zhigang (all of them are
independent non-executive directors). The major duty of the
Nomination Committee is to study and make recommendations on the
candidates, selection criteria and procedure in respect of the
Company's directors and senior management.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination
Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board,
identifies suitable candidates if necessary and makes recommendations
to the Board. The director nomination policy sets out the approach
and procedures the Board adopts for the nomination and selection of
directors of the Company including the appointment of additional
directors, replacement of directors, and re-election of directors. Below
are details of the selection criteria and nomination process and
procedures as set out in the director nomination policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

In the determination of the suitability of a candidate, the Nomination
Committee shall consider the potential contribution such candidate
can bring to the Board in terms of his or her qualifications, skills,
experience, independence, age, culture, ethnicity and gender diversity
etc. The Nomination Committee shall consider the following selection
criteria and such other factors that it may consider appropriate for a
position on the Board, including but not limited to: (a) attributes
complementary to the Board, (b) business experience, board expertise
and skills, (c) availability, (d) motivation, (e) integrity, (f) independence
and (g) diversity (in all aspects).

For the appointment of new and replacement directors, if the Board
determines that an additional or replacement director is required, it
will deploy multiple channels for identifying suitable director
candidates, including referral from directors, shareholders,
management, advisors of the Company and executive search firms.
Upon compilation and interview of the list of potential candidates, the
Nomination Committee will make recommendation to the Board based
on the selection criteria and such other factors that it considers
appropriate. The Board has the final authority on determining suitable
director candidate for appointment.

For the re-election of directors, where a retiring director, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election, the Board shall consider and, if consider
appropriate, recommend such retiring director to stand for re-election
at a general meeting. A circular containing the requisite information on
such retiring director will be sent to shareholders prior to a general
meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

For directors nominated by shareholders, such nominating shareholder
must follow the “Procedures for shareholder(s) of the Company
proposing a person for election as a director” which is available on the
Company's website.

In any event, the Board shall ensure that the nomination, re-election
and/or appointment of the directors shall be conducted in compliance
with the Listing Rules, the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company and all other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

For further details, please refer to the nomination policy that is
available on the Company’s website.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Nomination Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2020, the Nomination Committee convened one meeting. The
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board, recommended the Board on the list of retiring directors
for re-election at the AGM on 22 May 2020 in accordance with the
director nomination policy and Board diversity policy of the Company,
and reviewed the independence of all independent non-executive
directors. The Nomination Committee recommended the Board on
appointing Ms. Lu Jiandong as an independent non-executive director
in accordance with the director nomination policy and Board diversity
policy of the Company. The attendance record of the meeting is set
out on a named basis on page 20.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Board diversity policy
is available on the website of the Company.

The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board level
will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and other qualities.
The Company will also take into consideration its own business model
and specific needs from time to time in determining the optimal
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee will review the
Board diversity policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 15 directors. Three
of them are females. One third of the Board members are independent
non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical review and control
of the management process. The composition of the Board reflects the
necessary balance of skills, professional experience and knowledge for
effective leadership of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is solely responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring the Group has established
and maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control system. The Board is also responsible for monitoring
the design, implementation and review on the risk management and
internal control system as carried out by management, while
management has the responsibility to provide confirmation on the
effectiveness of such system. To this end, management continues to
allocate resources for a risk management and internal control system
compatible with the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission) standards to provide reasonable, though
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in the operating system
of the Group and in achieving business objectives of the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has continuously monitored
and annually reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control system, and the Board is of the view
that the existing risk management and internal control system is
sufficient, effective and adequate. The review covered all material
aspects with regard to control, including financial control, operational
control and compliance control. The internal audit reports submitted
to the Audit Committee by the Group also cover aspects of risk
management and internal control. The Board is not aware of any
significant areas of concern which may affect the Shareholders, and
believes that the Group has fully complied with the code provisions on
internal controls, including compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, as set forth in the Code. The Board, through the
appraisal performed by the Audit Committee, reviewed, ensured and
confirmed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs received by the staff and budget of the
Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function at
the Board meeting. In light of the Group's nature of business and the
recommendations on the Board's role in risk management, the Group
has developed risk management system and policies, and established
a risk management project team, which is responsible for the Group's
risk management, to communicate and assess the Group's risk profile
and material risks, and track the progress of mitigation plans and
activities of material risks and report on detailed examinations of
specific risks as required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM REkEREASER

The Group has established a comprehensive organisation structure to ~ AREE BT —ECENAEEE - YAEEFRR
manage the risks encountered by the Group. The risk management  E¥ H A HETTE IR o BB EEEI’JJ—LKﬁ IR RIE
structure of China Lesso comprised of two key factors: risk BiEMEABEREZE : BESERENRREIERE

management structure and risk management program. = o
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

[ EEASER @

(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Regulatory Organisation

(A) REREEEE
EEHE
EEENPEEAREETEFNENLEEE

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the overall risk

management

° determine the overall objective, risk appetites and risk ° BECEXRRKRERLESZ BRF
tolerance for corporate risk management, and approve risk 7 BBRARE  HERREERE
management strategies, major risk mitigation solutions and MEARRFESRARRRERE

risk management measures;

comprehend and manage each major risk faced by the
enterprise and its existing management situations, and
make effective risks management decisions; approve the
decision-making standards and mechanisms regarding
major operating decisions, major risks, major events and

major business processes;

approve risk management report related to major decisions;

B

BRMEECEERNSASEAER
KE R BRI - A RE SR
BEVRE  HEBALERR EX
B EAFEHNEZXHRIZNH
BT R s A T )

PEBEBRXNRREFBENERELERS

and )53

o approve the annual comprehensive risk management EFE2EEREBRE -
report.

Risk Management Organisation A E IR AR

The Audit Committee, the highest risk management organisation EBREEE  BALNGRSERAEREE
in the Company which is accountable to the Board B #75%“\&,%

FERTHREREEERNZRME

32

o review the establishment and planning of the comprehensive o

risk management system;

review the proposal on the structure of the risk management
organisations and their responsibilities;

review the annual comprehensive risk management report
and submit to the Board;

review risk management strategies, major risk management
solutions and risk management measures; and

review the annual risk management work plan.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)

Leading Risk Management Organisation

Risk management project team, the leading risk management

organisation

responsible for the establishment and amendment of the
Company's risk management policies and mechanisms;

formulate and submit annual risk management work plan to
the Board and the Audit Committee for their review;

regularly collect first-hand information regarding risk
management, carry out risk assessment and discuss major
risks as faced by the Company; and

assess the soundness, reasonability and the effectiveness in
implementing the risk management system, and review the
annual comprehensive risk management report, risk
management strategies and day-to-day risk management
solutions.

Risk Implementation Organisation
Each functional department of the Company shall accept the

coordination and monitoring carried out by the risk management
project team

implement the basic process in risk management;

consider and propose decision-making standards or
mechanisms regarding major operating decisions, major
risks, major events and major business processes of the
functional department;

analyse and propose risk assessment report of the
functional department;

properly carry out risk management work of the functional
department; and

establish a comprehensive risk management process of the
functional department.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)

Risk Supporting Organisation

Internal control team

. assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal control plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

° centrally organise or, together with related functional
departments, design, amend or improve internal control
documents in accordance with risk management solutions;

° assist the risk management project team to inspect,
examine, evaluate and improve the implementation of risk
management in each functional departments and operating
units; and

° assist the timely rectification and improvements to existing
deficiencies of each functional department based on the
findings in the internal audit report.

Internal audit department

° assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal audit plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

° carry out measures including walk-through test and
analytical review to evaluate the effectiveness in risk
management; and

° after carrying out internal audit, deliver the auditing results
to internal control team and risk management project team
timely.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM B EEAHSER @

(Continued)

(B) RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (B)

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management
program which is led by the risk management project team and
implemented with the assistance of the internal audit department
and internal control team. The risk management program is as
follows:

(@)  to collect first-hand information for risk management;
(b) to analyse and assess risks;

(c) to propose risk management strategies and form risk
management solutions; and

(d)  to supervise the implementation of risk management works
P p 9
performed by each business units and verify the overall
score.
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SUPERVISION AND ENHANCEMENT OF RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up basic procedures that cover the whole process
of risk management, connecting the channels of communication of risk
management information along the reporting lines and among various
departments and business units to ensure the timely, accurate and
complete communication of information and this has laid the
foundation for the supervision and enhancement of risk management.

The senior management of the Group, focusing on material risks,
material matters and material decisions, important management
matters and the business flow, supervises the work relating to the first-
hand information collection for risk management, risk assessment, risk
management strategies, critical control activities and the
implementation of risk management solutions. The risk management
project team carries out an annual review and examination on the
implementation of the works on risk management by different
departments and business units and its effectiveness for the year,
assesses risk management strategies and evaluates inter-departmental
risk management solutions and business units’ risk management
solutions, proposes suggestions for adjustments and improvements
and issues evaluation and recommendation reports which will be sent
to the relevant senior management in a timely manner.

MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE

The material risks that the Group may face which include macro-
economic risks, risks of inappropriate strategies for market
competition, risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price, risks of
adjustments of policies in relation to the environmental protection,
economy and industry, cybersecurity risks, risks of the coronavirus
disease ("COVID-19"), and climate change risks.

The potential risks of macro-economic risks arise from the effects of
macro-economy’s volatility and the pressure of inflation. The Group's
corresponding measures on risk management include reviewing the
management strategies and mechanism for macro-economic risks;
reviewing the relevant mechanism on the collection of intelligence
about the changes in the external macro-economic environment;
clearly defining the macro-economic risk analysis session; analysing,
reviewing, adjusting and improving the strategies for managing macro-
economic risks in future.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE
(Continued)

The potential risks of inappropriate strategies for market competition
arise from the risks involved in the formulation of competition
strategies and risks involved in the collection of clients’ information.
The Group’s risk management measures include reviewing the
management mechanism for market competition strategies; analysing
the Company’s position in market competition, reviewing the
corresponding market competition strategies; and timely devising and
reviewing the management strategies in response to the changes in
the market competition environment and submitting report thereon to
management; collecting the market competition information of new
products and offering suggestions on competition strategies.

The potential risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price arise
because the price of key raw materials purchased by the Company is
easily affected by the shortfall of refining capabilities, changes in
manufacturers’ power and labour cost structure, changes in the price
of resins made from coal and petrochemicals. The Group's risk
management measures include clearly stating the risk management
strategies and mechanism for the fluctuation of raw materials price in
the relevant systems; collecting information in relation to the
fluctuation of raw materials price and releasing such information
internally through an established channel; regularly reporting and
analysing the fluctuation of raw materials price; clearly defining the
analysis session for the increased risks of fluctuation of raw materials
price; analysing, reviewing, adjusting and improving the management
strategies for the risks of fluctuation of raw materials price.

The potential risks of adjustments of policies in relation to the
environmental protection, economy and industry arise from the risks of
adjustments of environmental policies; risks of adjustments of
urbanisation policies; risks of adjustments of construction projects of
significant water works including water saving and water supplies; risks
of adjustments of real estate policies. The Group's risk management
measures include reviewing the management strategies and
mechanism for risks involved in the adjustments of policies in relation
to the environmental protection, economy and industry; collecting
information in relation to changes in environmental protection,
economy and industry policies and releasing such information internally
through an established channel; reviewing the mechanism for
monitoring and collecting the information on laws and regulations that
affect the industry.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE
(Continued)

The potential risks of cybersecurity risks arise from two aspects: on the
one hand, the vulnerability of networks to different kinds of cyber
attacks because of its own security defects; on the other hand, external
and internal risks of the Group. External risks mainly represent
intentional or unintentional damage and threats from outsiders, such
as malicious attacks by “hackers”, illegal interception of network data
and transmission of computer viruses. Internal risks mainly include
misuse or abuse of critical and sensitive information, theft, intentional
or unintentional disclosure of confidential information by employees.
The Group’s corresponding measures on risk management include
establishing online permissions; developing and using software for
communication within the Group; establishing two sites and three
centers and implementing dual-active and duplication of intra-city and
inter-city data centre; and strengthening development in four areas:
environment, data, terminals and cybersecurity.

The potential risks of COVID-19 arise from the impact of
macroeconomic fluctuations and the uncertainties in resumption of
work and production of upstream and downstream enterprises. Due to
the outbreak of the COVID-19, various industries suspended work and
production and many enterprises are facing the risk of interruption of
capital flow and suffering hardship. It has also brought a negative
impact on foreign trade, thus dragging down the economy of the PRC.
The Group's corresponding measures include providing guidelines for
epidemic prevention and control and resumption of work,
strengthening employees’ awareness of prevention and control, and
enabling resumption of work and production in an active and orderly
manner; continually promoting full automation of production bases;
paying close attention to the needs of various areas in epidemic
prevention, and assuming corporate social responsibility, supporting
the construction of epidemic prevention hospitals in all provinces and
regions across the country and making in-kind donations.

Climate change risks are a kind of compound risk in the global risk
society. This risk can be classified into economic risk, political risk,
social risk, and ecological risk, etc. The Group's corresponding
measures on risk management include improving environmental
management, practicing green operations, improving the efficiency of
use of energy resources, exercising strict management on waste
discharge in the production and operation process, actively
transmitting the concept of green development to the public, and
building a green operation roadmap to the harmonious coexistence of
enterprises and the environment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNA
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CE REPORT

MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has formulated a set of program of continuing obligations
on information management and disclosure to formally regulate the
monitoring of inside information that arises during the course of its
current business development and has established the practice of
delivering such information to shareholders, the media and analysts.
When the Group handles the relevant matters, it will comply with
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission and the related provisions issued
by regulatory organisations and the Group has clearly stated that the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information is prohibited.
The Group has a system of answering enquiries about the Group's
matters by external parties, and has appointed and authorised the
senior executives of the Group to act as the Company'’s spokesperson
in response to enquiries on a particular area.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has formulated a “whistleblowing policy” whereby
employees can report any matters to the chairman of the Board or the
Audit Committee secretly by sending anonymous electronic mails to
the designated address or by phone without fear of being accused.
Such matters may include misconduct, irregular conduct or fraud
regarding financial matters and accounting practices. Any Shareholder
or stakeholder can also report similar concerns in writing or verbally in
confidence to the Audit Committee.

DIVIDENDS POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject to
the Company’s discretion. Dividends may be paid only out of its
distributable reserves as permitted under the relevant laws. The
Company has adopted a general dividend policy of declaring and
paying dividends on a semi-annual basis of around 30% of its profit
attributable to the owners of the Company. The Board would review
the Company's dividend policy from time to time considering factors
including but not limited to debt covenants, capital investment and
business plan.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no change to the
memorandum of association of the Company and Articles. The latest
memorandum of association of the Company and Articles are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS
AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2013 Revision, as amended from time to time).
However, pursuant to the Articles, the Shareholder(s) may request for
the convening of extraordinary general meetings following the
procedures below:

o Any two or more Shareholder(s) or any one Shareholder which is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) may request for
the convening of extraordinary general meetings by written
requisition deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office. The requisition shall specify
the object of the meeting and be signed by the requisitionist(s),
and such requisitionist(s) must hold as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at the general
meeting of the Company.

o The Board shall proceed to convene the extraordinary general

meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS
AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING (Continued)

J If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held
within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may convene the extraordinary general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which the
meeting may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition. All
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

J An extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of a
special resolution shall be called by not less than 21 days’ notice
in writing and any other extraordinary general meeting shall be
called by not less than 14 days’ notice in writing. The notice of
the meeting shall specify the time, place, and agenda of the
meeting, particulars of the resolutions to be considered and in
the case of special business, the general nature of that business.

J Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS'
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

The Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the Company
to the Board at the Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong or by email or through the Company’s investor relations whose
contact details are provided in the “Corporate Information” section of
this report. In addition, the Shareholders can contact Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Company’s branch share
registrar, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings and
entitlements to dividend.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency in
communication with the Shareholders and investors in general.
Communication between the Company and the Shareholders is
conducted through various channels, including interim and annual
reports, information published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company and general meetings. The Company encourages
the Shareholders to attend the Company’s general meetings. The
Group's financial and other information is also published on the
website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of
the Company (www.lesso.com).

The Company'’s senior management endeavours to maintain an open
dialogue channel with the investment sector to ensure they have a
thorough understanding of the Company and its operations and
strategies. The Company has emphasised the importance of the
function of investor relations, engaged a dedicated independent third
party to maintain investor relations and conduct investor/analyst
meetings from time to time and led investors and analysts to visit its
plants.

As regards to investor relations, the Group will actively conduct
activities related to investor relations in the future to strengthen its
corporate responsibility so that global investors can have an adequate
knowledge and understanding of the Company's operating strategy,
financial performance and development prospects. The Company will
actively develop and maintain close relationship with investors, analysts
and media to achieve sound investor relations management.

The Company applies the principle of a quiet period in its investor
relations communications. During a quiet period, the Company does
not comment on market prospects or factors affecting business and
performance, or engage in discussion on events or trends related to
the reporting period. The Company will not initiate any meeting or
conference call with public in which these matters are discussed. A
quiet period starts at 60 days or 30 days prior to the disclosure of
annual results or interim results respectively, and lasts until the
announcement of the annual results or the interim results.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKET OVERVIEW

In 2020, the Chinese and global economies were hammered by the
novel coronavirus pneumonia ("COVID-19") pandemic, resulting in a
buildup and exposure of various risks, and the severe imbalance of
global development. Despite the raging pandemic and the unstable
trade relations between China and the United States, China has
demonstrated its resilience and underlying security, underpinning its
strong economic recovery. According to data released by the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, China’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP)
exceeded RMB100 trillion for the first time in 2020 and hit RMB101.6
trillion, up 2.3% year-on-year. Although the growth rate reached the
lowest level in 40 years, China was the only major economy in the world
that has achieved positive economic growth in 2020.

As the pandemic gradually came under control in the second quarter,
the whole country of China actively promoted the resumption of work
and production activities, and the government launched a series of
economic stimulus policies to ensure that domestic economic activities
could gradually return to the normal level. In addition, in order to
further boost macroeconomic growth after the COVID-19 outbreak in
2020, the Chinese government proposed the unprecedented
development initiative of “New Infrastructure, New Urbanisation
Initiatives and Major Projects”, which was regarded as one of the
important domestic economic policies, focusing on the promotion of
important engineering construction including new infrastructure, new
urbanisation, transportation and water conservancy, seeking to boost
the declining economy through infrastructure construction. With the
overall acceleration of investment in the “New Infrastructure, New
Urbanisation Initiatives and Major Projects”, large-scale key
infrastructure projects have started intensively across the country,
keeping related industries in a high boom and creating favourable
conditions for urban infrastructure development. It is expected that the
pipeline industry will continue to grow steadily.

In addition, the Chinese government adopted the “CPC Central
Committee’s Proposals for Formulating the 14th Five-Year Plan (2021-
2025) for National Economic and Social Development and the Long-
Range Objectives Through the Year 2035” in 2020. Many local
governments began to tighten up regulation on the property market,
and the introduction of new regulatory regulations such as “Three Red
Lines” prompted major real estate companies to proactively reduce
financial leverage. In order to ease the financial pressure, real estate
developers ramped up efforts to make promotional activities in sales of
properties, which led to strong sales growth in “Golden September
and Silver October”.

BIRE RS wm M T

L2

20204F » FrEEABF A ([#E b4 1) RIS FE
BERX PRANRREEHEBER  SER
RTHRBNRE  2HERAGEE - BER
BERE MEHXBEZEERE  FEDRRL
BENFUNERZ2E  ©BEEHARY - BH
KT RAMEOERETR 20200 FBEANEERE
BEERBWABRETL  E2EARKI101.68ET [
Le3E & 2.3% @ SBIREHE AR A0FRFIE - Al REIR
E-EREELERNEREESE -

BERBRE_FEZFHZE =B ETEGHE
EETEE  BRFHEL— R RBEENERE
BRERNEEEZHESAZTERILE I 5B
E-TEPRIBENZELEER - FEBAR
2020 ERIBHB R RBEALEEER R Z —
[ —E | 2R EFREENUERRE - i
WA MK MEERTIEER - WEEBE
BT ATNEE - E M —EIWREEZE
RET  2ESMANSHEZBAREAFRT
SHEEXERRSR  REMERERERE
ERMGN  BHRBESDHEETESERTEE
£ o

FH0 - R EBUT R TREE (P A R EER 6 E
REBENHSHRE TOERFREMN2035FE
SRERENER) ZHRBRERTRE (=8
AR SEEMRL B RKEBEFEISHFERE
RERESEN  BHERZLENHIMAHER
HENE  TENRT] HERERTRIER -

Annual Report 2020 43R 43

I



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREHREA

MARKET OVERVIEW (Continued)

As the COVID-19 pandemic was gradually brought under control in
China in the first half of the year, various real estate activities were
resumed, the pent-up demand was released, the commercial housing
sales market recovered rapidly, and the real estate market recovered
faster than expected. Going forward, the Government will uphold the
positioning of “Houses are for living in, not for speculation” and the
principle of adopting “City-specific Policies” for the real estate market.
Under the guidance of policies such as “promoting the balanced
development of finance, real estate and the real economy” and
“promoting the healthy development of housing consumption” in the
“14th Five-Year Plan”, the property market will undergo a shift toward
the true purpose of properties — that is, places built for people to live
in — at an accelerating pace. The real estate industry is expected to
grow at a faster pace, which will certainly bring a stable demand to the
building materials and interior decoration products industry.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The year 2020 marked the 10th anniversary of China Lesso’s listing on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, an important milestone in our
development history. Along the way, the Group has always adhered to
the strategy of creating a relaxing life for dwellers, without changing its
original intention on its road of development. With clear corporate
development plans and goals, we have been constantly seeking
innovations and changes in the ever-changing market environment and
achieving rapid growth, thereby establishing China Lesso as a market
leader. In the past year, China Lesso strived to improving its brand
image and reputation as well. In terms of creative marketing, research
and development (“R&D") and innovation, and industry
demonstrations, the Group has won the praise and recognition from
peer companies and outsiders alike. It was listed again as a “Hurun
China 500 Most Valuable Private Enterprise”, included in the “China’s
Top 500 Companies in Terms of Brand Value” for seven consecutive
years, and won the “Science and Technology Innovation Advanced
Enterprise of 2019 in Shunde District” and “Preferred Brand of Pipes
and Fittings for Top 500 Development Enterprises” awards, the “First
Prize of Science and Technology Progress Award of 2019 in
Guangdong Province”, the title of “"Guangdong Province's
Outstanding Private Enterprise with Contribution to the Fighting of
COVID-19 Pandemic” and many other industry accolades,
demonstrating its brand strength and leading market position.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued)

In response to the state’s call for tackling climate change, China Lesso
has formulated effective countermeasures, improved environmental
management, practiced environment-friendly operations, enhanced
corporate energy management, strictly controlled waste emissions,
and developed environmental protection industries, thus contributing
to the alleviation of effects caused by climate change and promoting
the creation of a healthier lifestyle.

During production and business operations, the Group always adheres
to the philosophy of green development, strictly implements all-round
and full-process environmental management, and reduces resource
consumption through effective energy management, thermal
management and the development of renewable energy. Furthermore,
it strictly controls the pollution generated in the production process,
develops a comprehensive environmental management system,
implements environmental monitoring on a comprehensive scale,
ensures that the discharge of pollutants meets the requirements of
relevant laws and regulations through clean production, reducing the
impact of business production and operations on the environment, and
promoting the development of green economy. The Group also uses
new technologies to reduce exhaust pollution.

The Group dedicated to promote green offices, incorporates
environmental protection into routine office work, actively promotes
paperless offices, and advocates best practices to reduce the use of
office supplies, effectively improving the efficiency of resource
utilisation, and creating the harmonious and symbiotic environment for
the enterprise development through green operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE &

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued) %ﬁﬁ;ﬂ,(%)

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue by region for 2020 T %3, = 2020 £F 2 2019 E YL A d 1 [& 2] 9 1Y
and 2019: EI—

Revenue % of total revenue
A T L ONA
2020 2019 2020 2019

RMB million ~ RMB million
AR®ERAR AREEETL

Southern China E=cge 15,215 14,180 7.3% 54.2% 53.8%
Southwestern China i) 2,860 2,627 8.9% 10.2% 10.0%
Central China HEH 3,009 3,090 (2.6%) 10.7% 11.7%
Eastern China EH 1,885 1,558 21.0% 6.7% 5.9%
Northern China ESig 2,133 1,972 8.2% 7.6% 7.5%
Northwestern China [iiihld 1,425 1,263 12.8% 5.1% 48%
Northeastern China 5l 757 700 8.2% 2.7% 2.7%
Outside China HEIE 789 955 (17.3%) 2.8% 3.6%
Total Mt 28,073 26,345 6.6% 100.0% 100.0%
# Details of the scope of coverage of each region are set out in note 4 to consolidated ~ # BRNBEBEFBERNGRA M BRERMTS -

financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the number of the Group’s H E2020F 12831 ILFE  AEBERE2EE
independent and exclusive first-tier distributors across the country — HHYB B R — 4% £C 55 7 B B 18 = 2,397 4 (2019
increased to 2,397 (2019: 2,276). Southern China remained the Group’s & :2276%) - AEBNEEMSEELER ™
major revenue-contributing market, whose revenue accounted for 15 - R EZEBTISEAEBBIA A 54.2% (2019
54.2% of the Group's total revenue (2019: 53.8%), while the revenue & : 53.8%) + Hithib[E Ay UL AAb tE 4 45.8% (2019
from other regions accounted for 45.8% (2019: 46.2%). F 1 46.2%) °

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue by business unit TR & Z 2020 F } 2019 F WAL ZE 2 DB
for 2020 and 2019: EAR

Revenue % of total revenue
A T L ONA
2020 2019 2020 2019

RMB million ~ RMB million
AR®ERAR ARKEETL

Plastic piping systems BHEERGR 24,512 23,709 3.4% 87.3% 90.0%
Building materials and BMREE®

interior decoration products 1,997 1,519 31.5% 7.1% 5.8%
Others* Hi# 1,564 1,117 40.1% 5.6% 4.2%
Total ) 28,073 26,345 6.6% 100.0% 100.0%
# "Others” include businesses of environmental engineering and other related ~ * [Efth ] @FERETIE RAEMABRIART - & RARTS R A A

services, financial services and others. ES A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued)

Despite the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has always
been actively overcoming the negative impact brought by the
pandemic. Under the premise of taking preventive measures, it has
continuously and steadily promoted the resumption of work and
production activities since March, so as to capture market
opportunities after the pandemic. While steadily upgrading the core
business of plastic piping systems, it also actively expands business in
other sectors, including building materials and interior decoration
products, environmental protection, agriculture and supply chain
service platform businesses, in order to achieve diversified
development and simultaneous advancement, therefore broadening
the Group's revenue base.

The revenue of the Group increased by 6.6% to RMB28,073 million
(2019: RMB26,345 million). Benefited from the Group's economies of
scale, actively advancing production automation and implementing an
effective procurement strategy, its gross profit increased by 11.2% to
RMB8,384 million (2019: RMB7,537 million), and gross profit margin
further improved to 29.9% (2019: 28.6%), and the net profit margin rose
to 13.4% (2019: 11.5%).

With a view to maximising the benefits of economies of scale, the
Group formulated and implemented effective procurement strategies
and it actively promoted automated production, thereby effectively
reducing the pressure caused by the rising costs of raw materials and
production. In addition, the Group promoted sustainable business
development and maintained its profitability at a healthy level by
enhancing its operating efficiency, optimising its product mix and
increasing its market share.

During the reporting period, the Group’s EBITDA increased by 11.5%
to RMB6,195 million (2019: RMB5,556 million), and the EBITDA margin
was 22.1% (2019: 21.1%). Profit before tax increased by 19.4% to
RMB4,754 million (2019: RMB3,982 million). Profit attributable to
owners of the Company increased by 24.0% to RMB3,751 million (2019:
RMB3,025 million). Basic earnings per share increased by 24.5% to
RMB1.22 (2019: RMB0.98). The effective tax rate was reduced to 21.0%
(2019: 23.9%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS

COVID-19 broke out and spread rapidly across China in early 2020. In
response to the outbreak, the state carried out a number of emergency
hospital construction projects, and assisted hospitals across the country
to build anti-pandemic facilities in the fight against the pandemic.
While prompt responding to the challenges posed by the pandemic,
the Group has allocated resources promptly to fully support the
national emergency plan to cope with the situation and provided a
variety of suitable pipe products for the construction of emergency
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hospitals as well as construction materials for further renovation and

expansion of existing hospitals.

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue from plastic piping
systems by region for 2020 and 2019:

TRETIEE 2020 FF R 2019 F LR EE
WA RME S| D BRS¢

EENE Y

Revenue % of revenue
A BB %
2020 2019 2020
RMB million RMB million
AREEET AREABTL
Southern China Edea) 12,994 12,658 27% 53.0% 53.4%
Other than Southern China ER MR 11,084 10,563 4.9% 45.2% 44.5%
Outside China rh BB 434 488 (11.1%) 1.8% 2.1%
Total st 24,512 23,709 3.4% 100.0% 100.0%
The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue from plastic piping TR & Z 2020 € % 2019 F B & 18 R 215

systems business by the application of the products for 2020 and 2019:

WA IR EE am FE R Bl 0 O RH15

Revenue % of revenue
L ON 5B %
2020 2019 2020
RMB million RMB million
ARBEBEERT AR%®BET
Water supply ok 9,458 9,228 2.5% 38.6% 38.9%
Drainage 7N 9,322 8,966 4.0% 38.0% 37.8%
Power supply and BIHE KA
telecommunications 4,207 4,126 2.0% 17.2% 17.4%
Gas transmission IR R g 418 383 9.2% 1.7% 1.6%
Others* Hih# 1,107 1,006 10.1% 4.5% 4.3%
Total Bt 24,512 23,709 3.4% 100.0% 100.0%
# “Others” include agricultural applications, floor heating and fire services. ! [Hfb] BIEER - 18R RIE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

The production capacity of the Group was adversely affected by the
pandemic in the first quarter. Fortunately, the pandemic was gradually
brought under control in the second quarter. By actively capturing the
development opportunities created by China’s “"New Infrastructure”
strategy and striving to catch up with the production plans, the Group’s
production bases across the country have successively resumed work
and production, and started production at full speed. During the
reporting period, the Group not only successfully restored its
production capacity to the pre-pandemic level, but also achieved a
further increase in its production capacity. The Group’s annual
designed capacity for manufacturing plastic piping systems expanded
from 2.78 million tonnes in 2019 to 3.03 million tonnes, and the capacity
utilisation rate during the period reached 87.9%.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the plastic piping system
business has achieved stable growth, with revenue increased by 3.4%
to RMB24,512 million (2019: RMB23,709 million), accounting for 87.3%
of the total revenue of the Group (2019: 90.0%).

The table below sets out the breakdown of average selling price, sales
volume and revenue from plastic piping systems business by product
material for 2020 and 2019:
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EBBWAR87.3% (20194 : 90.0%) ©

TREINEE 2020 F K 2019 F LM E B ARG
REMYHE DO FHEE  HERKRADEF

:|\£.
g -

Average selling price Sales volume Revenue
FHEE #E KA
219 2019 2020 19
RMB Tonne Change ~ RMBmillion ~ RMB million
AEE I 28 \REEn ARVEER
PVC products PVCER 7,181 8116 (4.1% 1,957,868 1817,179 1.7% 15,234 14,748 33%
Non-PVCproducts’ ~ #PVCER 14,250 15431 (7.7%) 651,090 580,685 121% 9,278 8961 35%
Total &t 9,395 9,687 (5.0% 2,608,958 2,397,864 8.8% 24,512 23709 34%
# “Non-PVC" plastic pipes and pipe fittings mainly refer to those made of PE or PP-R. # [FEPVC] BREBREMHEERPEHPP-RE

During the reporting period, sales volume of plastic piping systems
increased by 8.8%. In terms of product materials, sales volume of PVC
products increased by 7.7% to 1,957,868 tonnes (2019: 1,817,179
tonnes), while that of non-PVC products increased by 12.1% to 651,090
tonnes (2019: 580,685 tonnes). Revenue from sales of PVC products
and non-PVC products increased by 3.3% to RMB15,234 million (2019:
RMB14,748 million) and 3.5% to RMB9,278 million (2019: RMB8,961
million) respectively.

R EHR BREBERREEIEFIEING8% -
ERYEAE PVCERMNBEEEFEINTINE
1,957,868 18 (2019 45 : 1,817,179M8) » 3EPVCE
B $4 = Bl ¥ FF 12 N 12.1% = 651,090 WA (2019 4F
580,685M8 ) o $5 & PVCE fn X IEPVC E W TS HY
WA D BIIEFIENN3.3% 2= AR E 152.341870(2019
F: AR®147.481870) R35% = ARM92.7818
JL(20194F + ARME89.611ETT) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

During the reporting period, the flexible pricing policy adopted by the
Group was fully executed. The bulk purchases policy enables the
Group to secure raw materials at lower prices and better quality,
allowing the Group to effectively control the costs of raw materials and
production, so that the gross profit margin maintained at a reasonable
and stable level. The Group reduced the average selling price of its
plastic piping system by 5.0% during the year to RMB?,395 per tonne
(2019: RMB9,887 per tonne).The gross profit margin of its plastic piping
system business reached 30.2% (2019: 28.9%).

In 2020, the Group focused on accelerating the construction of
production bases, improving the national strategic planning, and
actively increasing production capacity through in-depth intelligent
manufacturing transformation, so as to gain a foothold in the “New
Infrastructure” market. In December, the Group's production bases in
Fujian and Jiangxi officially commenced operation, contributing to the
Group's acceleration of the output of production capacity. The Group
will make full use of the new production bases in Jiangxi and Fujian,
rapidly grow its share of the local markets, and bring more items to the
Group's entire product range. In addition, the construction of second-
phase projects of production bases in Hunan, Henan, and Yunnan has
also been accelerated. In the future, the Group will continue to expand
its production base layout and plans by building new production bases
in Guangxi and Gansu provinces; for overseas operations, the Group
will focus on Southeast Asian countries such as Thailand and Cambodia
to speed up the construction of manufacturing and R&D bases, so as
to realise its international strategic layout. The Group will also identify
targets for any potential acquisitions in the market to support capacity
expansion.

The Group firmly believes that through management and technological
innovation, it can continuously inject momentum into business
development. In 2021, the Group will continue to implement
automation transformation, introduce high-precision equipment,
enhance production automation, intelligent operation and product
optimisation, so as to improve production and operation efficiency and
ensure that the production capacity fulfill sales targets. In addition, the
Group has always attached great importance to scientific and
technological R&D. In the future, it will continue to increase its
investment in R&D and improve its technological innovation
capabilities. This will not only enhance the Group’s core
competitiveness, but also consolidate its leading position in the
market. At the same time, the Group put great emphasis to the
cultivation of talents, performs well in the succession plan of talents,
and builds a platform for the development of employees to boost the
Group's management level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

In order to keep abreast of market trends, the Group continues to
develop new products and new technologies to meet market needs.
As early as 2017, China Lesso started research on manufacturing and
industrialisation of fiberglass reinforced thermoplastic pipes (“RTP
fiberglass pipes”). After several years of R&D, the Group has
successfully achieved mass production of RTP fiberglass pipes in 2020,
and the products were officially released in October. The new RTP
fiberglass pipes are suitable for oil and gas gathering and
transportation, high-pressure alcohol injection, oil field water injection,
sewage treatment and other systems in the oil and gas industry. The
successful launch of RTP fiberglass pipes production will diversify the
product categories of existing plastic pipes and open up a new
business line for the Group. In addition, the Group also launched fresh
air duct and stainless steel pipe products, which contributed to the
integrity and balance of the Group's development in the pipeline
industry, creating a complementarity to the Group’s leading position in
the domestic pipeline industry. In 2021, the Group will speed up the
new products development and cooperate with marketing
departments to carry out promotion work.

As a market leader, the Group is committed to broadening the scope
of applications of plastic piping systems in all aspects. In view of the
huge market demand in the agricultural sector, the Group actively
expanded business in this sector and further extended the scope of
the main business and application areas of plastic pipes to releases its
market potential. After more than a year of development, the Group's
agricultural business currently covers a broad range of segments,
including facility agriculture, marine aquaculture, and flower planting.
Through in-depth R&D work, the Group successfully launched products
for emerging market such as agriculture and deep-water aquaculture,
further enriching its income sources. In January 2020, China Lesso and
Guangdong Academy of Agricultural Sciences signed a strategic
cooperation agreement to jointly establish Lesso Modern Agriculture
Research Institute to carry out technological innovation and full-
process technical services, and to provide comprehensive policies and
plans for the Group's development of modern agriculture. In the
future, the Group will vigorously diversify the agricultural business,
ramp up investment in agricultural facilities, and strive to create an
integrated industrial value chain of modern agriculture in China that
encompasses modern agricultural facility engineering, water-saving
irrigation systems, cage farming, family leisure agriculture and the
planting of flower and fruits. Backed up by science and technology to
serve agricultural reforms, the Group will contribute to the promotion
of rural revitalisation, and turn into the fast lane of agricultural
development.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

Under the implementation of the “New Infrastructure, New
Urbanisation Initiatives and Major Projects” in China, the Group has
been actively seizing the development opportunities in the market of
plastic pipes and pipe fittings. Leveraging its strong competitiveness,
extensive market coverage, quality products and service capabilities,
after its success in winning a tender of the construction of Xiongan
Civic Center project, the Group once again won the tender for the Pipe
Gallery project in Xiongan New Area, aiming to provide green and
efficient urban smart pipe gallery solutions and products with “Xiongan
Quality”, and establish a national exemplary project called “Xiongan
Model”. The Group also participated in the municipal road project in
the Sanyuan High-tech Zone in Shaanxi, providing strong support for
the construction of the underground pipeline network in the area. As
for the project in Washixia Town, Ruogiang County, Xinjiang, the
Group's first large-scale heating project in the northwest region, the
Group provided pipeline products to effectively support the smooth
progress of the construction of the project, and escort the construction
and transformation of the secondary pipe network for central heating.

The Group signed strategic cooperation framework agreements with
various branches of national bureaus during the year to unite efforts for
national construction and jointly make greater contributions to the
promotion of urban development. In addition, the Group is seeking
prospective partners in a bid to further consolidate its market leadership.
During the year, it has established strategic partnerships with a number
of private enterprises to promote diversified cooperation, give full play
to brand synergies, and create mutual benefits and a win-win situation.

The Group will actively expand overseas markets with a focus on the
Southeast Asian markets, so as to tap the huge local demand of the
region’s market and capitalise on the local infrastructure development.
In order to further enhance the competitiveness and influence of China
Lesso in overseas markets, the Group is committed to scaling up
overseas production. The Group's existing production base in
Indonesia has been in operation, and the construction of another
production base is currently underway. The production base in
Cambodia is also under planning. In conclusion, the Group will speed
up the development of production bases in overseas markets such as
Thailand and the Philippines to seize the opportunities of the Belt and
Road Initiative. Overall, the management is fully confident about the
future development of the plastic piping system business and believes
that it will continue to perform well.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

BUILDING MATERIALS AND INTERIOR DECORATION
PRODUCTS

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic in the first half of 2020, property sales
in China market were severely affected. With the gradual easing of the
domestic pandemic and the more flexible implementation of “City-
specific Policies” by local governments, the pent-up demand for
housing properties has been effectively unlocked, and the real estate
market has gradually recovered, which has brought stable demand for
the industry of building materials and interior decoration products.
Furthermore, the Group is committed to optimising sales channels and
actively capturing the business opportunities arising from the real
estate sector’s shift towards the bulk purchasing model. After more
than a year of practice, satisfactory results have been achieved. In an
effort to boost the growth of its businesses of building materials and
interior decoration products, the Group also launched prefabricated
building products and construction equipment during the year, which
not only conform to the general trend toward building assembly, but
also embody the concept of environmental protection and reduction
of construction waste. These efforts reflected the Group's pursue of
green development and fulfillment of its social responsibilities. In
August 2020, the Group launched a smart home production project in
Shandong, marking an acceleration in the application of the new-
generation of information technology in the home furnishing industry,
and injecting new impetus into China Lesso’s in-depth development in
the smart home market. The project will introduce the world’s leading
automated production line and an intelligent system of supporting
software management to build an industry-leading high-end home
furnishing and wood industry factory. Upon the completion of the
factory, it will be capable of producing 600,000 sets of high-end smart
home furnishing products annually, which will help the Group to gain
more market share in the smart home segment. During the reporting
period, the Group's building materials and interior decoration products
business recorded revenue of RMB1,997 million, accounting for 7.1% of
the Group's total revenue. In 2021, with the primary goal of seizing the
market, the Group will timely adjust the price of building materials and
interior decoration products to keep pace with the market. The Group
will continue to strengthen its partnerships with large real estate
developers while actively consolidating its relation with existing
customers. It will provide a diverse range of products and high-quality
services to boost sales revenue. Benefiting from the key construction
policies for the initiative of “New Infrastructure, New Urbanisation
Initiatives and Major Projects”and the on-going progress of China’s
new model of urbanisation, the Group is expected to further enhance
synergies between its businesses of building materials and interior
decoration products and other business segments, and drive the
steady development of this business sector.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

OTHERS

Environmental Protection Business

The Chinese government has issued a series of environmental
protection policies in recent years to support the development of the
environmental protection industry. In view of this, the Group actively
responded to the government’s call for environmental protection, and
vigorously develops the environmental protection business segment,
which covers consulting, design, operation and maintenance,
engineering management, environmental protection testing, and
hazardous solid waste treatment. The Group has achieved long-term
synergies between the environmental protection business and plastic
pipe system business, benefitting from the growing demand for plastic
pipes and pipe fittings from municipal projects in different fields.
During the reporting period, this environmental protection business
delivered a revenue of RMB354 million. The Group made preparations
to establish hazardous solid waste treatment centers in Heshan and
Yunfu, Guangdong, to further consolidate and expand its market share.
The Group will strive to be innovative, pragmatic and enterprising, and
continue to invest in R&D. While maintaining the steady development
of its existing environmental protection business, the Group is
committed to expanding the hazardous solid waste treatment business.
Furthermore, the Group will explore opportunities for mergers and
acquisitions to provide new impetus for future growth drivers.

Supply Chain Service Platform Business

In line with the Chinese government’s “Belt and Road Initiative”, the
Group has extended its footprint of the supply chain service platform
business for "One-Stop Specialty Market for Home Furnishing and
Consumer Products” to overseas markets, with its focus on the
Southeast Asian market. The Group has established a multinational
platform for manufacturers of home furnishings, building materials and
consumer goods in China to showcase their products and promote
product distribution and retail, and provide ancillary services such as
marketing, branding, e-commerce needs, consulting, and formulating
development plans. As the supply chain service platform business is
still at early stage of development, during the reporting period, the
revenue from this business was RMB689 million. In the future, the
Group will further boost the distribution network for its supply chain
service platform business in Southeast Asia and seize development
opportunities. The Group strives to make the supply chain service
platform business become a new growth driver for the long-term
development of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the reporting period, the Group's capital expenditure was
approximately RMB2,740 million, which was primarily used for
improvement of automated facilities in production bases, expansion of
the existing production bases, acquisition of industrial land in Jiangxi,
construction of certain investment properties and the facilities acquired
in business combination.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group continued to adopt prudent financial policies. Finance, fund
utilisation and fund raising activities of the Group are subject to
effective centralised management and supervision. The Group keeps
reasonable gearing level and adequate liquidity.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total debts (i.e.
borrowings, lease liabilities and debt component of convertible loans)
of RMB16,236 million, of which 47.0% was denominated in US dollar,
25.1% was denominated in HK dollar, 22.2% was denominated in RMB,
4.7% was denominated in Australian dollar, 0.8% was denominated in
Canadian dollar and 0.2% was denominated in other currencies. Other
than the outstanding convertible loans of approximately US$96 million
at effective interest rates of 4.50% and 5.53% per annum and due in
2022, the Group's borrowings are subject to effective interest rates
ranging from 1.08% to 7.60% per annum with maturity periods ranging
from within one year to more than five years. The Group’s Gearing
Ratio stood at a healthy level of 44.4%.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's total equity increased
to RMB20,354 million. The Group’s current assets and current liabilities
were RMB19,669 million and RMB16,058 million respectively. The
Group's Current Ratio and Quick Ratio increased to 1.22 and 0.91 from
0.86 and 0.67 as at 31 December 2019, respectively.

The Board believes the Group will be able to continue to generate
positive cash flows from its operations. With cash and bank deposits,
including restricted cash, of RMB7,447 million as well as unutilised
banking facilities, the Board considers that the Group has sufficient
working capital for its operation and future development.

The Group had no material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation
and no hedging had been arranged during the period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the secured bank loans are secured
by leasehold lands and buildings of subsidiaries, machineries and
equipment of a subsidiary, investment property of a subsidiary, loan
receivables of a subsidiary, concession rights of a subsidiary and
personal guarantee provided by a shareholder of that subsidiary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group employed a total of
approximately 16,300 employees including directors. Total staff costs
were RMB1,373 million during the reporting period. The Group ensures
that the remuneration packages for employees are determined based
on their work performance, professional experience and the prevailing
industry practice. Discretionary year-end bonus and shares award may
be distributed to employees based on individual performance. Other
benefits to employees include medical insurance, retirement scheme
and training programmes.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Given the increasing trend in using aluminium profiles as major
construction materials in the PRC, the Group acquired a 26.28% equity
interest in Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“Xingfa Aluminium”),
the issued shares of which is listed on the Stock Exchange, in 2018 at a
consideration of HK$974 million. Xingfa Aluminium is one of the
leading aluminium profile manufacturers in China. The Group considers
Xingfa Aluminium not only serves as a valuable investment with
sustainable returns, but also as a good strategic investment. With
extensive experience in the business of construction materials and
industrial materials, Xingfa Aluminium has established various kinds of
sales channels and a diverse customer base. The acquisition may
create long-term commercial synergies with the Group's businesses to
broaden its sales channels and expand its customer base, and enrich
the Group's already comprehensive portfolio of products and services.
This can facilitate the Group’s business diversification and reinforce its
market leadership. During the reporting period, Xingfa Aluminium
recorded a revenue of RMB11,887 million, and profit attributable to the
shareholders of Xingfa Aluminium was RMB765 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (Continued)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment properties
were approximately RMB6,974 million. Increase in investment
properties was mainly attributable to the capitalisation of construction
costs on certain investment properties under development and the
translation difference during the reporting period.

Among these investment properties, the properties in Toronto,
Canada, Long Island, US and Auburn district of Sydney are existing
properties; the construction of first-phase projects in Thailand,
Myanmar and Indonesia have completed; and other properties are
under rezoning or at the planning stage of development.

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held long-term and short-term
financial investments of approximately RMB2,681 million (2019:
RMB1,771 million) and RMB25 million (2019: RMB8 million),
respectively. The investment portfolio comprised of 77.4% in listed
equity securities (issued by PRC-based companies of: home
improvement and furnishings shopping malls operating, battery
technology, chemical and property management), 2.0% in listed debt
securities, 0.7% in stock funds and 19.9% in unlisted securities. Each of
these investments has a carrying amount accounting to less than 5% of
the Group's total assets as at 31 December 2020.

During the reporting period, the Group recognised a realised disposal
gain of approximately RMB9 million, unrealised mark-to-market
valuation gain of approximately RMB344 million due to volatility of the
global capital market and recognised approximately RMB45 million of
exchange loss on translation. Income from the portfolio amounted to
approximately RMB65 million in the reporting period, representing
dividend and interest incomes.

The Group will study the market and information of the prospective
investees cautiously before it makes its investment decisions. The
Group will also monitor the performance of its investees closely and
regularly after purchases and will adjust the investment strategy in a
cautious manner to minimise the impact of market volatility on the
Group as and when necessary.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant
investments at the end of the reporting period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

ENVIRONMENT

Environmental protection is always a top priority of China Lesso, and
the concepts of low carbon and environmental protection are
integrated into its whole operational process. The Group has applied
the ideas of going green and environmental protection throughout its
product design, research and development, production and practical
operations, and has adopted a variety of eco-friendly measures to
minimise impact on the environment. On top of that, the Group
supports the development of environmental protection industry and is
committed to water treatment and modern agriculture construction,
and has created a sustainable and eco-friendly industrial chain from
environmental protection consultation, environmental assessment,
design, construction and operation of environmental protection plans
to financing support. In addition, the Group establishes a complete
environmental management system, continues to improve criteria and
measures concerning management of environmental protection,
adopts a more simplified operating process and energy-efficient
hardware to reduce consumption of energy and water resources,
increases benefits from resource consumption, reduces wastes
emissions and enhances recycling.

The Group complies with laws and regulations governing air pollution,
noise emission, solid waste discharge, and other environmental
protection issues in China. The environmental management and
compliance department work together with the legal department to
ensure the Group will keep abreast of the latest development on

environment-related laws and regulations.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

China Lesso takes an active part in community investment and public
welfare and provides care for underprivileged groups in the society,
aiming to apply its influence, bring positive changes to the
communities where it operates, and maintain sound relations with the
communities where it operates. Further, the Group actively supports
the development of education in poverty-stricken areas and
encourages its employees to serve the community as volunteers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

EMPLOYEE

China Lesso recognises employees as one of its most important assets.
In strict compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, the
Group protects the legitimate rights and interests of its employees and
fixes on its pay system based on the principles of legality, equity,
fairness and encouragement so as to ensure an equal access to fair
treatment and career opportunities. In addition, the Group has
formulated its own health and safety policies, intensified safety training
for employees, carried out routine safety patrols and actively pushed
forward with relevant management system building for the purpose of
creating a safe working environment for its employees, achieving a
work-life balance for its employees through diverse activities.

With great emphasis on career development of its employees, the
Group is committed to creating diversified and comprehensive
development channels for its employees by offering a series of training
programs and regular lectures on safety and health through its own
Lesso College.

CUSTOMER AND SUPPLIER

China Lesso has strived to maintain uninterrupted communications
with its suppliers for win-win results based on the procurement
principles of fairness, openness and impartiality. The Group has put in
place a “Supplier Management System” and conducts regular
performance evaluation of its suppliers. The Group has formulated a
management system, a reporting process and set up a management
team against malpractices in an effort to oversee behaviour of all its
employees and protect the interests and rights of the Company and its
shareholders. With respect to customer services and management, the
Group upholds the “market-oriented, customer-centred” principle and
adopts strict control over product quality. The Group is committed to
providing its customers with safe, reliable and quality products.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

ERTWE

Set out below is the report presented by the Board together with the
Group's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are
set out in notes 44, 17 and 18 respectively to consolidated financial
statements. Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's business,
the Group's environmental policies can be found in the “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Corporate Governance Report” and "Management
Discussion and Analysis”. This discussion forms part of the Directors’
Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 82 to 213.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK38
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Proposed
Final Dividend”) to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 25 June 2021, subject
to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 15 June 2021 (the
"2021 AGM"). It is expected that the Proposed Final Dividend will be
paid on Monday, 19 July 2021.

Including the interim dividend of HK12 cents per share (2019: HK12
cents per share) for the six months ended 30 June 2020 which was paid
to the Shareholders on 28 September 2020, the total dividend for 2020
amounts to a total of HK50 cents per share (2019: HK40 cents per
share), which represents a payout ratio of 34.8% (2019: 36.8%) of the
profit attributable to the Shareholders for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(A) FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND

(B)

AND VOTE AT THE 2021 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 10 June 2021 to Tuesday, 15 June 2021, both dates
inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the 2021 AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 9 June 2021.

FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO THE
PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 23 June 2021 to Friday, 25 June 2021, both dates
inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the Proposed
Final Dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 22 June 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND PERMITTED
INDEMNITY PROVISION

Principal corporate governance practices and permitted indemnity

provision adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 16 to 42.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for the past five

financial years, as extracted from audited consolidated financial

statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page

3. The summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BEERE

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group’s major properties are set out on pages 214 to
217.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 34 to consolidated financial statements.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

The details of acquisition of subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB3,233 million (2019: RMB2,935 million). The amount
of RMB1,906 million (2019: RMB1,906 million) represented the
Company'’s share premium which may be distributable provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total turnover attributable
to the Group's five largest customers was less than 3.1% of the Group's
total turnover. The total purchase attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers was 39.5% of the Group's total purchases and the
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
27.7%.

At no time during the year did the directors, their close associates or
any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial
interests in these suppliers or customers referred to above.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group's charitable donations were approximately
RMB11.08 million (2019: RMB7.48 million).
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

DIRECTORS

Directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report are
as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaogquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

Mr. Cheng Dickson

Ms. Lu Jiandong

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

(appointed on 1 September 2020)
(resigned on 1 September 2020)

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the articles of association of the Company,
Ms. Lu Jiandong shall retire from office at the 2021 AGM and, being
eligible, offer herself for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Luo Jianfeng, Mr. Lin Dewei, Ms. Lan Fang and Dr. Tao Zhigang
are subject to retirement by rotation at the 2020 AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 9 to 14.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2021 AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EETRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

EERTHARRKRS - HERD R
EEIFNEENKXR

MR2020F 12318 » ARARESRITHBER
A Ak B AT AR B A B (38 55 R BR & 160 28 XV
HrmERR) kG - BERGO REEREFHESIR
BEHF M EEDFE32EARER TTEE’K{(

Efit R aCeR - SURBIRETRIABAAR
R REE FORBIAT

Number and capacity of shares of the Company interested @

FREESEROBERMEE

Interests of
spouse

Beneficial
owner

BEERA BEEDS

Percentage of

the issued

Other
interests

share capital of

Total the Company
BEAT
ERITRA

Hitofgss NEDE

Wong Luen Hei - 2,308,000 (L)@ 2,122,485,000 (L) ©'@ 2,124,793,000 (L) 68.49%
EHiE
Zuo Xiaoping 2,308,000 (L)© - 2,122,485,000 (L) ®@ 2,124,793,000 (L) 68.49%
TE%
Zuo Manlun 4,642,000 (L) - - 4,642,000 (L) 0.15%
Liwfta
Luo Jianfeng 1,927,000 (L) - - 1,927,000 (L) 0.06%
Bk

Note: 5T

(a) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities. (a) FHL] IBEZATRZSELFNTR

(b) These shares of the Company are held by New Fortune, which was wholly-owned by (b) ZEARPNTBRNDEBFZENEE - X 2A0HAEEESD

Xi Xi Development and ultimately owned by UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited, as trustee
of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”), the settlor of which is Mr. Wong Luen Hei (“Mr.
Wong"). The discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust included Mr. Wong and his
family members. Both Mr. Wong and Ms. Zuo Xiaoping are taken to be interested in
the said shares of the Company held by the Trust under the SFO.

(c) Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is directly holding 2,308,000 shares of the Company. Mr. Wong is
the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, and therefore Mr. Wong is deemed to be
interested in such shares of the Company in which Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is interested by
virtue of the SFO.

(d) These shares related to the same block of shares in the Company as set out in note (b)
above.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS PURSUANT TO SFO

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholders Capacity

RREE 514
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited Trustee
UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited ERN
Xi Xi Development Interests of controlled corporation
ARERE A EER
New Fortune Beneficial owner
FEE EmfEAA
Note:
(a) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.
(b) These shares relate to the same block of shares in the Company as those set out in

note (b) in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short

Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the directors of the
Company were not aware of any person or corporation (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had any interests or
short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

BEFEEWmE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the reporting
period.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 28 August 2018, the Company adopted a share award scheme (the
"Scheme”) to recognise the contributions by certain eligible persons
to the Group and to offer suitable incentives to attract and retain
targeted talent and personnel for the continual operation and future
development of the Group. On 29 November 2018, a trust deed (the
“Trust Deed”) was entered into between the Company as settlor and
Computershare Hong Kong Trustees Limited as trustee (the “Trustee”)
in relation to the establishment of a trust (the “Trust”). Pursuant to the
rules of the Scheme, Shares will be purchased by the Trustee from the
open market out of cash contributed by the Company, and shall not
exceed HK$750 million and be held on trust for the selected
participants until such Shares are vested with the relevant selected
participants in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The Scheme is
a discretionary scheme of the Company and shall be subject to the
administration of the Board and the Trustee in accordance with the
rules of the Scheme and the Trust Deed. The Scheme does not
constitute a share option scheme within the meaning of Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules. The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years since the date of adoption of the Scheme. Early termination of
the Scheme may be elected by the Board, provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of any selected
participants. For details, please refer to the announcement made by
the Company on 28 August 2018. Since the date of adoption of the
Scheme and up to the date of this report, no shares have been
awarded under the Scheme. As at 31 December 2020, there were
22,991,000 shares held in the Trust under the Scheme.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme"”) was conditionally
approved by resolutions of the Shareholders on 14 May 2010 for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations and the
summary of terms of such Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the
Company's prospectus dated 9 June 2010. No share options have
been granted under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption. The
share option scheme was expired during the reporting period.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any director of the Company or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, its holding company and any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company or an entity connected with
him had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

None of the directors or substantial shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group. New
Fortune (the “Controlling Shareholder”, being a company holding
approximately 68.41% of the issued share capital of the Company, and
is ultimately held by the trust the founder of which is Mr. Wong Luen
Hei, and the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Wong Luen Hei and his
family) has entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the
Group with Mr. Wong Luen Hei dated 14 May 2010 (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”).

The directors are of the view that the Group’s measures adopted by
the Company in respect of the enforceability of the Deed of Non-
Competition are adequate to safeguard the effectiveness of the non-
competition undertakings. The independent non-executive directors
have reviewed the compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition. Based
on the confirmation from the Controlling Shareholder, the independent
non-executive directors are of the view that the Deed of Non-
Competition has been complied with and has been effectively
enforced.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND B

B AI%13.181K K %13.21
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES 1&RAE E

EmR
H R &

(A)

68

On 6 May 2019, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement (the
“Convertible Loan Facilities Agreement”) in relation to

(A)

%2019%5)%65 ARB](FERERA) K
2EMBRR(ER/BRA)FTL—HE
%75 FRZR 3% P BB E s

convertible loan facilities in the aggregate amount of US$100 (T EFRmEE]) - S HERME AR
million at an interest rate of 3% per annum with the lender. The BEHBAMmMS © AZEEIREBE1E 361EA
final maturity date in respect of each facility is the date which is FIEHE -

36 months after the date of the utilisation of that facility.

Pursuant to the Convertible Loan Facilities Agreement, it is
required that as at the date of the Convertible Loan Facilities
Agreement, the date of each utilisation request and the first day
of each interest period with respect to the relevant facility, (i) the
Wong Family must beneficially own (whether directly or indirectly)
in aggregate at least 51% of the issued share capital of the
Company and such share capital cannot be subject to any
security or quasi-security, and (i) the Company must beneficially
own, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of the total number of
issued shares of the borrower. Otherwise, a failure to do so will
be deemed an event of default under the Convertible Loan
Facilities Agreement.

On 30 July 2019, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement”) in relation to dual currency syndicated
term loan and revolving credit facilities in the equivalent amount
of US$900 million at an interest rate of LIBOR/HIBOR plus 1.60%
per annum with syndicate lenders. The final maturity date under
the Facility Agreement is the date falling 48 months after the first
utilisation date.

RIEAT R ERBE R HATE R BRKRE
HEEHEAS  RAERENSREREX
HEREMEHER  ((ERKREA(EE
iﬁ@fﬁ*%ﬁ$@7€%ﬁk$mﬂﬁ
D51% - BABIRATE A K ek IR
PR I - u$@‘hxéﬁfiﬁ§>gﬁ
%ﬁF%AE%ﬁ&P%%ZEQM%
EU %Wﬁ%Tﬁ%EﬁﬂémmﬁTmL
BB

BR2019%F7 4308 + KA (fEAERA)
REZ2EWBAR(EBERA) BEEER
AN —BEEREET  FNRARBH
RITRIERE BBRITREREI1.60%
mﬁ%ﬁéiﬂﬁa&ﬁm:ﬁﬂézﬂé
R ((BmERE]) - BEBEETHREER
%EEEMQ%QE%MHQWE%O

On 23 October 2019, a syndication and amendment agreement R2019F 10 H23 0 - AR E H=aRE
(the “Syndication and Amendment Agreement”) in relation to the N CHNE N E A CHY E L)

Facility Agreement was entered into by, among others, the
guarantor and the borrower. Subject to the terms and conditions
of the Syndication and Amendment Agreement, the number of
syndicate lenders will be increased and the total commitment
under the facilities will be increased to the equivalent amount of
US$1,100 million. Save for the aforesaid amendment and
supplement, all other major terms of the Facility Agreement
remain in full force and effect.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement (as amended by the
Syndication and Amendment Agreement), the Wong Family shall

B)ERABERAGTL - REBERE R E J
15 a8 B 6K K (61 - SREIE R A BLE 5
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collectively maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of RRABEBITRAZD 1% E m RIE (155
beneficial shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the DEI%H)RAME) - BRI BRESEE D

Company, carrying at least 51% of the voting rights, free from any
security. Otherwise, a failure to do so will be deemed an event of
default under the Facility Agreement.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, certain of the related party

transactions as disclosed in note 40 to consolidated financial

statements also constitute connected transactions or continuing

connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules and

satisfied relevant disclosure requirements thereof. Details of the non-

exempt connected transactions or continuing connected transactions

are summarised below:

(A) PURCHASE OF MACHINERY

Background:

Nature of transactions:

Terms:

Annual Cap:

Total consideration
paid for the year:

On 29 December 2017, the Company
entered into a framework machinery
purchase agreement (the
“"Framework Agreement”) with
Guangdong Liansu Machinery for 3
years commencing from 1 January
2018 and ending on 31 December
2020. For details, please refer to the
announcement made by the
Company on 29 December 2017.

Particulars of the Framework
Agreement are disclosed below as
required under the Listing Rules:

Purchase of machinery from
Guangdong Liansu Machinery.

The purchase price to be agreed
between the parties which shall not

exceed the prevailing market price.

RMB150 million (for the year ended
31 December 2020)

RMB148 million
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

BEFEEWmE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B) ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 5 November 2020, Guangzhou KingHing Construction
Technology Ltd. (the “Purchaser”) (a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into the sale and purchase agreement
with the vendors (comprising (i) Foshan Star Excel Property
Development Co., Ltd. (a company indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (the chairman of the Company, an executive
Director and the controlling Shareholder)), (ii) Mr. Lin Dewei, an
executive Director of the Company and (iii) Mr. Huang Zhuoxing,
a director and supervisor of certain insignificant subsidiaries of
the Group) (collectively, the “Vendors”) and Guangdong
Lingsheng Prefabricated Building Technology Co., Ltd. (the
“Target Company”), pursuant to which the Vendors have agreed
to sell, and the Purchaser has agreed to acquire, 55% equity
interest of the Target Company for an aggregate consideration
of approximately RMB39 million. At the end of the reporting
period, the Target Company has become a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. For details, please refer to the
announcements made by the Company on 5 and 6 November
2020.

(C) RENEWAL OF EXISTING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Purchase of Machinery

As the Framework Agreement as set out in section (A) above, will
expire on 31 December 2020. On 28 December 2020, the
Company entered into the new machinery purchase agreement
with Guangdong Liansu Machinery in relation to the possible
purchase of machinery by the Group from Guangdong Liansu
Machinery for 3 years commencing from 1 January 2021 and
ending on 31 December 2023, at a price not exceeding the price
offered to the Group by any independent third parties. The
annual machinery purchase caps for the years ending 31
December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023, shall
not exceed RMB190 million, RMB220 million and RMB250 million
respectively. For details, please refer to the announcement made
by the Company on 28 December 2020.

The Company has followed the pricing policies and guidelines when
determining the price and terms of the connected transactions during
the year. The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors have, for the purpose of Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed all continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that all continuing connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of its business; (i) on normal commercial terms; and
(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information , and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company’s auditor issued an unqualified letter
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of
the said letter to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 40 to
consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information obtained by the Company
and to the best knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float required
under in the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2021 AGM to re-appoint Ernst &
Young as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zuo Manlun
Chief Executive and Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BN 2 AR S

e
EY:

To the shareholders of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Lesso
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 82 to 213, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

B EIXEE ()

Key audit matter
HREZEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MEHERERER

B SR KRB e B E R

Provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan receivables

At 31 December 2020, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of RMB3,850,194,000, net of provision for
impairment of RMB263,527,000, and loan receivables of
RMB1,014,650,000, net of provision for impairment of
RMB207,745,000, which in aggregate accounted for 10.46%
of the total assets. The assessment of impairment of such
trade and bills receivables and loan receivables was
considered to be a matter of most significance as it required
the application of judgement and use of subjective
assumptions by management.

R2020F12A31H - ERENESREFEMZRE@E
AN ERHE3,850,194,0007T - ZEEEBEANBREEREARE
263,527,0007C 2 & 2 #RER - MEREREEESARE
1,014,6500007T Z B EEAMBREREEBEARE
207,745,000 2 & 2 888 - A RIEEERLTRN10.46% ° AR
B HRRFIERRENERE R REN HHEEREFEL
HET LR EERR - WERAREENEIR -

HKFRS 9 requires that the impairment of financial assets
should be measured by "expected credit loss” ("ECL")
model. In order to measure the impairment of trade and bills
receivables and loan receivables under HKFRS 9,
management should use judgement, assumptions and
estimation techniques in aspects such as judging significant
increase in credit risk, estimating the parameters for
measuring ECL and determining the forward-looking
adjustments.

ERVBRELERNEORRE - REEMNRERA TTRHE
EEBI([EREEBRDELGE - RREFEMBEHREE
AR EE HRKFIERFEMEKERNRE  E18
RN %Z 7 | (st E E R BRI INIEL #Er - statETEH
FEEBEN2BEL A RETHR AR EMRHE - BR
KAhE A

Our audit procedures included among others:

BAMEZREZFBE(ETRR)

(i)

(i)

Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the
design and implementation of key controls relating
to approval, post approval monitoring, the credit
grading management, and loan impairment
assessment. We adopted a risk-based sampling
approach in our tests of the allowances for
impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan
receivables;

FHE MBS EEL  EHRER  EEFRERER
B FORERT (477 A B R BB I B9 BR FT R BITAK
e BTN E 5 FEWRIA K 5 M e U E BORE
BEAERBIARR SERREE

Selected samples of performing loans considering
size, risk factors, industry trends for our tests on the
measurement of impairment;

ZREANN  AREAR TXBZEREK - ER
BHERNERANASRETE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

B AR S

FRREZEE ®)

Key audit matter
BREKRSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MEHERERER

B S IE R IR I IE M & SR R (7 e ()

Provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan receivables (Continued)

The accounting policies, disclosures of the allowance for
impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan
receivables and the related credit risk are included in notes
2.4, 3, 20 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
BRAGFTBUER - B 5 FEWEIE R 150 FE U 18 FOR B B LA
LEBAEERBNEBHNGEMBMEMT24 3201
24 °

(iii)

(iv)

Evaluated and tested the important parameters of
the expected credit loss model, management's
major judgements and related assumptions, mainly
focusing on the following aspects:
HEMASAEREERRRANEEZ2H  BEE
TEHERBERER  TEF AT TE

J Assessing the rationality of the expected
credit loss model methodology and related
parameters, including default probability,
default loss rate, risk exposure, and significant
increase in credit risk;
AETEREEBRREI AN A2 B (BEE
AR - BHBREAX . Rk LEERR AR
) AR

o Assessing the management'’s consideration of
forward-looking adjustment information when
determining expected credit losses, including
the use of macroeconomic information, the
judgement of adjustments, and the
reasonableness of reviews; and
AHEEREEREE RHIE S B R ATE
EENNZE(BRZBKBEEANNER - 3§
EeHE R EHOSEN) &

on| OH]

Assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosure of
the allowance for impairment of trade and bills
receivables and loan receivables and the related
credit risk.

il ERERE S R KRR KR E A E WS FOR
BEREUMEAGEERROBEENT ML -
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B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

B EIXEE ()

Key audit matter
BREKRSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MAEHERERER

RERESIABFRE R ER

Provision for impairment of manufacturing and trading related inventories

At 31 December 2020, the Group had manufacturing and
trading inventories of RMB4,577,047,000, net of provision for
impairment of RMB214,768,000, which represented 9.84% of
the total assets. The provision for impairment mainly related
to certain obsolete and slow-moving inventories. We focused
on this area because these inventories are material to the
Group and the provision for impairment of inventories
involves a high level of management’s judgement and
estimate.

M2020F12A310 - ERERENEGFERAERAR
#4577,0470007 ZHEEESMBERERBARE
214,768,000 7T 2 & 7 #1780 - (h & E B TR 9.84% o 2R BB
BERANETERLFHEFERE - HFIEREIZRE
EHRNZEGEHR EXESEREGEREREBEIRSE
BB HIET AN o

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 22.
RERE MR N RBEEES RN E24 - 3% 22

Our audit procedures included among others:

LM EZREF % (BETRR) -

0]

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Evaluated, amongst others, the analyses and
assessments made by management with respect to
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, including
market values and expected selling prices of the
related inventories and the Group's future plan of
usage or sale;

HE(EhER) EEERBER FHEFEELND
Tk BEAEFENTEREREE U
K BEBEORKERLEEE

Assessed the reliability of the underlying data used
by management in calculating the production
related inventory provisions such as the inventory
ageing reports, by re-performing the ageing
calculation generated by the system;
ENMFERREENFH(WEFEFHRE) - UG
HEEERRTEEERBFERENRREER A
It

Tested the accuracy of the management'’s
calculation by assessing the calculation criteria and
recalculating the provision; and

R ERENENRA T E S WARERERE
EVEREN

Evaluated, based on a sample of production related
inventories, the analyses performed by
management regarding the net realisable values of
the production related inventories.
MERELEENRBETS  UIAEEEEHALEEM
B AR R ER DT -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

B AR S

R EIXEE ()

Key audit matter
HREKRSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MAEHERERER

Valuation of investment properties

REYZE A TE

At 31 December 2020, the Group had investment properties
of RMB6,973,570,000 which represented 14.99% of the total
assets and were measured at fair value. The valuation of the
investment properties is important to our audit as it
represents a significant judgement area and an important
part of the total assets of the Group. Management employed
independent qualified valuers to assess the fair value. The
valuation of the investment properties is highly dependent
on a range of estimates made by the management.
M2020F12A31H » ERENRENXEAESARE
6,973,570,000 7 * {EEEBEN 14.9% WIZ AR BEFE -
HRREMERESRERABARES SSEEERLENE
BEME D MREEHRMAEEZZEERN - EREREAS
UREEBRNGEMAGERIABE - REMELESEKE
EREEHE— R (EETEE -

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 14.

REFAMBERRANEBRESRNME24 3R 14

Our audit procedures included among others:

R EZREF % (BETRR)

()  Considered the objectivity, independence and
expertise of the professional valuers;

ZREXMEMOFTEE  BIMERBENE

(i) Assessed the appropriateness of the property
related data, which have been used as input for the

valuations;

HEEREERABBENYEEBREZEAE

(i)  Engaged our internal specialists to assist us in
analysing the valuations and challenging the
underlying assumptions, such as the
appropriateness of comparable lands under the
sales comparison approach and capitalisation rate
and market rent under the income capitalisation
approach; and
ZERMER BB RM DT HE R EERBBERR -
BPInSHE LLEUE T Al & b L AR EANMEE T
MERMMLLERMISHESNEEE &

(iv) Focused on the adequacy and appropriateness of
the disclosures relating to the valuations of these
investment properties.
HEIRRSREMEGHERBRENREEER
1 o
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B AR S

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

B AR S

%%%ﬁ%&%é%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ

BAMER EHGRAMBERRBRES T FAE
B FFR R ME BN EABRBLRG A
RE THABRAMEENZEEMRS - M
EHZERBFEHRE BRI ZINARIRE FEE
A% AT ARENATEEMEMBA
TH ESREEARE -

BERBREDKFORE  BIERIERREL
BREAETHESRZ  EX - EAERRAFAE
4B BE B3R o SHRRPRAL AT LA R KGR S S8 AR 5 42 -
MRAEBHEMEBHERLERAEZERS
M mRERE KBRSV BRERELOEE
RTE - BIBRIRV SRR PRI AT R ARIEE K -

EREBESESEMETEZNBREY - BfIE
RTEXRFE - REFTEREREE - BT

o BAIMFHEBHRFFHERME R E W

BREFEEAFERRANAR - R RHTT
BZEF AR ELER - A RERTE M

HENEZERE  FREFMBERNER - &
REFErI e B R - s 28R E
RERA - SORERABERESIZ £ - BitbRag
HIMAMGFMEMNERFERR AN S
FARBE B4R R $7 5R T G B B A 38 SR PR A 1)
Rk -

o BHRERZAABEANIIES  URFTEER

EZER  BEMXFE BEREREES
MBERMEERER -

o HEEEHMEASHERNREERFHE
FHERHMMERREN IR -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Mee Kwan, Helena.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2021

B AR S
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

4= A
I N =]

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A3 BILFE

B M AM 2 EIE

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i h=a AR%T ARETIT
REVENUE PN 5 28,073,065 26,344,523
Cost of sales $HE Al AN (19,689,086) (18,807,404)
Gross profit EF 8,383,979 7,537,119
Other revenue, income and gains HA A ~ e R F = 5 509,187 483,390
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHBEX (1,264,143) (1,227,651)
Administrative expenses ITHHX (1,332,183) (1,263,440)
Impairment losses on financial TRNAENEENRE
and contract assets fE5i8 (56,439) (108,705)
Other expenses HbFs (1,255,349) (968,546)
Finance costs Bh & Ak AN 6 (435,892) (577,194)
Share of results of associates DIEEEE N T EE 203,233 105,895
Share of results of a joint venture DIEEELEES 18 1,167 1,053
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR R 7 4,753,560 3,981,921
Income tax expense s x 9 (996,171) (953,586)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 3,757,389 3,028,335
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hib 2wz
(EXPENSE) (BAx)
ltems that may be reclassified Higrlge B ERAE RSN
subsequently to profit or loss: A :
Debt instruments at fair value through BAnBEGFAEMEZEANES
other comprehensive income: MEKTA :
Changes in fair value NAEEE (8,393) 7,587
Reclassification adjustments for BB ERE
loss/(gain) on disposal included in GEBTZRANZ
the consolidated statement of profit HEksE,
or loss (FzR) 8,191 (7,587)
(202) -
Share of other comprehensive expense of oy — RS AR R EAM
an associate, net of tax FHEMAS (BEFE) (1,472) (196)
Exchange differences on translation of FEINE SRR E A HE S
foreign operations T 407,430 (27,660)
405,756 (27,856)
ltems that will not be reclassified to ERTeERE2EEN
profit or loss: HH ¢
Changes in fair value of equity BARBEFAEMEERE
instruments at fair value through MRATENAAREBE
other comprehensive income i 214,505 (252,571)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FREMZERE
(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR (B) 620,261 (280,427)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAZEKH
FOR THE YEAR R 4,377,650 2,747,908
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Re B LEM RS

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A31 B ILFE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Profit attributable to: AT FE(E R A -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ PN 3,750,829 3,024,701
Non-controlling interests FEd RS 6,560 3,634
3,757,389 3,028,335
Total comprehensive income AT EGEE2ERE
attributable to: 4EEE -
Owners of the Company iN/NCIEZ =N 4,338,754 2,733,430
Non-controlling interests JEd RS 38,896 14,478
4,377,650 2,747,908
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE &R F#HE AEG
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY BREAER
Basic and diluted EAR R s 1 RMB1.22 RMBO0.98

AR¥1.22t AR¥0987T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R e MBI R

As at 31 December 2020
M202012A31H

2020
RMB’'000

ARETR

2019
RMB'000
ARBTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKEE 12 9,900,108 9,394,821
Right-of-use assets TREEE 13A 2,036,052 1,614,395
Investment properties BREMHE 14 6,973,570 6,870,181
Deposits paid for the purchase of land, BELH WX BERRE

property, plant and equipment FrZfIeize 1,599,016 884,486
Goodwill [EES 15A 381,408 398,589
Other intangible assets Hibh & E 15B 380,929 336,109
Interests in associates REE S N AR 17 2,395,177 1,501,137
Interests in a joint venture N—EE L PENEDS 18 11,523 10,356
Other financial assets HEtheorEE 19 2,681,006 1,771,120
Loan receivables B FE TR 20 139,584 11,613
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 21 122,299 70,784
Contract assets EHEE 23 78,411 81,571
Deferred tax assets EERIRE = 32 159,888 108,301
Total non-current assets IEMBEEETE 26,858,971 23,053,463
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 7E 22 5,126,847 3,966,048
Contract assets BHEE 23 469,541 279,443
Other financial assets HibemEE 19 24,915 8,363
Loan receivables FEU &2 20 875,066 364,673
Trade and bills receivables B S EWHENEE 24 3,850,194 3,259,456
Prepayments, deposits and TR - e REMERK

other receivables TRIH 25 1,874,592 2,249,130
Cash and bank deposits RE RIBITER 26 7,447,436 7,604,221
Total current assets MENVEELBRR 19,668,591 17,731,334
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Contract liabilities AHEaE 23 1,528,934 1,725,300
Trade and bills payables Z I RENRIBEREE 27 5,678,208 5,829,534
Other payables and accruals Hih e RIBE R ESTE A 28 1,100,218 1,181,792
Tax payable JESRIE 322,283 289,958
Borrowings = 29 7,364,331 11,411,319
Lease liabilities HEAaE 13B 53,448 88,843
Other financial liabilities HEtherBE 31 10,960 -
Total current liabilities mENBEERE 16,058,382 20,526,746
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE (AF)EH 3,610,209 (2,795,412)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAERRE

LIABILITIES =R 30,469,180 20,258,051
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

fre IR

As at 31 December 2020
M2020 12 A31H

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEF
Borrowings I=E 29 8,082,154 1,267,061
Convertible loans AR E 30 627,362 652,595
Lease liabilities HEBRE 13B 108,868 117,281
Other long-term payables H i REAFE FRIE 16,953 106,093
Other financial liabilities Hibemas 31 70,266 14,360
Deferred tax liabilities EETIBAE 32 991,518 788,671
Deferred income TEIE U 25 33 217,937 217,594
Total non-current liabilities FRBABEEE 10,115,058 3,163,655
Net assets BEFR 20,354,122 17,094,396
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 34 135,344 135,344
Reserves HE 35 19,705,783 16,440,901
Equity attributable to owners ZAN/NSIE RS DN
of the Company s 19,841,127 16,576,245
Non-controlling interests JEFE = 512,995 518,151
Total equity AR 20,354,122 17,094,396
Wong Luen Hei Luo Jianfeng
Director Director
EF S

Annual Report 2020 43R 85
S —



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
I\‘/j—\ T '_/\/\/%Em%b%

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A3 BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRTREAEL
Shares held for Exchange  Convertible Non-
Share Share  share award Statutory Capital Merger Hedging Fairvale  fluctuation  loans equity Retained controlling Total
capital premium scheme reserve’! reserve®! reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
[yl
s MEE EXk®  TERER
kx f R ERREY BrERY AR HHER i 1] BHER RERH & FRbER EREE
. . . 3 .
A1 January 2019 ROWEIAIA 135,34 1905618 - 247,860 (51460) 5915 - (15,249 (167.21) - 11,002968 1480339 295% 15,072,865
Profitfor the year Egfl - - - - - - - - - - 3024701 3024701 3634 3028335
Other comprehensive expense ~ FMEMZE
forthe year B - - - - - - - (2525M) (38,700) - - (2m) 10844 (280421)
Totel comprehensieincome ~ FMZENE
forthe year L - - - - - - - (2525M1) (38,700) - 3,024,701 27340 14478 2747908
Acquisition of s
non-controlling interests - - - - (36,419) - - - - - - (36419 2361 (15,058)
Capital contributions from
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - - 0403 0403
Non-controling interests arising
from business combination - - - - - - - - - - - - 12612 12612
Disposal of subsicliries - - - - - - - - - - - - 9 9
Transfer of far vlue reserve upon
the disposal of equity
instruments at FVTOCI - - - - - - - (56,476) - - 56476 - - -
Issuance of convertole loans
note 30) - - - - - - - - - 27,605 - 27,605 - 2,805
Dividends recognised as
distributions to owners (note 10) - - - - - - - - - - (866871) (866871 - (866,871)
Shares purchased for share award i
scheme (note 36(B)) - - (85440) - - - - - - - - (85440) - (85440)
Share of capital resemve of A 15 REEAT —IFﬂﬁI
an associate (8 - - - - o1 - - - - - - 61 - o1t
Agpropriation tostatutory resenve. ERZETEE - - - 21854 - - - - - - (221,654) - - -
At31 December 2019 and ROWERANRR
1 January 2020 ANE1R18 135,34 1905,618° (85,4407 2209514 (87,2687 5515 - (384,292¢ (205,971 27405 1295620 16,576,245 518151 17,094,39%
Profitfor the year EfET = o - - - - - - - - 3,750,829 3,750,829 6,560 3,757,389
Other comprehensive EMEEE
income for the year g - - - - - - (1,269) 214,303 374,891 - - 587,925 32,336 620,261
Total comprehensive income 2 ENE
forthe year a8 - - - - - - (1,269) 214,303 374,891 - 3,750,829 4,338,754 38,896 4,377,650
Acquisition of non-controlling Wz 4
interests - - - - 20,988 - - - - - - 20,988 (178,293) (157,305)

Capital contrbutions from
non-controlling interests
Non-controling interests arising
from business combination
[note 37) - - - - - - - - - - - - 58,197 58,197
Disposal of subsidiaries iﬁ HEAR - - - - - - - - = = = = m m
Transfer offair vlue reserve upon i%}“’ i i

. = = = = 5 5 . = . = = 76,169 76169

atFVTocCl
Dividends recognised as
distributions to owners (note 10)
Dividends recognised as
distrbutions to

. = = = s 5 5 (17489) . . 17,489 = = s

- - - - - - - - - - (1095414 (1,095414) - (1,095414)

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - - (118) (118
Share of capital resenve of
an assocate - - - - 554 - - - - - - 554 - 554

Appropriation o statutory reserve & - - - 244,297 - - - - - - (244,297) - - -
At31 December 2000 RAONF12A3NE 135,344 1,905,618 (85,4400 2513811° (65,726 5,515 (1,269 (187,478 168,920¢ 2,605 15424227 19841127 512995 20354122

~BREATNES

# These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB19,705,783,000 (2019:  * ZEREEBARAMBERRAERPRHBARE

RMB16,440,901,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 19,705,783,000 7T (2019 FF :+ A R ¥ 16,440,901,000 7T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Note:

In accordance with the Company Law of PRC, each of the Company's subsidiaries
registered in PRC is required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profit after
tax (after offsetting any prior years' losses) determined in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in PRC to the statutory reserve until the balance of
the reserve fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserve can be
utilised to offset prior years' losses or to increase capital, provided that the
remaining balance of the statutory reserve is not less than 25% of the registered

capital.

Capital reserve mainly represented the difference between the consideration and
the book value of the share of the net assets acquired in respect of the acquisition

of non-controlling interests.

GAEREDZ

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A31BILFE

BEFEARE  ARRARHEEMASHEMEBRRR
BEBEETEAREHRAUEENF ARG
(BB EMRBEFEBERR)MI%REETEHE B
RRESEHREIEEMERNS0% AL - EEREAA
RNRHBEFEBRIULE  MOETHBOBRTEHRT
BAREME AR 25% °

ARFREEREA BRI IR EEAREREEMR
BFEEREECHNERE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

E=AN DA B
,Z\vT\ S5IRE //|L£i§
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A3 BILFE

2020 2019
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
B s AR®T R ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReED
Profit before tax B A5 A A 4,753,560 3,981,921
Adjustments for: AT EIBIEHAE
Interest income A S 5 (171,112) (125,320)
Government grants released ERANBT B (12,384) (8,853)
Gain on fair value changes of financial instruments BARBEFTAEZNEH
at FVTPL TENRABEESFE 5 (129,294) (3,432)
Investment income HE W= 5 (17,550) (19,693)
Gain on disposal of associates HEBE AR 5 (1,438) -
Gain from a bargain purchase ZEBEWBMENE 5 (5,579) -
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets RIEEREEEMGN &S 5 (17) (5,992)
Interest expenses FEFX 6 435,892 577,194
Loss/(gain) on fair value changes of RENMENAEBER
investment properties B8/ (Flz) 7 157,263 (147,997)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HERRABEFARM
debt instruments FEREMESTA
at FVTOCI BB/ (Fz) 7 8,191 (7,587)
(Gain)/loss on fair value changes of other financial HEtesmaBAnEBE:
liabilities (M=), B8 7 (13,348) 7,768
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBLR (Fz),/ BE 7 (365) 8,324
Depreciation and amortisation mEREH 7 1,005,916 996,751
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value, net  #Fi 7 & & 0] 35 FE F 50 7 18,235 5,691
Loss on disposal of items of other intangible assets HEHMENEENYE -
and property, plant and equipment [ &R T8 B /B 18 7 8,257 14,575
Impairment of property, plant and equipment Mm% - BERRERE 7 47,831 9,880
Impairment of trade and bills receivables, net B FRNGRIE L E B EF 5 7 38,510 35,486
Impairment of prepayments, net BN TR EFE 7 20,074 34,330
Impairment of other receivables, net H o EUCT IR (B 2R 7 1,231 38,990
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of AWBECRERRD),/
contract assets, net WIEFEE 7 (370) 3,052
Impairment of goodwill EESERED 7 20,333 29,100
Impairment of loan receivables JEUUE BURE 7 17,068 31,177
Share of results of associates DEEE R RIEE (203,233) (105,895)
Share of results of a joint venture DE—FHaErERE 18 (1,167) (1,053)
5,976,504 5,348,417
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets HibIEmBEAE (L), Hd (51,515) 290,154
Increase in inventories FEEM (1,034,609) (274,178)
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets BREECEM),Fid (185,001) 54,505
(Increase)/decrease in loan receivables FEUE TR (32 00),/Fi (675,432) 111,429
Increase in trade and bills receivables B ZENGRIE R EEMN (540,569) (632,910)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and B R REMEKRIE
other receivables B,/ (48m) 406,171 (319,659)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities AHBEORD),/1Em (196,684) 170,062
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills BHRNTBERERE
payables (R, m (237,808) 1,199,408
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H A e 5 IB R ETE R
and accruals o,/ CRd) 75,911 (4,939
Decrease in other long-term payables Hip REEMAFIERD (2,674) (3,217)
Increase in deferred income U 1SN 12,727 43,778
Cash generated from operations REELENIES 3,547,021 5,982,854
Bank interest received BYERTTAS 123,520 102,460
Corporate income tax paid ERREMER (833,217) (773,122)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEEASReREF5 2,837,324 5,312,192
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,‘, N fﬁimu%i‘%

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A31 B ILFE

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
PiaE AR®T R
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment  BBEYIZE « FE MREER (2,089,657) (1,781,326)
Proceeds from disposal of items of other intangible ~ REHEEMEL EEMPE -
assets and property, plant and equipment 7 2 T8 B M FT1S IE 241,140 294,536
Additions to right-of-use assets AR EEN (424,389) (107,203)
Additions to investment properties =L ES I (793,904) (1,085,295)
Deposit for right-of-use assets EREEERS (29,486) (2.222)
Additions to other intangible assets Hip A g g (22,371) (10,750)
Additions to associates /N Ti‘jjl] (777,285) (6,621)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WS A (142,192) (1,162,818)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HERBA Tﬁﬁ?aa%’f\ 6,330 17,462
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & A RIS IR 5,004 -
Purchases of other financial assets BEAMEHEE (1,173,923) (612,027)
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets HEEMBEEEMSHUA 610,542 514,735
Investment income received BB W 17,550 19,693
Dividend received from an associate Bl —REE AR E 34,265 19,326
Interest received from other financial assets ElEMESREENTIE 46,234 22,875
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash RRHRESRD (&) 236,595 (183,822)
Net cash flows used in investing activities RELHMAREREFHE (4,255,547) (4,063,457)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEED
New bank borrowings raised HIBRITE 16,617,812 6,264,914
Repayment of bank and other loans BERBITREMER (13,375,042) (5,725,736)
Convertible loans raised SRR E T = 667,718
Capital contributions from non-controlling interests IR HE 76,169 90,423
Acquisition of non-controlling interests L B JE o | e 25 (157,305) (15,058)
Purchase of shares for share award scheme A% 7 2Bt IR AR = (85,440)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEERE (85,649) (92,406)
Interest paid BAFE (421,032) (530,490)
Dividends paid to the owners of the Company [SANEWN ﬁ%ﬁ/\ﬂ (1,095,414) (866, 871)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [SARES 2T (118)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing RVEREIFT Ff-/ Fﬁ}iﬁ Be
activities MEFE 1,559,421 (292,946)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRESEYEM
EQUIVALENTS FE 141,198 955,789
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FHNREMBEEEY 6,362,444 5,393,836
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net HNEE T R S B R B R (61,388) 12,819
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERNRERAEE
AT END OF THE YEAR B 6,442,254 6,362,444
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERBRLEBIOER
CASH EQUIVALENTS aH
Time deposits with original maturity of three months & 8377 3¢ (FAE B R B HfR
or less when acquired AZEASAT) 26 241,397 454,916
Cash and bank balances He RRITHH 26 6,200,857 5,907,528
6,442,254 6,362,444
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

2.1

90

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The addresses of its registered office and
principal place of business are disclosed in the section headed
"Corporate Information” of this report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Particulars of
the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 44, 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties,
other financial assets and other financial liabilities which have
been measured at fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

() the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(i) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(iii)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributable to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

ire MR MR

2.1 REEEm@m)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4§

Are SRR T

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

92

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised standards for the first
time for the current year's consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The adoption of the above revised HKFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these consolidated financial statements. The
nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 are described below:

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
"Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance to all
parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on measurement
and reporting financial performance, new guidance on the
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies
the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty
in financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a
standard, and none of the concepts contained therein override
the concepts or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

standards, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2018-2020

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions'

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2?

Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract®

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, HKAS 41
and lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16°

HEEA

N P B

W

23 CHEMEERERNE R T B

AREBENRAMBHRET HAREEAT
S B BEARE i R A R FTRT M RT R -

BEMBREENF 163
CHES

BEMBREENFIR
BB e EAE39% -
BEABREEAETH
BENBREEAFIS
REENBREER
F165REATA

BEMHRE LN IR
LHES

BB G EAF 16RE A

BBGHEAEIRETA

N9BHRFERIEERE
BE
RRZENE — F2KG?

BERES?

W& BRERRE : #E
FIRHI SR’

BRAN—BT-0an
LR

ERREREEN08FE  ARUBREEZ 1R
NNFRH FEHE EAUNBRERRERR
BEGHENENR
CHENE
ERIE 165 Bl 2 &)
Annual Report 2020 4§ 93

[/} —



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR R MR

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

(Continued)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Insurance Contracts*
Insurance Contracts*’

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current*
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in
October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in

conclusion

7 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning

before 1 January 2023

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application.
So far, the Group considers that these new and revised HKFRSs
may result in changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations

and financial position.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
Mandatory effective date not yet determined

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and a joint venture are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of

accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associates or joint
ventures, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interests in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

96

POLICIES (Continued)

INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising
from the joint operation;

o its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the
joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to the
Group's interest in a joint operation are accounted for in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL
(Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group will perform its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of

units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than
the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

() the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Land and buildings
Plant and machinery

Not depreciated
2.3% to 5%

8.1% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 9.5% to 32.3%

office equipment

9.5% to 32.3%

Over the shorter of the lease

terms and 20%

Motor vehicles
Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other assets
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost represents the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of five years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Patents and proprietary technologies

Purchased patents and proprietary technologies acquired are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on
the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 years
to 20 years.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
(Continued)

Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights
Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights with
indefinite useful lives acquired are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are not amortised. The useful life of such
an asset should be reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they
do not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite should be accounted for as a change in an accounting
estimate.

The Group is required to test an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life for impairment by comparing its recoverable
amount with its carrying amount (a) annually, and (b) whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

LEASES

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

106

LEASES (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
The cost of a right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 20 to 50 years
Plants and buildings 1 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 1 to 3 years
Other equipment 1 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of
a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is included in investment properties.
The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in
accordance with the Group's policy for “investment
properties”.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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POLICIES (Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of plants and buildings
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption
for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment
and laptop computers that are considered to be of low
value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified
as a finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a
short-term lease to which the Group applies the on-balance
sheet recognition exemption, the Group classifies the sublease
as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, FVTOCI and FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at FVTPL, transaction costs. Trade and bills receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not SPPI are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
FVTOCI are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at FVTPL.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt instruments at FVTOCI, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are
recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same manner as
for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at FVTOCI when they meet the definition of equity
under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity instruments designated at FVTOCI are not subject
to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
instruments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at FVTOCI. Dividends on equity instruments classified as
financial assets at FVTPL are also recognised as other income in
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 5 years past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Debt instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general approach and
they are classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade and bills receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the
Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade and bills receivables that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, convertible
loans, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
FVTPL are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if
the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate ("EIR”) method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in profit or loss.

Convertible loans

The component of convertible loans that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible loans, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible loan; and this amount is carried as a long term
liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the liability and equity components of the convertible loans
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of
a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Manufacturing and trading

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the
case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Property development

Cost comprises land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable to such
properties incurred during the development period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of cash management.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain industrial products and the provision of construction
services for general repairs of defects occurring during the
warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are recognised based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to
their present values as appropriate.

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the period that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income
account and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
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REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks to
collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs and
margins for scope of works not included in the original
construction contract. Claims are accounted for as variable
consideration and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. The Group uses the expected value
method to estimate the amounts of claims because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration
to which the Group will be entitled.

Provision of sewage, hazardous waste treatment and
related environmental protection services

Revenue from the provision of sewage, hazardous waste
treatment and related environmental protection services is
recognised when the relevant services have been rendered.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Revenue from other sources
Income from financial services including:

()  bhandling fee income from factoring services and supply-
chain financing services which is recognised when the
relevant services have been rendered;

(i) finance lease income which is recognised over the period
of lease, as further explained in the accounting policy
"Leases” above; and

(iii)  interest income which is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method as explained below.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

CONTRACT ASSETS

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension schemes

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the Group's
employees participate in various defined contribution plans and
state-management retirement benefit plans in the countries in
which the Group operates. Payments to these plans, where the
Group's obligations under them are equivalent to a defined
contribution plan, are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Housing benefits, medical insurances and other social
insurances

PRC employees of the Group are entitled to participate in various
government-supervised housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurance plans. The Group contributes to these
funds based on certain percentages of the salaries of these
employees on a monthly basis. The Group's liability in respect of
these funds is limited to the contribution payable in each period.
Contributions to the housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share award
scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed
as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity
when they are declared and approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meetings. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are

declared and approved, and no longer at the discretion of the
Company.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company'’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars while
the Company’'s presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements is Renminbi. In preparing the financial
statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into Renminbi using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange fluctuation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of the operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

JUDGEMENT

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for
income tax and withholding tax that would be payable on certain
profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC to be repatriated and
distributed by way of dividends as the directors consider that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences can be
controlled and such temporary differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

If these undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
considered to be repatriated and distributed by way of dividends,
the deferred income tax charge and deferred income tax liability
would have increased by the same amount of approximately
RMB346,198,000 (2019: RMB374,897,000).

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill, brand name and trademark and
operating concession rights

The Group determines whether goodwill, brand name and
trademark and operating concession rights with indefinite useful
lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill, brand name and operating concession rights
are allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimation of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. At the
end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of goodwill,
brand name and trademark and operating concession rights were
RMB381,408,000 (2019: RMB398,589,000), RMB 147,233,000 (2019:
RMB110,520,000) and RMB24,550,000 (2019: RMB24,550,000),
respectively. Further details are disclosed in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Provision of ECL for contract assets, trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and loan receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for contract
assets, trade and bills receivables, other receivables and loan
receivables. The provision rates are based on the invoice date for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit
insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision of ECL for contract assets, trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and loan receivables
(Continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's contract assets, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables and loan receivables is disclosed in notes 23, 24, 25
and 20 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories

The Group reviews the aging analysis of its inventories at the end
of each reporting period, and makes provision for obsolete and
slow moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for use/sale. Management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. At the end of the reporting period, an
accumulated provision for obsolescence of RMB214,768,000
(2019: RMB196,533,000) has been recognised for inventories.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for properties in the same location and condition and
subject to similar leases and other contracts. In the absence of
such information, management determines the amount within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement,
management considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) independent valuations; (ii) current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition and location
(or subject to different leases or other contracts), adjusted to
reflect those differences; (iii) recent prices of similar properties in
less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the dates of transactions that occurred
at those prices; and (iv) discounted cash flow projections, based
on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts, and (where possible)
from external evidence such as current market rates for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of cash flows.

Details of the judgement and assumptions involved in
determining the fair value of the Group's investment properties
have been disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases
are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone
credit rating).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

A CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

In accordance with the HKAS 16 — Property, Plant and
Equipment and HKAS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, the Group adjusted the
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment to ensure
the adjusted useful lives to meet the estimates on the period that
the future economic benefits. The impact on the change in the
useful lives will not result in a restatement. The new useful lives
applied from 1 January 2020.

From 1 January 2020, the Group changed the annual rates of
depreciation for certain property, plant and equipment,
particulars of which are as follow:

Category
Szl
Plant and machinery

TR S Rt 25

The change has been applied prospectively and has resulted in a
decrease in depreciation of approximately RMB43,863,000 during
the year.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
building materials and interior decoration products; the provision
of renovation and installation works, environmental engineering
and other related services, financial services and property rental
and other related services. For management purposes, the
Group's businesses are organised by geographical areas based
on the location of the customers and assets are attributable to
the geographical unit based on the location of the assets. The
Group has eight reportable operating segments as follows:

()  Southern China, including Guangdong Province, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Hunan Province, Fujian
Province and Hainan Province;

(i) Southwestern China, including Chongging Municipality,
Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province and
Xizang (Tibet) Autonomous Region;

(iii)  Central China, including Hubei Province, Jiangxi Province
and Henan Province;

(iv)  Eastern China, including Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu
Province, Zhejiang Province and Anhui Province;

(v Northern China, including Beijing Municipality, Tianjin
Municipality, Hebei Province, Shandong Province, Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region and Shanxi Province;

(vi)  Northwestern China, including Shaanxi Province, Ningxia
Hui Autonomous Region, Qinghai Province, Gansu Province

and Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region;

(vii) Northeastern China, including Liaoning Province, Jilin
Province and Heilongjiang Province; and

(viii) Outside China.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a
measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before
tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit before tax
except that interest income, changes in fair value of financial
instruments at FVTPL, changes in fair value of other financial
liabilities, investment income, gain/(loss) on disposal of
subsidiaries, gain on disposal of associates, gain from a bargain
purchase, changes in fair value of investment properties, (loss)/
gain on disposal of debt instruments at FVTOCI, exchange
differences, non-lease-related finance costs, share of results of
associates and a joint venture and other unallocated income and
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude interests in associates, interests in a joint
venture, other financial assets, deferred tax assets, cash and bank
deposits and other unallocated head office and corporate assets
as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

The Group's revenue from external customers is derived from its
operations in mainland China, special administrative regions of
PRC and foreign countries.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no revenue

from transactions with a single external customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group's total revenue.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFEER @)
(Continued)

BZE2020F12A31MBLFENKE
DEEHR

Northern Northwestern Northeastern

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Central Eastern Outside

Southern Southwestern

China
283

RMB'000
ARBT

China
FEHE
RMB'000

ARBT

China

EL
RMB'000
AR®TR

China

25
RMB'000
ARBTR

China

1
RMB'000
ARBFR

China
FLHE
RMB'000
AR¥TR

ARBTR

China
RitE
RMB'000

China
HEHI
RMB'000
ARBTR

ARBTR

Eliminations ~Consolidated

£ &8
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMFT

Segment revenue: DBBA :
Sale of goods HEEM 14,296,424 2,793,802 2,873,149 1,545,613 2,097,594 1,422,689 737,700 703,236 - 26,470,207
Contract revenue from renovation  #ERZETE

and installation works BHBA 697,116 47,068 108,364 199,095 28,923 1,449 19,769 8,912 - 1,110,696
Income from environmental RETRREM

engineering and other related BER%

services ek 179,958 17,539 23,773 127,330 4,098 1,299 - - - 353,997
Financial service income SRBBYRE 30,349 1,633 3,625 12,581 2,151 34 19 - - 50,392
Property rental and other related )% ERE

services e 11,370 - - 24 - - - 76,379 - 87,773
Revenue from external customers ~ SMBEEUA 15,215,217 2,860,042 3,008,911 1,884,643 2,132,766 1,425,471 757,488 788,527 - 28,073,065
Intersegment revenue SEEBA 4,354,850 450,144 532,163 437,339 557,703 238,605 185,929 771,577  (7,528,310) -
Total @i 19,570,067 3,310,186 3,541,074 2,321,982 2,690,469 1,664,076 943,417 1,560,104  (7,528,310) 28,073,065
Segment results: D 4,801,638 884,882 952,938 526,249 620,639 346,109 185,439 224,671 (158,586) 8,383,979
Reconciliations: ﬁ,gi :
Interest income Bl 171,112
Gain on fair value changes of BARBEGABREN

financial instruments at SRMIANALERE

FVTPL 2T 129,294
Gain on fair value changes of HiepaEAREBE

other financial liabilities BEF|H 13,348
Investment income REWE 17,550
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARMEME 365
Gain on disposal of associates HEBLNRMEHE 1,438
Gain from a bargain purchase ELDE e 5,579
Loss on fair value changes of BREMEDAEE

investment properties ZHER (157,263)
Loss on disposal of debt HERARBETA

instruments at ﬁ%@%ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ

FVTOCI (8,191)
Exchange loss (2,328)
Finance costs (other than interest

on lease liabilities) (427,405)
Share of results of associates DEBEDREE 203,233
Share of results of a joint venture DA —HALLEEE 1,167
Unallocated income and expenses * SR RS (3,578,318)
Profit before tax BB ATE R 4,753,560
Segment assets: ﬁ%ﬂﬁE : 18,529,130 1,531,128 1,667,031 1,842,455 998,984 734,828 542,214 7,961,847 - 33,807,617
Reconciliations: 4
Interests in associates i y%%@ AR ER 2,395,177
Interest in a joint venture R—EEEPENER 11,523
Other financial assets HieREE 2,705,921
Deferred tax assets EERELE 159,888
Cash and bank deposits Re R|ITER 7,447,436
Total assets LELE 46,527,562
Other segment information: Hit A HEH
Write-down of inventories to HREEETEE

net realisable value, net FEFE 18,367 - - - - - - (132) = 18,235
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 658,051 68,829 61,010 49,406 42,846 41,689 21,093 62,992 - 1,005,916
Impairment of property, plantand ~ #1% - BE &R/

equipment b 36,166 - - 11,349 - - - 316 - 47,831
Impairment of goodwill 11,578 - - 8,755 - - - - - 20,333
Reversal of impairment of contract

assets, net (370) - - - - - - - - (370)
Impairment of trade and bills

receivables, net ) 25,522 351 1,441 4,578 5,897 661 (1,158) 1,218 - 38,510
Impairment of prepayments, net B BB EZE 6,774 6,402 - - - - 253 6,645 - 20,074
Impairment of other receivables,  Hftt FEUFHIER

net FE (2,724) - - - - - - 3,955 - 1,231
Impairment of loan receivables e EFURE 17,068 - - - - - - - - 17,068
Capital expenditure* BARY 1,509,062 108,124 276,130 150,447 74,846 37,231 21,877 624,145 (59,774) 2,742,088

#

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment,

right-of-use assets, investment properties and other intangible assets,
among which the additions resulted from business combination amount to

RMB252,952,000.

#

ERRAXBEREYE - J&%&‘”fﬁ EREE

B REMERE

LA

Hp BEREER

EHMEENRERARE 252, 952 0007T ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRE MR

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFEER @)
(Continued)
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE HZ2019F 12831 HLFENKE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 o 2B E

Southern  Sou Central Eastern Northern  Northwestern  Northeastern
China China Chin China China China
## Ed ESld [ii8: RitiE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IN SV ARETT AREFT  AREA
Segment revenue: DEYA
Sale of goods HEER 13,535,151 2,598,852 3,009,404 1,376,221 1,956,487 1,260,583 696,764 871,766 - 25,305,228
Contract revenue from renovation  #{ERZ#E T2
and installation works BB 439,477 13,349 54,097 62,090 13,983 121 3418 9216 - 595,751
Income from environmental RETRREM
engineering and other related il
services Wz 175,752 13,406 12,993 119,513 1177 2,768 188 - - 325,797
Financial service income SRRBYRE 26,084 913 13,626 120 157 - - - - 40,900
Property rental and other MEBERHM
related services HRERE 3773 - - 126 - - - 72,948 - 76,847
Revenue from external customers ~ SMEREFUA 14,180,237 2,626,520 3,090,120 1,558,070 1,971,804 1,263,472 700,370 953,930 - 26,344,523
Intersegment revenue EELON 3,989,030 430,309 533,746 324,949 450,154 247,667 152,790 826,810 (6,955,455) -
Total “axt 18,169,267 3,056,829 3,623,866 1,883,019 2,421,958 1,511,139 853,160 1,780,740 (6,955455) 26,344,523
Segment results: DEEE 5,272,730 819,409 1,021,793 496,233 642,678 306,270 178,466 227,538 (1,427,998) 7,531,119
Reconciliations: HE
Interest income A 8 M 125320
Gain on fair value changes of BRENELNEE
investment properties ZHF) 147,997
Gain on fair value changes of RO EEHABEN
financial instruments at SRIANDAAEE
FVTPL 25l 3432
Gain on disposal of debt HERAABEIA
instruments at Hit 2 mREOER
FVTOC TAF 7,587
Loss on fair value changes of HtemAaEIAEE
other financial liabilities #HER (7,768)
Investment income BEKH 19,693
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARMNEBR (8,324)
Exchange gain I S Mg 27,084
Finance costs (other than interest ~ FEARAKN (FAE &R
on lease liabilities) FERBRIN) (563,421)
Share of results of associates HEBENRER 105,895
Share of results of ajoint venture ~ DE—fAAZREER 1,053
Unallocated income and expenses & 7 B2 M Fi 52 (3,413,746)
Profit before tax BB AR 3,981,921
Segment assets: PEUEE : 16,065,801 1,442,760 1,293,721 1,794,605 825,589 686,628 464,689 7,207,506 - 29,781,299
Reconciliations: ol
Interests in associates R E R RIS 1,501,137
Interest in a joint venture R-EadtEnER 10,356
Other financial assets HitemAE 1779483
Deferred tax assets ERBREE 108,301
Cash and bank deposits AERBEAFR 7,604,221
Total assets BESE 40,784,797
Other segment information: Hit D PEH
Write-down of inventories tonet ~ MipFEZAEH
realisable value, net el ] - - - - - - - 5,691 - 5,691
Depreciation and amortisation WERBH 659,556 68,317 68,538 51,461 42,104 36,776 20,011 49,988 - 996,751
Impairment of property, plantand ~ #1% « BiE kiR
equipment RE 4,826 - - - - - - 5,054 - 9,880
Impairment of goodwill EERE 29,100 - - - - - - - - 29,100
Impairment of contract assets, net A #1& E R EFE 3,052 - - - - - - - - 3,052
Impairment of trade and bills 2B S RIERZR
receivables, net AEFE 35473 47 (96) 3,062 399 85 (961) (2,523) - 35,486
Impairment of prepayments, net AN FEREFE 34,330 - - - - - - - - 34330
Impairment of other receivables, net E fth fE U KB EF 38,990 - - - - - - - - 38,990
Impairment of loan receivables FEMEZRME 31,177 - - - - - - - - 31,177
Capital expenditure* BRRER 2,736,680 13,772 256,476 338,397 60,261 32,572 27,780 1,762,678 (53,797) 5274,819

#

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, investment properties and other intangible assets,
among which the additions resulted from business combination amount to
RMB1,234,240,000.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5.
GAINS

REVENUE

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from
contracts with customers and the reconciliation of the revenue
from contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the
segment information:

By revenue nature:

2020
Goods
transferred Services

at a point transferred

in time over time
RE—KH BREES
BIENER ERNRYK
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT AR%TR

Revenue from contracts with REEFEHH

fre SRR MR

WA~ BB - Wi R A&

A

AT #IIAREE KA EF &R BAD TR
KAEFPEHNHNBAEDBENAREDER
HEIER -

BWAMLEE D

2019
Goods

transferred Services

atapoint  transferred

Total in time over time

—58 NS

At ; R PR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARETT ARETT

customers: WA :
Sale of goods HESH 26,470,207 - 26,470,207 25,305,228 - 25,305,228
Contract revenue from renovation EERLZERTZEL

and installation works I@N - 1,110,696 1,110,696 - 595,751 595,751
Income from environmental RIBTRE

engineering and other related Hiii@

services RS - 353,997 353,997 - 325,797 325,797
Sub-total INEF 26,470,207 1,464,693 27,934,900 25,305,228 921,548 26,226,776
Financial service income S RRB 50,392 40,900
Property rental and other related )£/ J £ 115

services i553 87,773 76,847
Total et 28,073,065 26,344,523
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB B ISRk RE

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND
GAINS (Continued)

5. WA - Halr A - W KR )

REVENUE (Continued) WA ()
By geographical locations: BIBLESS

Goods
transferred

at a point

in time
RE—BE
BENEm
RMB'000
ARBTR

2020

Services
transferred
over time
RERE RS
BREORY
RMB’000
AR®T

Total

EH
RMB'000
ARBT R

2019

Goods
transferred Services
atapoint  transferred
over time
BERF RS
R R
RMB'000

AREFT

in time

S =g
RMB'000
ARETT

“,
RMB'000

ARETFT

Revenue from contracts with REEFAHAH

customers: WA :
Mainland China FREI R 25,766,971 1,455,781 27,222,752 24,433,462 912,332 25,345,794
Qutside China BB 703,236 8,912 712,148 871,766 9,216 880,982
Sub-total et 26,470,207 1,464,693 27,934,900 25,305,228 921,548 26,226,776
Financial service income LR RB W 50,392 40,900
Property rental and other MERE KM

related services figis 87,773 76,847
Total “st 28,073,065 26,344,523

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in

the current reporting period that were included in the contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised

from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

TRIVRRA TR E HAERN HRERIEA

A

BHREMNBEHRENEEMERNK

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETT
Revenue recognised that was included R E BT AEL
in contract liabilities at the beginning of BEMNEER
the reporting period: WA
Sale of goods HEEm 1,604,951 1,410,214
Contract revenue from renovation and BERLTETIREAYN
installation works PN 1,750 12,373
Income from environmental engineering and 3335 T2 K H A #H 78
other related services Rl 75 W 8 4,240
1,606,709 1,426,827
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND
GAINS (Continued)

REVENUE (Continued)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 360 days from
delivery, except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

Renovation, installation and engineering services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from the
date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is retained by
customers until the end of the retention period as the Group's
entitlement to the final payment is conditional on the satisfaction
of the service quality by the customers over a certain period as
stipulated in the contracts.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

5.

fre SRR MR

WA -~ Hlg A - Yz R R &= o)

WA ()
BREE
ERASBEBENEENEREURIT

HEES
AEBREEHBITEE - R BERE
% 30E 360K NEIH - HHES AR
e

K 2R R TERYE
BHEEERERG MEREEEET A
R —MNEHE B R 0RAEE - TPRE
—EANLMNREERBHER - HTER
AEBRRSENKOENRIREPEE
HWREN—BREENSREERRTRER
TR -

RBEHR > 7 EEHRTENET(RED
HEDREL) X B EBOSRENT

2020
RMB’000

2019
RMB'000
AREFT

ARETR

Amounts expected to be recognised T8 R i e SR AR ALY
as revenue: SR
Not more than 1 year N1 F 954,379 778,063
Over 1 year 19FA 1,368,927 704,246
2,323,306 1,482,309

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised
over one year relate to renovation, installation and engineering
services. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations are expected to be
recognised not more than one year. The amounts disclosed
above do not include variable consideration which is constrained.

DEZRHHN —FALERNB TTEOE
ENRZERNSEINEE  ZERTE
R#% - B RO EEHR TRNEENRS
ERHNESBERBETZR —FHER - UL
BRENSETBREILOROATERIE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB B ISRk RE

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. WA - Halr A - W KR )
GAINS (Continued)

OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND GAINS Hw A - iz & Fl &
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETFT
Bank interest income AT WS 123,520 102,460
Interest income from other financial assets H & /& 2R F B 47,592 22,860
Total interest income A EW = B EE 171,112 125,320
Government grants and subsidies BRI #68 Bh K% 478 B 69,375 55,928
Gain on fair value changes of investment EYMEANTBEEH
properties Mz - 147,997
Gain on fair value changes of financial BEARBEFAEENSHTA
instruments at FVTPL MR EEZEHN D 129,294 3,432
Gain on fair value changes of other HibeBAEALEBEEESD
financial liabilities &= 13,348 -
Investment income & Wz 17,550 19,693
Gain on disposal of debt instruments HEZRARBEFAEMEZEEKE
at FVTOCI B ER T ARz = 7,587
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBATFREMNZE 365 -
Gain on disposal of associates B & N B TS A2 1,438 -
Gain from a bargain purchase HEWEMSF=E 5,579 -
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets B REEEMSN R 17 5,992
Rental income HEWE 32,291 27,468
Exchange gain [ 5 F 7= - 27,084
Others HAty 68,818 62,889
509,187 483,390
Government grants and subsidies mainly represent funding U 40 B R AR AL 2R BUREIE I T At 2
received from government authorities to support certain of the BASEE THEEINES - WERMEAH
Group's research and development activities. There are no ZEWB LB B REK GBS
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these grants W e

and subsidies.

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BB
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETFT
Interest expenses on bank and other loans HR1T R E A &SRB F BRI X 458,039 569,271
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAENNEMXZ 8,487 13,773
466,526 583,044
Less: Interest capitalised o BB (30,634) (5,850)
435,892 577,194
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7.

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

iR e ISR M

BRBE Al 2 A

A& B RR B A& B T kR (T A) T3
BIRRED

Note

(o

Cost of inventories sold EFERAR

Direct cost of renovation and HERLTRTIREHEE
installation works PR

Direct cost of environmental engineering IRIZ T2 N E b AR 8 AR TS
and other related services BEENAR

Direct cost of financial services SRR EEA A

Direct cost of property rental and W E N HAb IR AR 5
other related services IEREID TN

Write-down of inventories to W/WTME
net realisable value, net AR EFE

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #12 - &= M EITE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEERE

Amortisation of other intangible assets B =g

Total depreciation and amortisation Pree s e EE

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

TeEEREaEHETH
HERK

Auditor’s remuneration ZHAN S

Employee benefit expense (including EERAMAS (BEES
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): N (FIzE8)) -
Wages and salaries TERS®
Pension scheme contributions (note) RIREETEME R ()
Staff welfare and other expenses BTEMNRHMEX

Research and development costs IR

Loss on disposal of items of other o EL A TS B EE AT
intangible assets and property, Y - BB RREBEER
plant and equipment o it

Impairment of property, plant and equipment 13 - B 55 & & R (E

Changes in fair value of KREMERREBE
investment properties i)

Gain on fair value changes of BRAABETABRNSH
financial instruments at FVTPL TENAREBEEHNR

(Gain)/loss on fair value changes of EmemaEanEE
other financial liabilities 28 (M=) 8

Loss/(gain) on disposal of HERAABEFAEM
debt instruments 2EBENEBEIE
at FVTOCI fEia / (Flzs)

(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT (R EiE

Gain from a bargain purchase HEWIEAESHE

Gain on termination of right-of-use assets AL R E SN

Impairment of goodwill EERE

Impairment of loan receivables FEYAE FORE

(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of A ﬁé CRER R,
contract assets, net BB FE

Impairment of trade and bills receivables, %F’?ﬂ%{ RIE R R
net HER

Impairment of prepayments, net J’E\HT)\/UZ@@%E

Impairment of other receivables, net E A & WOk TR (B F 58

Foreign exchange differences, net M =R FR

12
13A
15B

13C

14

13C

15A
20
23

24

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TRE ARBTT
18,584,843 18,134,201
831,187 465,227
217,596 174,463
7,387 685
29,838 27,137
18,235 5,691
884,927 880,279
96,382 99,695
24,607 16,777
1,005,916 996,751
11,986 32,949
8,771 9,370
1,235,452 1,104,192
56,868 96,284
81,094 77,950
1,373,414 1,278,426
946,843 856,202
8,257 14,575
47,831 9,880
157,263 (147,997)
(129,294) (3,432
(13,348) 7,768
8,191 (7,587)
(365) 8,324
(5,579) -
(17) (5,992)
20,333 29,100
17,068 31,177
(370) 3,052
38,510 35,486
20,074 34,330
1,231 38,990
2,328 (27,084)

Note: As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no forfeited contributions available
to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2019: Nil).

BEE © A20204F 12 A 31 B - 786 B30 48 0% W 30
PAB D BRI F R R ARG T B R (20195 © &) -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRE MR

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEFMREEREHFMES
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (A) ES=HM
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to WiE@E A EmR A REB QGO
the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies ENTFAEEFHMESIOT ¢

Ordinance, is as follows:

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Fees e 8,456 9,027

Other emoluments: Hiil< -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - 285 R B WiEH 5,160 5,521
Performance related bonuses FIRHMATEAT 4,482 4,471
Pension scheme contributions BRIREETEIER 204 170
9,846 10,162
18,302 19,189
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M SRR

8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEFMRIEIERSFMES @
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEEHM A
The remuneration of each of the directors is set out below: REEWMHFMEY DT

Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
in kind bonuses contributions Total

A £ e Bk e
e REWER  HER4 SEER At
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AREBTR AR®TR ARET:R

Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Wong Luen Hei BHELE - 1,169 498 16 1,683
Mr. Zuo Manlun L1 - 1,194 498 43 1,735
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping EESLTt - 1,169 498 16 1,683
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BERLE 1,169 - 498 27 1,694
Mr. Kong Zhaocong HLkREAE 1,169 - 498 27 1,694
Mr. Chen Guonan RE@ELE 1,169 - 498 27 1,694
Dr. Lin Shaoquan wheEt - 1,628 - - 1,628
Mr. Huang Guirong HEREAE 1,168 - 498 16 1,682
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BEEgE 1,168 - 498 16 1,682
Mr. Lin Dewei WEELE 1,168 - 498 16 1,682
7,011 5,160 4,482 204 16,857
Independent non-executive BYFHITEE :
directors:
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan  E Bl 554 289 = = = 289
Mr. Cheung Man Yu'" RN TFRAED 178 - - - 178
Ms. Lan Fang Brut 289 - - - 289
Dr. Tao Zhigang SRS L 289 - - - 289
Mr. Cheng Dickson Ly abrd s 289 - - - 289
Ms. Lu Jiandong® BRERZLO 111 = = = 111
1,445 - - - 1,445
8,456 5,160 4,482 204 18,302
0 Resigned as an independent non-executive director on 1 September 0 202059 A1 BEHEB S FFRITES
2020
@ Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 1 September @ MN2020F9 A1 BEZERBLIFHITE
2020 =
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRE MR

8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEFMREEESFMES @
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEEHM @A)
SEIENES
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions
e 28 =5 RIAE
we ] &f HMRTEAT HEGS
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Executive directors: HITES !
Mr. Wong Luen Hei BHMELE - 1,267 493 16 1,776
Mr. Zuo Manlun TRRtE - 1,250 493 42 1,785
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping S 2 - 1,267 493 16 1,776
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BEREsE 1,267 - 493 16 1,776
Mr. Kong Zhaocong HLkREE 1,267 - 493 16 1,776
Mr. Chen Guonan BBl 4 1,267 - 493 16 1,776
Dr. Lin Shaoguan wheEt - 1,737 34 - 1,771
Mr. Huang Guirong BEREE 1,267 - 493 16 1,776
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BREBEE 1,267 - 493 16 1,776
Mr. Lin Dewei WEELE 1,267 - 493 16 1,776
7,602 5,521 4,471 170 17,764
Independent non-executive BYHFHITEE :
directors:
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan T B &5t & 285 - - - 285
Mr. Cheung Man Yu RXFEE 285 - - - 285
Ms. Lan Fang BrErt 285 - - - 285
Dr. Tao Zhigang MERIEL 285 - - - 285
Mr. Cheng Dickson B 285 - - - 285
1,425 - - - 1,425
9,027 5,521 4471 170 19,189
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued)

No director waived or agreed to waive any emolument and

no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2019:

Nil).

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The Group's five highest paid employees during the year

were all directors. Details of the remuneration of these
directors during the year are set out in note 8(A) above.

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

ire MR MR

ESFMRTEESHFMES @

(A) EEHM &)
BEEENESARNENEEFABE
MASEEREASEMMBAEENE
MBAEERREABBRAEmNmE
EXEAEE o

FAMBECNXENBILFEATES
R E S (2019 F : #) -

(B) EEEREEHMES
FR AEEREARSFNEEY A
'E- Fiﬁﬁii%% BN FE IS A
R EXXHIESA

P

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETE

AR¥TR

Current tax BN EAT 18
PRC ‘:F' 938,283 857,319
Other jurisdictions Hh RDEE R 443 106
938,726 857,425
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFECGRE) T RBE
PRC F (82,716) (80,312)
Other jurisdictions HAh A E#E R (35) 186
(82,751) (80,126)
Deferred tax RIEFIE 140,196 176,287
Total tax charge for the year FARIBE HERE 996,171 953,586

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of

the Group are domiciled and operated.

HONG KONG PROFITS TAX

The statutory rate of Hong Kong profits tax was 16.5% (2019:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the Group
had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year

(2019: Nil).

REBARAEBEKE RFN TR LEER
EORVEEEMELSMHGSENIRER
BRI -

i

EBRER

EBEFE %ﬁ)}ﬁ#@%?immﬂéﬁmm
AR FEFRE16.5%(20194F : 16.5%)5tE
ERAEERFERNLERE F%Eﬂﬂ’éé%
Fom ) B EEHR R B RIS R E (2019
Foof) o
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AR

.

B IBERAN

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

PRC CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The Group's income tax provision in respect of its operations in
mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax rates
on the taxable profits for both years, based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Certain of the Group's PRC subsidiaries are qualified as High and
New Technology Enterprises and are entitled to a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15% during both years.

INCOME TAX FOR OTHER JURISDICTIONS

The Group's tax provision in respect of other jurisdictions has
been calculated at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the
prevailing practices of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of
the Company'’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at

Fri8®iR X (|
FESEFFEH

AEEUHBREZZ BEREMNRE
% - B E S E R FEER R A IR B A A R AT
HRBERRBHIEHEE

AEEETHENEATNAEFEA TH
RO EER A= 15%MEEDEMS
FE -

Hi A E BN TEHREA

ﬁﬁ EpLEM A ERRENHRIBRBERIEAR
B E BN REERIRITIE R E
)EH%RT ﬁ+#

RAARBKED KB R R PTE AR A
FETR R F B R IE AR BRI AR M R R IR R X
HIRERR R EONIERSEERNT

the effective tax rate is as follows:

2020
RMB’000

ARBT R

2019
RMB’000
ARHEF T

Profit before tax B A5 A AR A 4,753,560 3,981,921
Tax at the PRC corporate income tax BB ERTE R X 25%

rate of 25% STERBIE 1,188,390 995,480
Effect of tax concessions for certain ETHBARHEESR

subsidiaries 02— (412,939) (341,670)
Share of results of associates DL E N RIS (50,808) (21,642)
Share of results of a joint venture DIE—EAEEDEES (292) (263)
Income not subject to tax BARMUE (51,684) (34,690)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A 58,459 130,471
Tax losses utilised from prior years EBABAFERIEREE (26,431) (20,575)
Tax losses not recognised RIERBIEEIE 132,019 158,426
Adjustments in respect of current tax FUBEFEERENEAFI B

of prior years B 8 B (82,751) (80,126)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the HARRNBFEWEA A

distributable profits of the Company's A 9 5 AR 5% B TR

subsidiaries in PRC ST E 242,208 168,175
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate EAREBBEEMEFENHRIEST 996,171 953,586
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. DIVIDENDS

fre SRR MR

10. RE

HKS
BT

per share

sk

HK$'000 HK$
TiEx BT
per share

AL

2020 interim dividend paid XNFERPHRE
(2019: 2019 interim dividend paid) (0195 - 019 FERTERS) 0.12 372,290 0.12 31229
Less: Dividends for shares held for B piR B BIATR R
share award scheme (note 36(B)) ik 8. (FEE 36(8)) 012 (2,759) 0.12 2.759)
369,531 369,531
2019 final dividend paid N19FERRERE
(2019: 2018 final dividend paid) (0195 : 018 FERHRERE) 0.28 868,677 0.0 620484
Less: Dividends for shares held for B st B BT R
share award scheme (note 3(B) HRE S (M5 36(8) 0.28 (6,437) 0.2 (4,598)
862,240 615,886
1,231,711 985,417
Equivalent to ZER RMB1,095,414,000 RMB866,871,000
AR#1,095,414,000 7 AR 866,871,000

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend of
HK38 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 per
ordinary share in aggregate of HK$1,170,182,000 has been
declared by the Board to the owners of the Company whose
names appear on the Company's register of members on 25 June
2021 (2019: final dividend of HK28 cents in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2019 per ordinary share amounting to in
aggregate of HK$862,240,000). The amount of final dividend
declared for the year ended 31 December 2020 is calculated
based on the number of issued shares, less dividends for shares
held for the share award scheme, at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements.

REmEHRE  EFRENEZE20205F
12ANBEFEERAHRESR LB
3871l - & 511,170,182,0007% 7T F 722021
F6 A 25 HEHAR A REL M ARRD B
B A20194F « FhELZE2019F12831H 1k
FERBREGR T M 28EM - &5
862,240,000 7T ) o Bt B £ 2020 12 A 31
HIEFE SRR E TR AR E B TR
FILEBBEBITROEE @ BtkH
HEIFTIF R MDBRERTE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB B ISRk RE

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 1. KRB HEBEAELESRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculations of the basic and the diluted earnings per share BIBATSIBEFEEREARETER
are based on:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREETTT
Earnings Pz |
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 5T & &R F A K& 8 B 765
used in the basic and diluted earnings RRMARTHEEA
per share calculation FE(E %A 3,750,829 3,024,701

Number of Shares

BRHEE
2020

Shares &
Weighted average number of ERITEALINE

ordinary shares in issue EHE 3,102,418,400 3,102,418,400
Weighted average number of shares held for [ {5 82En 5T &I A4 A% (5 H0 4

the share award scheme EHE (22,991,000) (21,773,540)
Adjusted weighted average number of 5T 8 SRR E R N 2 R

ordinary shares of the Company in BB ARRIE T

issue used in the basic and diluted TR A TR

earnings per share calculation FHEH 3,079,427,400  3,080,644,860
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue NEBREE2020F K 2019F 12 A31 B 1F
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, FEHEDETHELHEL AR -

respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

fre SRR MR

12. 1% - BRERRHE

Furniture,
fixtures Construction
Land and Plant and and office Motor Leasehold in
buildings machinery  equipment vehicles  improvements progress
X8 £BR
THEEF  REREE  BAZRE RE  HENEEE HBIE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT  ARETT ARETT
Cost: BA
At 1 January 2019 R9E1A1A 4715,344 4440279 282,151 204061 85,764 1,314,082 11,041,681
Additions HE 168,662 639,679 20,024 17429 52,541 1285733 2,184,068
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WA BAT 375,371 541,277 2140 3081 - 6,309 928,178
Transfers El 429399 322,388 12982 3515 - (768,284) -
Disposals HE (12,335) (394,309) (11,135) (7.985) (796) (100,536) (527,09)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - - (107) - - - (107)
Exchange realignment EH A 1999 1,005 509 370 944 6 4833
At 31 December 2019 and R9FE12A318R
1 January 2020 201818 5,678,440 5,550,319 306,564 220471 138,453 1,737,310 13,631,557
Additions AE 61,374 531917 16,894 15,675 31,740 898,634 1,562,234
Acquisitions of WRENEAR
subsidiaries (note 37) (P337) 97,888 27,568 2002 523 10,279 - 138,260
Transfers Bl 304,015 201,792 7636 2249 9,285 (564,977) -
Disposals e (106,947) (175,530) (13451) 9.174) (468) (73,093) (378,663)
Exchange realignment B3 (13,648) 2272 (175) (901) (448) (357) (18.401)
At 31 December 2020 R0NE12A318 6,021,122 6,173,794 318,870 228,843 194,841 1,997,517 14,934,987
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZiHTER
and impairment; i -
At 1 January 2019 RO19E1A1A (1,072,648) (2,108,287) (179,289) (139.958) (50,085) (12,649 (3562916)
Provided for the year FREE (266,647) (535,836) (35432 (23218) (19,146) - (880,279)
Disposals e 5251 197,167 8,290 6,943 332 - 217983
Impairment e - 1,168 187 13 (11,242) ) (9,880)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - 3% - - - 3%
Exchange realignment B R (153) (476) (276) (276) (499) - (1,680)
At 31 December 2019 and RO19ENRAINER
1 January 2020 020F1518 (1,334,197) (2,446,264) (206,484) (156,49) (80,640) (12,655) (4.236,736)
Provided for the year FREE (314.719) (484,308) (35842) (22133) (27.925) - (884,927)
Disposals e 12,855 99,061 10,790 7954 266 - 130,926
Impairment BB - (507) (3192) (14) 2.110) (42,008) (47,831)
Exchange realignment R 1083 1578 36 662 - - 3,689
At 31 December 2020 RANE12A318 (1,634,978)  (2,830,440) (234,362) (170,027) (110,409) (54,663)  (5,034,879)
Net carrying amount: REFE
At 31 December 2020 RANE12A318 4,386,144 3,343,354 84,508 58,816 84,432 1,942,854 9,900,108
At 31 December 2019 R19E12A318 4,344,243 3,104,055 100,080 63975 57813 1,724,655 9,394,821

Included in the Group's property, plant and equipment are

freehold lands which had a net carrying amount of
RMB19,639,000 (2019: RMB767,000). The freehold lands are
situated outside Hong Kong.

FFAREEYE  BEREBERKAERELT
b &9 BR [ F 1E A A R 19,639,000 7T (2019
F: ARMET767,0007T) © sZXKAFERE T ML
REBIFIN o

Annual Report 2020 4 4R 149
] —
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4§

Are SRR T

13.

150

LEASES

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold
land, plants and buildings, motor vehicles and other equipment
used in its operations. For leasehold land classified as prepaid
land lease payments previously, lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire the leasehold land from the owners with lease
periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. For other leased lands
classified as operating lease previously, they generally have lease
terms between 20 and 50 years. Lease of plants and buildings
generally have lease terms between 1 and 10 years, while motor
vehicles and other equipment generally have lease terms
between 1 and 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.
There are several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options and variable lease payments, which are
further discussed below.
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REBEEREEA

AEBEHRAZERNEENHERELS -
BERET  REREMRENEESL -
HRNERMDBERABRN L HHEERNEERE
TH ABEAANERERA0FH T
- DIRSEER—RUENR - BEREBZEL
WRERGER - S TEETRENR - HR
TR BEREEMENEMHEES - AH
HBEENF20FE0F - MELEFHE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M SRR

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. HE @)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued) ARBERFEA ()
A. Right-of-use assets A EREHEE L )
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets $%{§%E§§E@E‘EE@&E§¢W
and the movements during the year are as follows: MEEIT :

Leasehold Plants and Motor Other
land*  buildings vehicles equipment Total

HERE

t#' EERET AE R it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTTE ARMTR ARETR ARSTE ARSTR

At 1 January 2019 R2019F1H1H 1,384,033 304,179 382 492 1,689,086
Additions NE 107,203 61,602 810 - 169,615
Acquisitions of subsidiaries  UtEEHTE A 7] - 10,238 - 14,837 25,075
Depreciation charge TERX (33,637) (64,637) (307) (1,114) (99,695)
Termination ik (3,224) (169,165) - - (172,389)
Exchange realignment [E N = (267) 2,914 56 - 2,703
At 31 December 2019 and 7 2019%F 12831 B K
1 January 2020 20201 R 1H 1,454,108 145,131 941 14,215 1,614,395
Additions NE 453,159 12,791 117 - 466,067
Acquisitions of subsidiaries U i&HI B A 7
(note 37) (Fft 3% 37) 65,011 - - - 65,011
Depreciation charge (note 7) &R X (KI:E7) (41,323) (52,597) (393) (2,069) (96,382)
Termination 2k - (364) - - (364)
Exchange realignment SRS (7,951) (4,704) (20) - (12,675)
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 1,923,004 100,257 645 12,146 2,036,052
# The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for all # AEEEBISHBEE X E L (REE
leasehold land except for those under operating lease arrangements B AR M42,442,0007C (20194F + AR
with carrying amount of RMB42,442,000 (2019: RMB15,343,000). 15,343,0007T) & & E R HE T Lk
1) B 3 FRAERE o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRE MR

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. *HE(%E)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued) AEEEREEA @

152

B.

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

B. HE&E

HERENREEBRRFANZE N

T

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETFT

As at 1 January ®1A1H 206,124 368,752
Additions NE 41,678 61,911
Acquisitions of subsidiaries U BE BT B A A - 24,156
Interest expenses (note 6) FERZ (H5E6) 8,487 13,773

Payments NN (85,649) (92,4006)

Termination 1k (381) (171,174)
Exchange realignment PE W 8 EE (7,943) 1,112
As at 31 December »W12HA31H 162,316 206,124

Analysed into: DA

Current portion mENE D 53,448 88,843
Non-current portion FEmEN o 108,868 117,281
162,316 206,124

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note

42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. LEASES (Continued)

13.

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases are as follows:

fre SRR MR

HE @

REBEER/EBAA (8

C REZANCHRIARBETENSEN
T:

2020
RMB’000

2019
RMB'000
ARBTT

AR®T R

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets FREEENERY 96,382 99,695
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBEMERY 8,487 13,773
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets BRI AEEEMREN S (17) (5,992)
Expense relating to short-term leases and SHHERATHPRER

other leases with remaining lease terms sk AlfEmA E IR E®

ended on or before year end AERX 10,903 26,230
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets BEEEEEENHERR 1,083 6,719
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIEBR AR B 116,838 140,425
Extension and termination options D. EHIR&LL#E

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. These options are
negotiated by management to provide flexibility in
managing the leased-asset portfolio and they are aligned
with the Group's business needs. Set out below are the
undiscounted potential future rental payments for extension
options which the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise:

AREFR

ARETT

BN ETEN
FEEARE

Extension options expected
not to be exercised

AEEBEENBE SRR LENE

1= AL

A5 see

EAH - HERBERETERE
NEEERARARES  THAA

SENEBTE - TXHIAEES
RETE NIRRT AR B
ARSI

2020
Payable
after
five years
ARAF#
30
RMB’000
ARBT T

Payable
within
five years

Total

=4
RMB’000

#et
RMB’000
ARBT R
57,261

14,744 72,005

ARAFA

A
RMB'000
ARBTT

B ETERN
FEEARE

Extension options expected
not to be exercised

2019
Payable
after
five years
AR AFIE
A
RMB'000
ARETT

Payable
within

five years Total

st

RMB’'000
AEHF 7T
98,052

44,657 142,709
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Are SRR T

13. LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued)

E. Variable lease payments
The Group has lease contracts for land that contain variable
payments based on the unit purchase price of rice
announced by local government. Management's objective
is to align the lease expense with the amount paid in last
time. The following provides information on the Group's
variable lease payments, including the magnitude in

relation to fixed payments:

13. HEm@m)

REBEREEA (8

E. TWHHEEN
REBFEE R ABRBFAMHBA
B EEM A E MR LA EAL -
EREMEEAFHAERYHE XX
NHeBERF % TXREFEA
SENEHERNER  BERET
NRERBHEE -

2020
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
& E &K k- SREN st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®F
Fixed rent EEMEE 85,569 - 85,569
Variable rent only ERE-2ikn - 80 80
85,569 80 85,649
2019
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
ERRNEA A] B3R BT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETRT AREBTE
Fixed rent ElTEHE 92,327 - 92,327
Variable rent only BRI EMEE - 79 79
92,327 79 92,406

A 5% (2019: 5%) increase in unit purchase price of rice
would increase total lease payments by 5% (2019: 5%).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSOR

During the year, the Group leases certain commercial properties
in Asia, North America and Oceania which were classified as
investment properties. The rental income of these properties
amounting to RMB87,773,000 (2019: RMB76,847,000) was
recognised and included in “Revenue” in profit or loss. Certain
office premises, machineries and equipment were classified as
property, plant and equipment under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB32,291,000 (2019: RMB27,468,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease
payments receivables by the Group in future periods under non-

cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

fre SRR MR

13. AE m@m)

AEBEAEHBEA

FRN - AEBREMN - EEMNRAEMEE
FREAREMENTEDNE - FRZLY
XEERNEE RS A AR S7,773,0007T
(20194 : AR¥76,847,0007T) Wit ABZE
BTRA] R BEFTRHAE - BN ERER
KEMBELZHT)DEAME - BB MEE -
ZEHENKZIBTERMAPLPZINRES
VARG EHETHESHAE - K
EERNFRABRHNBEREZAARE
32,291,0007C (20194 = A R ¥ 27,468,000
T0) ¢ FHIEE R R A S IREMIEES ©

RBEHR - AEERBENAIHBEEEHE
AR SR ERFE ) KL 7 P U ER ) R B 3R AR & 5kan

77

2

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETIT
Not more than 1 year TZ1 397,186 258,081
Over 1 year to 2 years 1FAERE2F 82,813 44,852
Over 2 years to 3 years 260N FE3F 17,017 31,643
Over 3 years to 4 years 3FUEFR4F 14,016 22,671
Over 4 years to 5 years AFLNEESF 13,345 19,619
Over 5 years S5 E 13,989 69,344
538,366 446,210
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRE MR

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. HE @)
THE GROUP AS A LESSOR (Continued) AEEESEHFAA (@)
The disaggregation of these office premises, machineries and SR BT ATETE TYE - e BN
equipment classified as property, plant and equipment under N SR TR S SR T BN B SRS
operating leases and the reconciliation of the carrying amount at EEEESTIT :

the beginning and end of the period are set out as below:

Land and Plant and
buildings machinery Total
TREF HERESR st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBTT ARBT T
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1 H 22,999 412,389 435,388
Additions NE - 145,393 145,393
At 31 December 2019 and MK2019F 12 31 B K
1 January 2020 2020F1 H1H 22,999 557,782 580,781
Additions NE 76,058 724,590 800,648
Expiration and termination B HA M 4R 1 F - (139,008) (139,008)
At 31 December 2020 202012 H31 H 99,057 1,143,364 1,242,421
Accumulated depreciation: Ritine .
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1 H (5,505) (47,332) (52,837)
Provided for the year FREE (1,069) (75,313) (76,382)
At 31 December 2019 and K2019F 12 H31H K
1 January 2020 2020F1 H1 H (6,574) (122,645) (129,219)
Provided for the year FREE (23,276) (220,335) (243,611)
Expiration and termination EIHA R AR E - 58,188 58,188
At 31 December 2020 202012 H31 H (29,850) (284,792) (314,642)
Net carrying amount: ARTEFE -
At 31 December 2020 202051231 H 69,207 858,572 927,779
At 31 December 2019 720194 12 A 31 A 16,425 435,137 451,562
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

fre SRR MR

14. REWE

2020 2019
Note RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTFR

B &E ARBT R

At 1 January W1A1TH 6,870,181 4,698,503
Additions NE 439,356 1,676,170
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WS E A A = 196,638
Changes in fair value NRBEES 7 (157,263) 147,997
Exchange realignment PE 5 7 (178,704) 150,873
At 31 December 12318 6,973,570 6,870,181

Further summary details of the Group's investment properties are
set out in the section headed “"Summary of Major Investment
Properties” of this report.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

VALUATION PROCESSES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment
properties were stated at fair value and were revalued by
independent professionally qualified valuers detailed below:

American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd.

Acumentis Pty Ltd.

Metropolitan Valuation Services
Inc. & CBRE Valuation &
Advisory Services

For properties in Thailand
For properties in Australia
For properties in United States

Colliers International Realty For properties in Canada
Advisors Inc.

Guangdong Jingxin Real Estate Land ~ For properties in PRC
Asset Evaluation Co., Ltd.*

Knight Frank Asset Appraisal Limited ~ For properties in Indonesia

Albawsala Real Estate Valuation

SRE Global Pte. Ltd.

For properties in Dubai
For properties in Myanmar

The valuations performed by the valuers for financial reporting
purposes were reviewed by management. Management also
discussed the valuation processes and results with the valuers.
The net fair value gains or losses on revaluation are included in
“other revenue, income and gains” or “other expenses” in profit
or loss, respectively.

Management reviewed the valuation results by verifying all major
inputs and assumptions and assessing the reasonableness of
such valuations.

AEBREMERBZHE — P BHENAR
SFEBEREMEME] —Hf -

REKEHEHETE=ZTNREMENE
—IREBEFHBENGEMEHRME3 -

HERRF

R R - AREOREMERAAEE
25 - BT B A E A E A
BT

American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd.  REIMEMNE
Acumentis Pty Ltd. EMDENS

Metropolitan Valuation Services ~ EEIMEME
Inc. & CBRE Valuation &
Advisory Services

Colliers International Realty AMEXDEME
Advisors Inc.

BRRERMELEETM SREMERE
BRAF

R AETRERAR SHRMENS

Albawsala Real Estate Valuation Gt EWEME

SRE Global Pte. Ltd. taanEns

EEEREEHNGEMRIE2®RE NE
mE - BEENSREEMIREERF R
ER - BHEENBENAABEFNRNE
B D RIFFARRE AN TEMBUA - Yas I
Maml sk [EApAs] -

EEEBECABBREMEIES ABERRKRR
M ANERZGEER T EZEHED
BB o
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Are SRR T

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

14. REYE @)
VALUATION TECHNIQUES AND FAIR VALUE HEFERAAEBERE
HIERARCHY

The following table shows the valuation techniques used by the

TRIREERMEE AR BERAANGE
TR o FRRETT A ER ST EAEE) -

valuers in the determination of fair values. There were no
significant changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

Fair value
DABHE

2020
RMB'000
AR¥TR

2019
RMB’000
AREFTE

Valuation techniques

fhER %

Unobservable inputs

AU BEGABE

=

=

Vacant lands and buildings 3,909,448 4,241,189  Direct/sales comparison Premium (discount) in
approach quality of land™
ZETHRIE B/ HELEE B4 E 2 HEN
B (HraE) 0
Lands and buildings 1,650,988 1,468,016  Residual method Gross development value®
and estimated
construction cost
T RME FeRE BEEREE RMEFEERAE
Buildings 1,413,134 254,070 Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate®
approach and market rent®
S W EARbE ERfbbEORmSHE®
Buildings under - 906,906  Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate®
refurbishment approach and market rent®
KERmE W EARbE ERfbkEORmiSHE®
6,973,570 6,870,181
Note: BMI5E -
0 The higher the quality of land, the higher the fair value a THEERS  ANEBEERS
@ The higher the gross development value, the higher the fair value @ HEREEDS  AAEERS
® The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value © B2 DNREERE
) mEREERE  AREERS

The higher the market rent, the higher the fair value

RBEYR - KEEETERTABEREBA
BEE  AEENREVMEEEAANEE
RBEPFE=A - FARERE =-REALE
(20194 : &) -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment
properties were within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as their
valuations were arrived at by reference to certain significant
unobservable inputs. There were no transfers into or out of Level

3 during the year (2019: Nil).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

(A) GOODWILL

(B)

AN
ral

15. BERAEMETLEE

(A) BE

F SRR M Rt

2020 2019

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARETIT

At 1 January »1A1H 398,589 363,133

Acquisitions of subsidiaries W BE B B A ) 37 3,152 64,556

Impairment NERIE] 7 (20,333) (29,100)

At 31 December ®12831H 381,408 398,589
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (B) HttBEEE

Operating Patent and Computer
concession proprietary software
Trademark Brand name rights  technologies and others Total
BE [k BSeR SARTEHMG EREHRHM st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETT T AREFT ARETTL ARBTT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1H 39,647 110,577 24,550 79,726 74,349 328,849
Additions NE 1,09 - - 91 9,336 10,726
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEHELR 39,138 - - 41,577 3,634 84,349
Disposals HE - - - - (70) (70)
Exchange realignment EHAE 1 - - - 27 28
At 31 December 2019 and R019E1RANER
1 January 2020 20201818 79,885 110,577 24,550 121,594 87,276 423,882
Additions RE 483 - - 1427 19,569 21479
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WERHB AR
(note 37) R 37,669 - - 11,928 84 49,681
Disposals HeE ) - - (1,629 (1,520) (3,151)
Exchange realignment BN A% 8 - - (66) (26) (84)
At 31 December 2020 R2020E12 /318 118,043 110,577 24,550 133,254 105,383 491,807
Accumulated amortisation: EHg £
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A18 (1,297) () - (10,068) (59,692) (71,062)
Provided for the year EREE (2.986) (10) - (6,031) (7,750) (16,777)
Disposals He - - - - 70 70
Exchange realignment EHEE 0] - - - B 0]
At 31 December 2019 and RO19E1RANER
1 January 2020 200%1 718 (4,284) (15) - (16,099 (67,375) (87,773)
Provided for the year FREE (6,804) (10 - (10,221) (1,572) (24,607)
Disposals He - - - 1,181 310 1491
Exchange realignment EHAE ) - - - 13 11
At 31 December 2020 2020127318 (11,090) (25) - (25,139) (74,624) (110,878)
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2020 R2020E 124318 106,953 110,552 24,550 108,115 30,759 380,929
At 31 December 2019 201912 4318 75,601 110,562 24,550 105,495 19,901 336,109
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR R MR

16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill, brand name
and trademark and operating concession rights with indefinite
useful lives set out in note 15 have been allocated to twelve
individual cash-generating units (“CGUs"), comprising
subsidiaries engaging in the following businesses:

. provision of environmental engineering services;
° provision of sewage treatment services;
o provision of hazardous waste treatment services;

° provision of product quality inspection and calibration
services for warranty instruments;

. manufacture and sale of valves and automobile accessories;
. provision of construction, installation and other related
engineering services;
° manufacture and lease of aluminium formworks;
° provision of e-commerce services;
o manufacture and sale of plastic pipes;
. cultivation of flowers and plants; and
° manufacture and sale of plastic pipes and pipe fittings.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M SRR

16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILLAND 16. BEREMEERAEREHN
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH | EERENR @
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of goodwill, brand name and trademark RBRERARDEEZFEMNEE  BRKL
and operating concession rights at the end of the reporting BEMNEFGESRNIERENT ¢

period allocated to these units are as follows:

Brand name Operating

and  concession
Goodwill  trademark rights

BE  ERRER  HCER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETxR

Guangzhou EP Environmental BN ERIRRE TI2RAt
Engineering Ltd.* and its subsidiary BRARREMEAF
("GZEP") (TGzZEP)) - 110,520 23,230
Foshan Shunde Huifengyuan #HLmIEERELRIRR
Environmental Management IEEEERAR
Co., Ltd.* ("Huifengyuan”) (DEZIR]) 7,457 = 1,320
Hainan Baolai Industrial & Trading BEERIEBERAAK
Co., Ltd.* and its subsidiary (“Baolai”) HB AR ([EXK]) 39,997 - -
Jiangsu Yongbao Environmental ITEKIRRREHR
Technology Co., Ltd.* and its BRARREKEAR]
subsidiaries (“Jiangsu Yongbao") (IERKE]D 276,098 - -
Guangzhou KingHing Construction BN = EBZER R
Technology Ltd.* and its subsidiaries ERARIRENBAR
(“Guangzhou KingHing") ([EM=E]) 37,292 = -
Guangdong Qicheng Information EREEE B
Technology Co., Ltd.* BRAT]
("Guangdong Qicheng”) ([ERRE]) 17,412 - -
Guangdong Jinying Flower Seedling BREBETENRERAF
Co., Ltd.* ("Guangdong Jinying") a0 1,763 - -
Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. 1,389 36,713 -
381,408 147,233 24,550
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB B ISRk RE

16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILLAND 16. BEREMEERAEREHN
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH | EERENR @
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

Operating
concession
Goodwill  Brand name rights

Bl mhE KRt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBETIT ARETIT ARBTT

GZEP GZEP - 110,520 23,230
Huifengyuan ELIR 7,457 - 1,320
Baolai =R 39,997 - -
Anhui Jianghuai Quality Technology TEAIES 2R
Testing Service Co., Ltd.* OB RIS B TR A R
("Jianghuai Testing”) (TR ) 8,755 - -
Jiangsu Yongbao TR 276,098 - -
Hunan Huaging Testing Technology S8R EE /S BRI AR A A
Co., Ltd.* (“Hunan Huaging") ([HrEE D) 1,726 - -
Guangdong Zhongheng Precision BRAERTeBRE
Metal Manufacture Co., Ltd.* ER AT
("Guangdong Zhongheng”) (TERFE]) 1,989 - -
Guangdong Yitong Technology ER BN AR A
Co., Ltd.* (“Guangdong Yitong”) ([BR—@]) 7,863 - -
Guangzhou KingHing B = B 37,292 - -
Guangdong Qicheng E R 17,412 - -
398,589 110,520 24,550
Management regarded brand name and trademark and ERERRBBRBE O ELNENR LT
operating concession rights acquired through business MEFFrREEAGEEREAFE - kJyHh
combinations having indefinite useful lives because they are REFEEIRIE A BIRAIRSIMAFEH
expected to generate net cash inflows indefinitely.
The recoverable amounts of each CGU have been determined ReEFEUz A REeBIERT RS
based on value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections FERAAEZEREEET MR RESTEN
which based on financial budgets approved by the management DIREBEEEEEN s T MMEESE - B
covering a five-year period. The growth rate used to extrapolate TFHzReRETA2% IEREES -
cash flows beyond the five-year period is 2% and the pre-tax MiReRETEAMERNBATRIRENAT -

discount rates applied to cash flow projections are as follows:

Pre-tax
discount rate
BATRAIR =
GZEP GZEP 15.2%
Huifengyuan ELR 11.3%
Baolai DS 12.6%
Jianghuai Testing AR 17.4%
Jiangsu Yongbao TLERK R 14.1%
Hunan Huaging HFAES 16.4%
Guangdong Zhongheng BRHIE 15.4%
Guangdong Yitong ER—8 17.9%
Guangzhou KingHing M = B 15.9%
Guangdong Qicheng R R 15.7%
Guangdong Jinying EReE 18.2%
Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. 14.1%
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

17.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the units’
past performance and management'’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of each CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

At the end of the reporting period, based on the value in use
calculation of Jianghuai Testing, Hunan Huaging, Guangdong
Zhongheng and Guangdong Yitong, impairment losses
amounting to RMB8,755,000, RMB1,726,000, RMB1,989,000 and
RMB7,863,000, respectively, were recognised on the relevant
goodwill in respect of the current year, which arose from the
expected decline in the market demand. At 31 December 2019,
based on the value in use calculation of GZEP, impairment loss
amounting to RMB29,100,000 was recognised on the relevant
goodwill in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019, which
arose from the expected decline in the demand of environmental
engineering services. Except for goodwill mentioned above,
there are no impairments of any other CGUs containing gooduwill,
brand name and trademark and operating concession rights with
indefinite useful lives (2019: Nil).

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

fre SRR MR

16. BEREMAERTEAFHN

| EERENR @

AEAEREENEMEIRZRREBREER
HEBREMENRSRA RENMEE
B - BRAART DEREREMABERR R
BEEHERNTSERROBEMEL - BE
ERA  ERAZEFHREAEHAENERNAE
EP I eERRHELEURENKRAE
BHEZBMAREEE

RIpER - BERTERA - HEES - E
RPERER—BNEREBRTE  AFE
EXHEEESRBRAEBEARE
8,755,0007T + A R #1,726,0007T + A R #&
1,989,000 7T & A K #7,863,0007T + 1t )50
R SKTEAI T PEFTER - 20194 12A 318
AN GZEPHIEREEE  HE2019F12
A3NBEFECHEBAEERERBERE
AR #29100,0007T * W THERBTERGEH
SKIBER TR ATER » B Bl A9 Boh - (T
MEMEEHE  AERAFHFHNER
LEBRMEBTREENReELESMRE
(20194 « £E) -

17. RFE QRIS

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETE

AR¥T

Share of net assets DR EEFRE 1,922,508 1,328,136
Goodwill on acquisitions W B E A R 472,669 173,001
2,395,177 1,501,137
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Are SRR T

17.

Particulars of the associates as at 31 December 2020 are as

follows:

Registered

capital

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration
and business

17. REEE N TIER (@)

Ownership
interest

i

M2020F12 A318 -

Percentage of

FrEERH

Voting
power

Profit
sharing

BanmEENT

Principal
activity

Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
BYREEBRERAR

China National Petroleum Waterproof
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.*"
EP/EE&[KE?M‘#H(mﬂfl)ﬂ”ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/&ﬂ

Foshan Hechuang Yingke Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.*
FUTFERIRNEEREARAR

Guangdong Home Electronic Appliances

World E-Commerce Co., Ltd.*®
BRREHAETAKERLA

Guangdong Jinfangshi Industry and
Finance Investment Development
Co, Ld*

ERENNEBREZRARLAY

Guangzhou Luhang Agricultural
Technology Co,, Ltd.* @

BMEMERRBEERLR?

Jiangxi KingHing Aluminium Formwork
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*

IR REEREERRAA

Jiangyin Yongging Water Purifying
Agent Co,, Ltd.*

LEmAEFKEBRAR

Shanghai Banxin loT Tech Co., Ltd.*

LERATYBERRERARY

Shenzhen EDA CLOUD Technologies
Co., Ltd* @

A HEERRBRAA?

WIIK Public Company Limited @
WIIK Public Company Limited ©
Artaic, LLC®

Artaic, LLC®

164
T

AMEE
RMB3,731,000
AR3,731,0007C
RMB78,119,000
ARH78,119,0007
RMB180,000,000
AFE# 180,000,000 70
RMB40,000,000
AEH40,000,0007C
RMB6,667,000

AR 6,667,000
RMB123,410,000
AR123,410,0007
RMBS5,000,000

AR 5,000,000 7T
RMBS5,000,000

AR 5,000,000
RMB13,173,000
ARE131730007
RMB,316,000

AR 6,316,0007C

THB725,335,328
725,335,328 %2 Bl
US$2,500,000
2,500,000 % 7T

TR 2
Cayman Islands
REHS

PRC

s

PRC

i

PRC

s

PRC

P
PRC
i
PRC
i
PRC
G
PRC
G
PRC

RE

Thailand
R
USA
e
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RED

25
38
38
20
20

RRE

40

24
24
20
20

FEfE R A
26

26

31
31
38
38
30
30
25

25
38
38
20
20
20
20
33
33
21

21

Manufacture and sale
of aluminium profiles

BUERHEREM

Manufacture and sale
of waterproof materials

RIE RHER A
Property development
NEER

E-commerce platform

Investment

e
Agriculture development
REER

Manufacture and sale
of aluminium formwork

BUERHERERR

Manufacture and sale
of chemical products

RERBEIER

Provision of loT
solution services

B BRI R

Provision of internet
technology and
related services

RETBERER
GiElaliigrs

Manufacture and sale
of plastic pipes
HERHERHE S

Manufacture and sale
of mosaic tiles

RENHERERER



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Note:

m During 2020, the Group acquired 13.64%, 15.23% and 2.27% equity interests
in China National Petroleum Waterproof (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. from
independent third parties at considerations of RMB60,000,000,
RMB67,000,000 and RMB10,000,000, respectively. Accordingly, the Group

has significant influence over this company.

@ During current year, the Group acquired 30.00%, 25.00%, 38.00% and 20.83%
equity interests in Guangdong Home Electronic Appliances World
E-Commerce Co., Ltd., Guangdong Jinfangshi Industry and Finance
Investment Development Co., Ltd., Guangzhou Luhang Agricultural
Technology Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen EDA CLOUD Technologies Co., Ltd.
from independent third parties at total considerations of RMB45,000,000,
RMB 10,000,000, RMB500,000,000 and RMB25,000,000, respectively.

@ During current year, the Group acquired 24.25% equity interest in WIIK
Public Company Limited from independent third parties at a total
consideration of THB280,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB60,285,000).

@ It is considered that the Group has significant influence over these
companies because the Group has a director in each of the boards of
directors of these companies.

Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“Xingfa Aluminium”), which
is considered as a material associate of the Group, is engaged in
the manufacture and sale of aluminium profiles and is accounted
for using the equity method.

iR e B g R MR

17. REEE DT REZR (@)
N

M 20206 + A& RE N E =5 WE R B EER
IREHE ORI B 19 B BR A B1#9 13.64% ~ 15.23% K&
2.27% ek - REEH RIA AR 60,000,0007T © A
ER# 67,000,000 7T K2 A R # 10,000,000 7T ° (A1t -
AEEHZRARAERVES -

@ RAFER - AEE D BB S =TT B ER
REUARETABARAAF  EREHAERK
BERARAT - BMNSMEERHARAF R
RYIT ZEER B R AR 30.00% - 25.00%
38.00% % 20.83%fik # - MAREDHAARE
45,000,0007C + A K #10,000,0007T - A R #
500,000,000 7T B2 A R 25,000,000 7T ©

@ RAFER AEBEWELE =T REWIK
Public Company Limited #24.25% & ## - B (E
#5280,000,000 7= B &k (48 & 7 49 A R #5 60,285,000
JT) e

@ AEBERZUEAFRERTEHRE —RES WA
KERRAEEHZARBREEATES -

B RFIERAR AR ([HRBIRE]) WRR
K%lﬂ’ﬂ—%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ%’&?  REEBLER
ST - WIRREEEARR ©

Annual Report 2020 4F i} 165
[ —



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB B ISRk RE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. REHE N RS (80
Summarised financial information of the material associate, BEEARESATIRRE RSB 5 E R
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled B(ZEEHNERSABERNEMERED
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements PR BAR S B ISR R E B EITEER)
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: R
Xingfa
Aluminium
WAL GRS
RMB'000
ARETT
Current assets RBEE 6,538,614
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill FRBEE(TEERE) 3,151,610
Goodwill on acquisition of the associate WS RN REENEE 124,590
Current liabilities mEAE (5,039,315)
Non-current liabilities ERBBIE (403,219)
Net assets BEFH 4,372,280
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEFHE(IRERE) 4,247,690
Reconciliation to the Group's interest ERZRER BB N R A RE A
in the associate: BVEIER -
Proportion to the Group's ownership PG N BE PR A RELL I 26.28%
Group's share of net assets of REESEBERRINEE
the associate, excluding goodwill FE(TERERE) 1,116,292
Goodwill on acquisitions WHEE E r g 124,590
Carrying amount of the investment A REE 1,240,882
Revenue A 11,900,456
Profit for the year F & A 749,327
Other comprehensive expense Hih2EH (1,734)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWB AR 747,593
Fair value of the Group's investment AEBKREAAEE 674,872
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information TRV AEFEIEFERIE AR S A G R E
of the Group's associates that are not individually material: B BA OB
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB‘000
AR¥T ARETT
Share of the associates: DIEEE AR
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHF,(EE) 6,310 (36,622)
Other comprehensive income Hiv 2 ks = -
Total comprehensive income/(expense) cEWE(FX) @5 6,310 (36,622)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REERERBE R EIH
investments in the associates WBERTHE 1,154,295 381,203
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INTERESTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

Share of net assets

fre SRR MR

W
i3
>

18. A—E

EaiEs

2020
RMB’000

2019
RMB'000
ARBTFR
10,356

ARET R

DEEFR 11,523

Particulars of the joint venture are as follows:

Guangdong Lesso EPCO Residential
Equipment Design Services Co., Ltd.*

RRE 22
BRRAE

N ERHEE R RA R

The following table illustrates the information of the Group's

interests in a joint venture:

AE#10,000,0007C H 50 50 50

BEDEMFBRNT :

Percentage of
FiiEB DL
Voting

Place of
incorporation/
Profit
sharing

Registered
capital

registration Ownership

and business interest

EMEYL/
dfMEx EMREXLE AARRE REE EdRN
RMB10,000,000 PRC 50 50 50

power Principal activity

TEXK

Provision of household
decoration design work
and maintenance
services

RURERMHRE
RGER

2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARETTE

ARBT R

Share of the joint venture: DIEEERE
Profit from continuing operations S IB IR TSR T 1,167 1,053
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 M = -
Total comprehensive income PHEW S B EE 1,167 1,053
Carrying amount of the Group's REBKENGEREN
investments in the joint venture BRMEE 11,523 10,356
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4§

ANy =| /ﬁﬂ?’%$&%ﬁﬁg\f

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

19. HttEMEE

Note
Bt

2020
RMB’000

ARET T

2019
RMB'000
ARBTT

Non-current FRE
Debt instruments at BARBEFAEMEE
FVTOCI: WEmEHTA : (M
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong RBEB L MEEES 29,724 46,923
Debt securities listed in PRC R B ETEE S - 509,647
29,724 556,570
Equity instruments at BARBEFALBEE
FVTOCI: WHRBATA
Equity securities listed in PRC R E R EH 853,576 231,536
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong RBEE L TRAES 551,520 394,811
Perpetual capital securities listed in REBEMKAER
Hong Kong FH - 8,780
Unlisted equity securities JE TR AR E A 485,319 501,153
1,890,415 1,136,280
Equity instruments at FVTPL: BARBEFABRNKRATE
Unlisted equity securities JEFTIIRAEES (ii) 53,958 56,344
Equity securities listed in PRC KB EHRAE S 446,196 -
Equity securities listed in PRRE E AR
United Kingdom FHE (iii) 241,983 -
742,137 56,344
Funds at FVTPL: BAREBEFABRSNES
Stock funds RERES 18,730 21,926
2,681,006 1,771,120
Current RE
Debt instruments at o e (B E AR M2 E RS £
FVTOCI: BEHTA: (M
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong REE FTERES 24,915 8,363
2,705,921 1,779,483
Note: BEE
(i) The debt securities carry fixed interest at rates ranging from 5.70% to 7.85% (i) &7 385 1) T SR [E E F F| %7 F 5.70% £ 7.85%
(2019: 5.65% to 8.40%) per annum, payable semi-annually or annually in (20194 : 5.65% £ 8.40%) st & - B FHBF
arrears and will mature from February 2021 to January 2023 (2019: January A R #g 202162 A E 20234 1 A EIHA(20194F -
2020 to January 2023). 202051 A& 2023F1 H) »
(i) The equity securities contained a puttable option were classified as equity (i) DERBAREEFT ANBRNRATANKRARE
instruments at FVTPL. FBE—(EREERE -
(iii) The rights of the equity securities are restricted by a loan agreement with a (iii) MR FE S MR RN E3 ATt E = 'R
third party mentioned in note 31. VEE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fre SRR MR

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES 20. BB
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Non-current FERE
Finance lease receivables A& E RIS R FOE 3,584 11,613
Factoring receivables RIB AR 7 FE W IR 136,000 -
139,584 11,613
Current RE
Finance lease receivables BB E RS e U SR IE 140,219 165,339
Factoring receivables RIZBARFS FE W RIA 816,932 260,491
Receivables from supply-chain HE 3 B AR 7S e R
financing services FRIB 125,660 129,520
1,082,811 555,350
Less: Provision for impairment W R ERE (207,745) (190,677)
875,066 364,673
1,014,650 376,286
(A) FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (A) REHEEREERRE

Minimum lease Present value of minimum

receivables lease receivables

REHAERBERRE BEEEREERGERE

2020 2019 2020 2019
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTT AR®TR ARETE

Not more than 1 year TZ1F 141,557 191,748 140,219 165,339
Over 1 year but within 5years 18 A 58 AR 3,736 14,131 3,584 11,613
145,293 205,879 143,803 176,952
Less: Unearned finance o RBREE
income Weas (1,490) (28,927)
Present value of minimum IR ERR TS FE UL
lease receivables NIERE 143,803 176,952
The Group's finance lease receivables are denominated in REE K A TSRS FEU R IE A A
Renminbi. The effective interest rates of the receivables REEEHE o R EIWTIBENERE R =
ranged from 11.42% to 11.77% (2019: 5.89% to 13.19%) per NTE11.42% ZE11.77%(2019 4 : 5.89%
annum. There are no unguaranteed residual values of assets £13.19%) - B (IR EHEEEN
leased under finance leases and no contingent rent AERFGEER TEITOBETER
arrangements that needed to be recognised (2019: Nil). S AHEZHE (20194 « ) o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Are SRR T

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(A) FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is a credit quality analysis of these finance

(A)

lease receivables:

20. EURER @@

b & AH AR A MR WRROR ()
AT AREHEEREEEFENEER
BEDM

2020
RMB'000

2019
RMB’000
ARHEF T

ARBTR

Not past due A e EA 19,804 21,731
Overdue 2 EH 123,999 155,221
143,803 176,952

The receivables are secured by assets leased under finance
leases and cash deposits (where applicable).

Cash deposits from finance lease customers are collected
upfront based on certain percentage of the entire value of
the lease contracts. When the lease contracts expire and all
related liabilities and obligations are fulfilled by the
customers, the cash deposit will be returned in full. The
balance of the cash deposit can also be used to settle any
outstanding lease receivables for the corresponding lease
contract. The collected cash deposits of RMB1,310,000 have
been included in “other payables and accruals” (2019:
RMB21,310,000 included in “other long-term payables”) in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, RMB48,245,000 of the
Group's finance lease receivables was impaired (2019:
RMB31,177,000).

FACTORING RECEIVABLES

The Group's factoring receivables arise from the provision

(B) (B)

of factoring services to companies located in PRC. The
credit period granted to each customer is generally within
365 days.

Factoring receivables are secured by receivables and/or
commercial bills originally owned by the customers. These
receivables carry interest at rates ranging from 8.04% to
12.00% (2019: 4.00% to 7.20%) per annum.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(B)

(€

FACTORING RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The maturity profile of the factoring receivables at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

ire MR MR

20. EUWER @)

(B)

R I AR 75 B URR TE (48)
RS BIR - ARIB AR TS FE W IR RO B
HIERWT

2020
RMB’'000

2019
RMB’000
ARHEF T

ARBTR

With a residual maturity of: AR EARR -
Not more than 3 months N 31E A 19,219 15,778
Over 3 months to 6 months 3MEAU EZE6{EA 158,410 46,713
Over 6 months to 12 months 6MEAR EE121EA 479,803 38,500
Over 12 months to 24 months 12ME A = 2418 A 136,000 -
Overdue 2 HA 159,500 159,500
952,932 260,491

At the end of the reporting period, RMB159,500,000 of the
Group's factoring receivables was impaired (2019:
RMB159,500,000).

RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN
FINANCING SERVICES

The Group's receivables from supply-chain financing
services arise from the provision of supply-chain financing
services to companies located in PRC. The credit period for
each customer is generally within 365 days.

These receivables carry interest at rates ranging from 9.72%
to 16.20% per annum (2019: 4.75% to 10.80%).

Certain receivables from supply-chain financing services
amounting to RMB125,660,000 (2019: RMB129,520,000) are
secured by certain interests of companies and personal
guarantees.

(@)

RIEF KR - AR 159,500,000 7T &Y
AEBRRERGEWRZKEE RE
(20194F = AR# 159,500,0007T) °

P SR B R A JE W ROR

7R £5 [ 6 £ 8 22 B0 A AR A% FE R IR R
AT E AR R EEEERE R -
BEPHERYPR—MRBI5RA °

ZE R IBZN T9.72% = 16.20%
#) € F (20194 : 4.75% %= 10.80%)
§+/§D\ °©

T EERE RS EKRRE
A R #125,660,000 7T (20194 : AR
#£129,520,000 70 ) LA E T AR &
BN FERVEIAR ©

Annual Report 2020 4 %R 171

| —



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRE MR

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. RS R (#0)
(C) RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN (C) MHrEdEmE AR WA (8
FINANCING SERVICES (Continued)
The maturity profile of the receivables from supply-chain REREEIR - (e 3 R & AR 75 E Wk
financing services at the end of the reporting period is as THRRIHE R T ¢
follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFT
With a residual maturity of: i) B BAPR
Not more than 3 months N 31E A 84,810 79,478
Over 3 months to 6 months 3MEALA EZ6EA 30,550 32,390
Over 6 months to 12 months AR EE121EA 10,300 17,652
125,660 129,520
At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group's NIPEHIER  REBRMHEEEDER
receivables from supply-chain financing services was either F& 1 JrE U 55 18 17 4 6 2 S8R0 (E (2019
past due or impaired (2019: Nil). o) o
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by BB B EIECR  SHEgE
considering the probability of default of those companies with M E R BEBREE EZE N FRE LA
financial conditions, historical loss experience, coverage by R PAEIREHEETHEDN o RIS HEA
letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance. At the end of B THEREZIENNEBRTAEE R
the reporting period, the loss given default for the remaining R EB RGO SRR ESLE o
balance of loan receivables was not material and has no impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
21. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 21. HitnERBEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRE ARETT
Other long-term receivables H b R BRI IR 21,985 4,093
Value-added tax (“VAT") recoverable I FN I ER ([ ER ) 50,314 38,323
Prepayment for acquisition of TE AT LA A SR A
non-controlling interests E= - 23,868
Prepayment for acquisition of TE AT L B s e
equity investments & 50,000 4,500
122,299 70,784
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. INVENTORIES

fre SRR MR

22. 7€

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARKBTE

Manufacturing and trading ENESH 4,577,047 3,660,365
Property development MR 549,800 305,683

5,126,847 3,966,048
(A) MANUFACTURING AND TRADING (A) HERES

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARKBTE

Raw materials R 1,700,817 1,332,697
Work in progress TEER 476,854 351,332
Finished goods B 2,399,376 1,976,336
4,577,047 3,660,365
(B) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (B) MIXERE
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%ET
Property under development R 549,800 305,683
The property under development is expected to be ZERTPYERTRBRERRESZR

completed in more than twelve months after the end of the + @A °

reporting period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AR

ANy =| /\ﬁﬁ’%i&i‘éwig\f

23.

174

CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES

23. ENEE EWERE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT

ARBT R

Contract assets EHEE
Non-current: IERD
Concession operating right R AR 78,411 81,571
Current: Ep
Renovation and installation works HERLTRETE 441,970 201,485
Environmental engineering services IRIBETRRIRE 27,903 78,660
Concession operating right FEETAC & 3,882 3,882
473,755 284,027
Less: Impairment B ORE (4,214) (4,584)
469,541 279,443
547,952 361,014
Contract liabilities EHEaE
Current: Ep
Renovation and installation works HERTETR 104,685 112,517
Environmental engineering services IRIE T RRTS 10,010 7,832
Advances from customers ZE8I 1,414,239 1,604,951
1,528,934 1,725,300

The Group’s contract assets represent the Group's rights to
consideration for work completed but not yet billed to customers
at the end of the reporting period. The contract assets will be
transferred to trade and bills receivables when the rights become
unconditional, that is, when the Group issue progress billings to
customers based on the certified amount agreed with customers.

At the end of the reporting period, RMB4,214,000 (2019:
RMB4,584,000) was recognised as an allowance for expected
credit losses on contract assets. The Group's trading terms and
credit policy with customers are disclosed in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group's contract liabilities represent the Group’s obligations
to transfer goods or services to customers for which the Group
has received consideration, or for which an amount of
consideration is due from the customers.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M SRR

23. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. EHEBE SHNEE®W)

(Continued)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets EAibjziH)HE W RIS EEE N EER TR
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: AT
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETFT
Not more than 1 year E2NK:S 469,541 279,443
Over 1 year 19 E 78,411 81,571
547,952 361,014
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract BHBEERENEBBERBEZSNT

assets are as follows:

2020 2019

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

B = ARBT T AREFT
At 1 January ®1A1TH 4,584 21,855
Impairment losses (reversed)/recognised (B #[@1) /& #ERRE 1B 7 (370) 3,052
Amounts written off as uncollectible AT RE R E%E — (20,323)
At 31 December M12A31H 4,214 4,584
For the contract assets arising from renovation and installation TREHE R R EE TIR DA R IRE T2 RIS FiE A=
works and environmental engineering services, an impairment HNAENEEMS  NEFRZREHEFHA
analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision BB ST RESITUI EFEHEZEE
matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates for B e AN SENTEREEERNBEER
the measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract R SEWNSRELEENEREEEEE
assets are based on those of the trade and bills receivables as the T RRANEEMB G ERSZE LR ERE
contract assets and the trade and bills receivables are from the AR —EEPEM ANEENREXR
same customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are BLUEBRERNNE FERZTBELEEZENE
based on the invoice date of trade and bills receivables for EESIER(BNiZmE ERER X
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns ARG AR ERAEREMFRNER
(i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and RN EQEET o ZERMEKRE
rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit INAEM4E 2« R R(E LA R A SR B B AT
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted EEEMBASMH BN RRKRLHER RTE
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and BHEEBYEER o

supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Are SRR T

23. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group's contract assets using a provision matrix:

TEE B RE %
EEEE
B

Expected credit loss rate
Gross carrying amount
Expected credit losses

23.

BHEE EHNEE@m

UTEIEEAREEREEREAENS
HMEENEERRER :

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE ARETE
0.90% 1.64%
469,873 280,145
4,214 4,584

For the contract assets arising from concession operating right,
since the party to concession agreements are local government
authorities in PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is low as at
the end of the reporting period. The Group does not hold any
collateral over the balance.

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

24.

RS RFMEENENEEMS © ER
Tt e o AT BT BUT KR - ARER
RRBEMRNEERRAE - AEELE
SLAERIE A I m -

EZRWRERRERE

2020
RMB’000

2019
RMB’000
ARHEF T

ARBTR

Trade receivables Z 5 EWRIE 2,815,700 2,734,678
Bills receivable el EE 1,298,021 762,004
Less: Provision for impairment VB R E R E (263,527) (237,226)

3,850,194 3,259,456

The Group’s major customers are independent distributors, civil
contractors, property developers, utility companies and
municipalities in mainland China. Depending on the market
condition, marketing tactics and relationships with the customers,
the Group's trading terms with its independent distributors may
change from settlement on an advance receipt basis to giving a
credit period of generally one month or more, if appropriate. The
Group does not have a standardised and universal credit period
granted to the non-distributor customers. The credit period of an
individual non-distributor customer is considered on a case-by-
case basis and is set out in the sales contracts, as appropriate.
Sales to small, new, or short-term customers are normally
expected to be settled on an advance receipt basis or shortly
after the goods delivery. No credit term period is set by the
Group for small, new and short-term customers.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and interest-free.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of loss allowance, is as follows:

fre SRR MR

24. BEEWRFTEREE @)
S REWERIBREE AEEAR G S
R ERR - ANEEEE 5B ZIE R E
RS [ HAN F R 1B B B 14 B BR B 4T 40
T :

2020
RMB’000

2019
RMB’000
ARBTT

ARET R

Not more than 3 months TZ R 3MEA 1,690,927 1,385,281
Over 3 months to 6 months 3MEALA EZ6{EA 741,507 523,083
Over 6 months to 12 months AR EZE121ER 939,601 916,406
Over 1 year to 2 years 1FUAEZE24 392,035 351,848
Over 2 years to 3 years 2FLNEEIF 74,378 71,784
Over 3 years 3FLAE 11,746 11,054

3,850,194 3,259,456

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of the
Group's trade and bills receivables are as follows:

AREE P RBFRRFEAERNEE RS
BET

2020
RMB’'000

2019
RMB'000
ARETT

Note

B &E ARET R

At 1 January R1A1TH 237,226 194,493
Acquisition of subsidiaries WS E A 7 = 14,416
Impairment losses recognised ERERREESE 7 38,510 35,486
Amounts written off as uncollectible s AN AT Y B ) & 58 (12,209) (7,169)
At 31 December ®W12A31H 263,527 237,226

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on the invoice date for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

AREBRBHRE A HERBEREETRE
AITAGHERMEEERE - BEXAERU
BEEEANSTEP D RAR (BliiE - &
mBA - RPBEA N - WRERERAE
AR ERRR) NERARET © %&t
ERBRIRENMENER  EEREEAR
RiE AR RSAEBERM  BRIK
REBEARTBAHE IR EHR

Annual Report 2020 4 %R 177
[ —



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Are SRR T

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

on the Group's trade and bills receivables using a provision

matrix:

24. ESRWNFTIEREE @)

NT#INEAAEEEREERETENE
ZRBFEEZENEERRER

2020
Within 1to 2 to Over

1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total

15K 1825 223F 3FHLE et

RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARSTR ARETR AR%®TR ARTR AR%®TR

Expected credit loss rate FEHIEEEBE X 0.83% 6.62% 23.85% 94.01% 6.41%
Gross carrying amount BET42(E 3,400,141 419,835 97,674 196,071 4,113,721
Expected credit losses FEHEEEE (28,106)  (27,800) (23,296) (184,325) (263,527)

3,372,035 392,035 74,378 11,746 3,850,194

2019
Within 1to 2to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total

15 R 1824 2E 34 3FEPE “ast
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETIT AREBTIT AREBTT ARBTIT ARBTIT

Expected credit loss rate TEEEEBEX 0.79% 6.21% 20.07% 94.01% 6.78%
Gross carrying amount BET 428 2,847,360 375,125 89,806 184,391 3,496,682
Expected credit losses TEHEEEE (22,590) (23,277) (18,022)  (173,337)  (237,226)
2,824,770 351,848 71,784 11,054 3,259,456
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25.

26.

fre SRR MR

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. AR - RERHMEWFIR
RECEIVABLES

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARYET T ARETT
Prepayments SEENEN 1,186,439 1,561,497
VAT recoverable BN ER 448,157 477,717
Corporate income tax recoverable I ZETER 18,123 8,556
Deposits ®e 104,812 105,707
Other receivables Hth pE 3R 102,166 83,824
Loan receivables from third parties REE=FEIIER 124,548 100,177
1,984,245 2,337,478
Less: Provision for impairment W R ERE (109,653) (88,348)
1,874,592 2,249,130

Except for the loan receivables from third parties, the financial
assets included in the above balances are unsecured, interest-
free and receivable on demand. The effective interest rates of the
loan receivables from third parties range from 10.0% to 15.0%
(2019: Nil) per annum.

CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

BroRk E 8 = A RIS RON - 5T A Ll &84
SREETERE - B RIRERIER - K
BE = HRIRMEZTHERFEFNENT100%
Z15.0% (20194F : f#) o

26. BERBITER

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Restricted cash: ZREIFED
Guarantee deposits for banking facilities ERIRITRIENERES 1,005,182 1,241,777
Cash and cash equivalents: ReERFSEEY -
Time deposits with original maturity of TE BT 30 (BRI R B BAMR
three months or less when acquired BZEASAT) 241,397 454,916
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTER 6,200,857 5,907,528
6,442,254 6,362,444
Cash and bank deposits RE RIRITHER 7,447,436 7,604,221

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods between one day and twelve months and earn interest at
the respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

RN IRITHIR SR E R IRTERM R T
BRI RMIAE - BHERFROHPRN T
—RE+ZEATFAIREE R E RFRA
REREUH S o RITHEBRE R BB FHR
ATHE IR )RR B R B RAFRIRTT
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Are SRR T

27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

27. EZREANRERRE

2020
RMB’000

2019
RMB'000
AREFT

ARBT R

Trade payables 2 S EMNFUR 1,657,654 1,276,393

Bills payable FENEE 4,020,554 4,553,141
5,678,208 5,829,534

The trade payables are interest-free and are normally settled on BORNFIBIRE  #EARBERIE

terms of 30 to 90 days.

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables at the

end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

90K e
RBEHRR - AEENEZRNFTEARTER
HEZAHMREDNIT -

2020
RMB’'000

2019
RMB’000
AREFT

ARBT R

Not more than 3 months TR 31E A 3,752,988 3,467,192
Over 3 months to 6 months 3MEALA EZ6{EA 1,725,541 2,032,336
Over 6 months to 12 months AR EE121EA 103,177 255,306
Over 1 year to 2 years 1FEN EE2F 45,885 36,791
Over 2 years to 3 years 2FNEEIF 16,130 10,498
Over 3 years IFME 34,487 27,411

5,678,208 5,829,534

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

28. HttENRERETEH

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Accruals FEEtE R 226,808 171,923
Salaries and welfare payables B e RER| 229,181 191,177
Other payables H b T RE 644,229 818,692
1,100,218 1,181,792

The financial liabilities included in the above balances are

interest-free and repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. BORROWINGS

fre SRR MR

29. &

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Current RED
Unsecured bank loans EEPIRITER 7,080,626 5,841,586
Current portion of long-term unsecured REAMERRITERD
bank loans mEE D 185,634 104,575
Current portion of long-term unsecured REAMERREERL
syndicated bank loans mEE S - 5,381,133
Current portion of long-term unsecured REIERIE A E A E KA
other loans mEE D 28,330 28,330
Secured bank loans BEEARITER 61,750 40,090
Current portion of long-term secured REAGERRITERD
bank loans mE D 7,991 15,605
7,364,331 11,411,319
Non-current FERE
Unsecured bank loans MEARIRRITER 571,503 1,045,107
Unsecured syndicated bank loans EARIRREE R 7,145,603 -
Unsecured other loans EE R E A E K 614 28,330
Secured bank loans BEEARITERK 364,434 193,624
8,082,154 1,267,061
15,446,485 12,678,380
Analysed into borrowings repayable: JBEEER
Within one year or on demand —F IR E K 7,364,331 11,411,319
In the second year E-FER 480,513 757,069
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FEFRFAN(BREERRFE) 7,418,879 486,490
More than five years ZHRAF 182,762 23,502
15,446,485 12,678,380
Note: B&E
(@)  The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings range from 1.08% to (a) REBERNEEFFEN T 1.08%Z7.60% T
7.60% (2019: 2.38% to 7.60%) per annum. (20194 : 2.38% £ 7.60%) °
(b) At the end of the reporting period, the secured bank loans are secured by (b) RIREIAR - BEMRITEFDA—FHME LR
machineries and equipment of a subsidiary, leasehold lands and buildings of RS RERE MBLARNMEEERE L RE
subsidiaries, investment property of a subsidiary, loan receivables of a F—EHRBRARANKREDE —BHBARN
subsidiary, the concession rights of a subsidiary and personal guarantee JEWfEF - —HMBARNSRE R -5
provided by a shareholder of that subsidiary. R R (B A JEARVEHE AR
At 31 December 2019, the secured bank loans were secured by the M2019F12A31H - BEMEITERIIL—H
investment property of a subsidiary, time deposit of a subsidiary, loan WEARMWIREYS - — B R RN E T
receivables of a subsidiary, concession rights of a subsidiary and personal Mo —HEHRBARMNERER - —HHEB AR
guarantee provided by a shareholder of that subsidiary. B E R R —ERE N EABRIEER -
(c) At the end of the reporting period, the Group's borrowings are denominated (c) RIBEBMR REEUET Bt AR¥E

in US dollar, HK dollar, Renminbi, Australian dollar and Canadian dollar are
equivalent to RMB6,979,300,000 (2019: RMB6,460,926,000),
RMB4,074,077,000 (2019: RMB2,788,805,000), RMB3,507,450,000 (2019:
RMB2,793,140,000), RMB754,987,000 (2019: RMB481,169,000) and
RMB130,671,000 (2019: RMB154,340,000), respectively.

BITRMTAENERSBSERARYE
6,979,300,0007T (2019 4F = A R % 6,460,926,000
L)~ AR 4,074,077,0007T (20194 : AR
2,788,805,0007T) + A K # 3,507,450,000 7. (2019
F: AR#2,793,140,0007T) « AR¥E 754,987,000
T (20194 « A R #481,169,0007T ) & A B ¥
130,671,0007C(20194F :+ AREE 154,340,0007T) °
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4= A H

ANy =| /\ﬁi’%$&%m#§\£

30. CONVERTIBLE LOANS

182

At the end of the reporting period, the convertible loans were
recognised as a debt component and an equity component as

follows:

30. ATHRRERK

REER - ATBERER

RBEHED K

Equity

component component Total

B EEHD st

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFRE  ARBTE ARBTFR

At the date of issue RETEH 640,113 27,605 667,718

Interest expenses FEFRX 22,655 - 22,655

Increase in interest payable FETA B IE AN (10,728) - (10,728)

Interest paid BB 6,297) - (6,297)

Exchange realignment PE 5 % 6,852 - 6,852
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 12 A31B &

1 January 2020 20201 H1H 652,595 27,605 680,200
Interest expenses F B 41,692 - 41,692
Increase in interest payable JEAH RS HE N (16,346) - (16,346)
Interest paid ERFE (10,333) - (10,333)
Exchange realignment PE 5, 58 %8 (40,246) - (40,246)
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 627,362 27,605 654,967
Note: BT
(a) On 6 May 2019, the Group's wholly-owned subsidiary entered into a (a) R2019F5 860 REBNL2ENBARET

convertible loan facilities agreement with ICBC International Investment REIFR IR EERGR ARG LA ERRE
Management Limited in the aggregate principal amount of US$100,000,000 & A€ 4% /100,000,000 T (HHEROAR
(approximately equivalent to RMB684,025,000) (the “Convertible Loans”). ¥ 684,025,000 7T) ([ TR EFR]) « %5 AT
The Convertible Loans bear interest at the rate of 3.40% plus LIBOR per BRIRF T % 3.40% It SR 17 (R ZE 47 18 R = 51
annum. The Group drew down US$60,000,000 (approximately equivalent to B o R20194F 53220 » 7N & [# 42 60,000,000
RMB410,415,000) on 22 May 2019 and US$40,000,000 (approximately % 55 (R A 49 A R ¥ 410,415,000 78 ) % 38 2019
equivalent to RMB279,489,000) on 29 November 2019. The maturity dates 11 A 29 A $2E140,000,000% 7T (HHERHAR
are 21 May 2022 and 28 November 2022, respectively. £ 279,489,0007T ) B Hi B 5 Bl 520224 5 A 21
A &2022%F 11 288
(b) The convertible loans contain two components, a debt component and an (b)

equity component. The initial fair values of the two components were
determined based on gross proceeds at drawdown. The initial fair values less
allocated transaction costs of the debt component were estimated to be
US$55,799,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB381,681,000) and
US$36,982,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB258,432,000) as at the
drawdown dates of using the Monte Carlo Model and Binomial Option
Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and conditions of the
convertible loans. In subsequent periods, the debt component is measured
at amortised cost using effective interest rate method. The effective interest
rates of the debt component are 4.50% and 5.53% (2019: 7.70%) per annum.
The residual amount less allocated transaction costs representing the value
of the equity component of US$4,001,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB27,605,000) is included in convertible loans equity reserve.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BB M

31. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

3. HttEmAE

2020 2019
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
k3 ARBT T AREEFTT
Current RE
Selling right from non-controlling AR R B
shareholders MR (i) 10,960 -
Non-current IERE
Selling right from non-controlling AR R B
shareholders e (i) 5,411 14,360
Debt portion with uncertain AR E 2
payment term BB H (i) 64,855 -
70,266 14,360
81,226 14,360

Note:

(i)

The fair value of this financial liability has been estimated using valuation
technique with unobservable inputs. Management has reviewed the
valuation result by verifying all major inputs and assumptions as well as
assessing the reasonableness of such valuation.

The Group entered into certain sale and purchase agreements to acquire
70% equity interest in Jiangsu Yongbao during 2018 and 70% equity interest
in Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. during 2020. Pursuant to the agreements, the non-
controlling shareholders have the right to sell the remaining 30% equity
interest to the Group after three years and two years from the respective

dates of acquisitions.

The debt portion with uncertain payment term is managed and the
performances are evaluated on fair value basis. Any change in fair value was
recognised in profit or loss.

On 31 March 2020, the Group entered into a loan agreement with a third
party in the amount of GBP8,400,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB73,198,000). The amount is interest-free and repayable according to the

return of an equity investment held by the Group.

The fair value of this borrowing has been estimated using valuation
technique with unobservable inputs. Management has reviewed the
valuation result by verifying all major inputs and assumptions as well as

assessing the reasonableness of such valuation.

GEX

(i)

A ENA AR EBEDRBAENEATATE
RWABRMGE - ERECEBREMEIES
ABERER LA EZGEEZGBEAENZE
B#HER -

AEEFIVETEEHER 2018 F U T #RKE
70% KR A HE RS+ LA KA 2020 4F Y BE Spirolite (M)
Sdn. Bhd. 70% MRk A o iBIR R - FEIERRAR
FESWHEASE - FRMT ARG EARNERL
& FIEREY 30% PR A HERS -

NRGERTIEE ZEBBDRERRDIZARE
ERIEEE RFTHE - EA AR BEEZHHNE
BATER ©

AEBMR2020F3 A3 AR —FZE=ZFIL 8
A B A8400000E H(HERNH AR
73,198,0007T) M E H ek - kAR B REBERN
EEIFERERENRIRMER

ZEFO AR BEERBEETEZATITERESR
ABEMG - BEERESBREMAEIEHAK
BREBREFEZEEZABEAEHZEES
2o
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32. DEFERRED TAX 32. EEH IR
The major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and their RAFEENBEEECERNTERELERIE
movements during the current and prior years are as follows: BE/(ABE)RESEIT :
Withholding Loss Fair value
Fair value Fair value tax on available for ~ adjustments
adjustments adjustments  distributable offsetting arising from
arisingfrom ~ Provisionfor  Accelerated arising from profits of against financial
investment impairment tax  acquisitions of subsidiaries Deferred future  instrument at
properties ofassets  depreciation subsidiaries in the PRC income taxable profit FVTPL
RENE KENEAT  REMELR UREEE ROAEETA
FEEH BEN WEHE FEEN  TAREAN BAERE BENIRIA
MMEERE RERRE & DAEERER RRAEH i HANEE HAAEESE &t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB! 000 RMB'000 MB' RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARH ARBFT
At 1 January 2019 H019%1818 (148473) 71,65 4250 (61,389) (363,109) 1224 - - (484,837)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR - 1862 - (18,594) - - - - (16732
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss AN/ (NE)EE
for the year (note 9) BR (M) (110435) 13,044 (102) 85 (84,933 36% 1587 - (176,287)
Exchange realignment EiaE (259) - - - - - 8 - (2514)
At 31 December 2019 and R9F128318R
1 January 2020 ANEF1A1H (261,506) 86,562 4148 19120) (448,038) 15920 1611 - (680,370)
Acouisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) WERBAA (H3E37) - - - (16,619) - - - - (16,615)
Credited/(charged) to profitor loss HA/(HE)ER
for the year [note 9) B (9) (36,118) 8,180 (1.431) 4,065 (147,589 9 38294 (5,588) (140,196)
Exchange realignment ERBE 138 - % 53 - - 513 - 5,551
At 31 December 2020 RANE12F318 (297,486) 94,742 2,742 (91,424) (595,627) 15,911 45,100 (5,588) (831,630)
# The amount represented the deferred tax provision of RMB242,208,000 (2019: # ZEeFERANRE A BB QT 55 EL
RMB168,175,000) on the distributable profits of the Company’s subsidiaries B3 AT 5 18 B 4 A R 15 242,208,000 7T (2019 £F -
in the PRC after offsetting the realised deferred tax liabilities of AR ¥E168,175,000 7T ) 3 45 1 84 7% 55 MY 8 A B R
RMB94,619,000 (2019:RMB83,242,000) arising from dividends declared by FAEGIMEEESTRIREMEENE BIRIRILE
these subsidiaries to their foreign investors during the year. TR A EAR94,619,0007C(2019F : AR

83,242,0007T) °

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETTT
Gross deferred tax assets recognised inthe  R4RA B HAK R R NFER
consolidated statement of financial position — FRIE& E 4458 159,888 108,301
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the BA%VT-\Q,\M‘K#R%WEEWE'] LA
consolidated statement of financial position ~ F{IH & E42%a (991,518) (788,671)
(831,630) (680,370)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32.

33.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between mainland China and the jurisdictions of the foreign
investors. The applicable rate for the Group is 5%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in mainland China in respect of
their earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities of RMB346,198,000 (2019: RMB374,897,000)
in respect of temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries, amounting to RMB6,923,963,000 (2019:
RMB7,497,947,000), that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it is probable that these profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents government grants received by the
Group as financial subsidies for the renovation of factories and
machineries or the construction of new factory premises in
Guangdong, Changchun, Hunan, Hainan, Daging, etc. and rental
income received in advance from certain of the Group's
employees for leasing the staff quarters.

The government grants are released to profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the relevant premises by equal annual
instalments, while rental income received in advance is
recognised on the straight-line basis over the respective lease
terms.

32.

33.

ire MR MR

EERE (#)

RIEFRPEMETE - RN A
INEREMINRIEEE ST IR R EAHMN
10% K TR FT1S 1 245 € B 20084 1 A 1
BfEES  BAKBE2007F12A431BBE
BEEF] o fwe B Bz HNBIIS & & FTTE
ANEREE AR HBGL - QIR BRER X
BUNTEIRFTSH - AEBERBERAHE 5% -
EE - BEEZE R B A A Sz K M B A F Bk
20084 1 A1 HRATF &M Mo IR AR S
T ANEEBESMTERMEH

RIREHR - ARARFTHEHZEH B A A
RIIEBIEER - BZE RN e iR oIk
AREET K MASEBE Y EERZSENED
AR IR EREZ A ARE6,923,963,000
TC (20194 = AR ¥ 7,497,947,000 7T ) &Y FE
HEaEA (BRI RZERE &)
A R #346,1980007C(20194F : A R ¥
374,897,000 7T) °

IR A Wy 55

B SR AR BRI - ERE
HER K& i SEERKEEEHT
TR e e A L B 22 ey TR D 36 0 B AR B - A
kARGEERETRERAMBVEEET
EEEekE -

BT BN B R E TR EA R (£ B F IR AL
N A B D AR - MEEKEROES
Yezs BliR S B R BIA B ARRRERR -
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Are SRR T

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. R
Shares 30l 2020 2019
Authorised: EE
20,000,000,000 (2019: 20,000,000,000) 20,000,000,000 (20194 : 20,000,000,000) HK$1,000,000,000 HK$1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BREE.SAETH L AR 1,000,000,000 & 7t 1,000,000,000 % 7T
Issued and fully paid: ERITREE:
3,102,418,400 (2019: 3,102,418,400) 3,102,418,400 (20194 : 3,102,418,400) % HK$155,120,920 HK$155,120,920
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BREE0.05E TR EBR 155,120,920 % 7t 155,120,920/ 7T
Equivalent to ZER RMB135,344,000 RMB135,344,000
AK¥135,344,000t  AR135344,0007C
35. RESERVES 35. f#tE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein AEBAFERBTFENRELERESE
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated HERGEAEREEHRANZY
statement of changes in equity.
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign RIBERRTING ECENHEBERIE
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's B NEEEP BRI HOMB A R R D A
subsidiaries which are established in PRC has been transferred to NEBREREIRINFEERES -
reserve funds which are restricted for use.
36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 36. R BEBN AT

(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on
14 May 2010 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.

No share options have been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since the adoption. The share option
scheme expired on 13 May 2020.

(B) SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 28 August 2018, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) to recognise the
contributions by certain eligible persons to the Group and
to offer suitable incentives to attract and retain targeted
talent and personnel for the continual operation and future
development of the Group.

186 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(B) SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

The total amount of the funds contributed to the Scheme
by the Company shall not exceed HK$750,000,000 and the
board of directors of the Company ("Board”) shall at its
absolute discretions to determine the amount of fund
contributed to the Share Award Scheme for each financial
year of the Company.

The Company shall not make any further grant of award
which will result in the aggregate number of Shares
underlying all grants made pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme (excluding award shares that have been forfeited in
accordance with the Share Award Scheme) to exceed 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company without
shareholders’ approval. The total number of non-vested
award shares granted to a selected participant under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of issued shares at all time.

During the year, no ordinary shares of the Group on the
Stock Exchange were purchased for the Share Award
Scheme (2019: 22,991,000 ordinary shares). No shares have
been awarded under the Share Award Scheme since the
adoption.

ire MR MR

36. URBAEBRNZ @

(B) Rin&REE (8
ARBHZTEAHENECRBNG
38 750,000,000/8 7T * MARGIESE
e((EFe ) B2ERNBETALRT
EEMBFEEHRDERAELEN

Bee® -

A A RAR R AR 0 BB =1 &1 9% H # P
BB (T RIERIERD =R &
EOR M SRR A 1) 48 B R IB AR A A
BTN 5% BRERRHLE - BY
TRBEOEMER - 5REE2HE
AR B Bt 22D 5t 81 AT AR B0 1) K B3
BEBEOEE TEEETHE®R
TR AN AR ZREN 1% o

FRAEERERBIMEE LR
B& B R B D 22 B 5 31(20194F
22,991,000 % & @A) o N R B RN
READ S2Eh T 2 DA 2K - WEEAR IR IR (5 88
BhaT SII% AR -
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KRE MR

37. BUSINESS COMBINATION 37. EH A6
During the year, the Group entered into sale and purchase FRN - AEEFVEE R WELATAA
agreements to acquire equity interests in the following IR ARE S
companies:

Percentage Consideration

Acquisition date Company name of share RMB Principal activities
RE
WiE B A AR HELER AR®E FEXK
29 July 2020 Guangdong Jinying 65% 8,126,000  Cultivation of flowers
and plants
202047 A29 A ERER 65% 8,126,000 TEHEIESRIEY)
7 October 2020 Snow Pte. Ltd. 100% 19,908,000" Trading
2020610 A7H Snow Pte. Ltd. 100% 19,908,000 & 5
27 November 2020  Guangdong Lingsheng 55% 39,117,000  Provision of construction,
Prefabricated Building installation and other
Technology Co., Ltd.* related service
(“Guangdong Lingsheng”)
202011 A27 R EREBRKEAZERE 55% 39,117,000 RS - LR L HAMAR
BRAR([ERERE]) AR %5
30 November 2020  Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. 70% 54,513,0009 Manufacture and sale of
plastic pipes
2020411 A 30H Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. 70% 54,513,000% 2 R HEBRE R
The above acquisitions allow the Group to further diversify its IR B R AN SR (B — SRR AR
businesses.
Note: BeE
O] The total consideration to acquire Snow Pte. Ltd. amounted to SGD4,046,000 m U & Snow Pte. Ltd. &9 48 X {8 73 4,046,000 57 hi 3%
(approximately equivalent to RMB19,908,000). TC(HIHEE R AR 19,908,0007T) °
2 The total consideration to acquire Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. amounted to @ 2l Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. 8 {{E /33,715,000
MYR33,715,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB54,513,000). BARAE < E (KIEE R AR 54,513,0007T) ©
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KRB HRARM

37. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 37. ¥ & 6tum

WU B - A EEIKE LA A TR RIE
ERABNARBENT :

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
above companies acquired at the dates of acquisitions assumed
by the Group are as follows:

Guangdong

Snow Guangdong Spirolite (M)
Pte Ltd. Sdn. Bhd. Total
Snow Spirolite (M)
Pte Ltd. Sdn. Bhd. #st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT AR®TR

Jinying Lingsheng

EREH
RMB'000

ARBT R

RRAER
RMB’000
ARBTR

Property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% - BB K& & 571 765 131,228 5,696 138,260
Right-of-use assets EREEE - - 37,200 27,81 65,011
Other intangible assets Hin\mp A 1,579 84 11,305 36,713 49,681
Inventories A= 5,688 9,656 109,959 6,447 131,750
Contract assets AHEE - - 1,567 - 1,567
Trade and bills receivables B OREFERER 580 16,342 25,532 9,365 51,819
Prepayments, deposits and BT ReREM

other receivables FEW R IE 632 2,234 41,738 3,133 47,737
Cash and bank deposits Re RIBITIFR 1,788 3914 3,765 11,554 21,021
Contract liabilities X O)=V (94) (224) - - (318)
Trade and bills payables EIHRNTERER - (2,056) (70,504) (4,621) (77,181)
Other payables and accruals HibENFIERETER (904) (5,228) (40,281) (3591 (50,004)
Borrowings — current g — m® - - (70,000) - (70,000)
Borrowings — non-current B — IR - - (110,389 - (110,389)
Deferred income RN (1) - - - (51)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHERE - - - (16,615) (16,615)
Total identifiable net assets AHERNEEFERRE

at fair value (RAREHE) 9,789 25,487 71,120 75,892 182,288
Non-controlling interests It (3,426) - (32,003) (22,768) (58,197)
Gooduwill arising on acquisitions ~ WEEEEHIEE 1,763 - - 1,389 3,152
Gain from bargain purchase REEEERERA

recognised in other revenue, HAA - g

income and gains in the KA

consolidated statement of FZEWERS

profit or loss Flg - (5,579 - - (5,579)
Total consideration satisfied by: S {HR{B4%E

Cash e 8,126 19,908 19,559 49,102 96,695

Other payables HAn e300 - - 19,558 - 19,558

Other financial liabilities Hihemas

(note 31) (BI7E31) - - - 541 5411
8,126 19,908 39,117 54,513 121,664
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 37. ¥BE6tum
Acquisition-related costs incurred in relation to the above IR S E E MW R A A N E R K
acquisition are insignificant and have been excluded from the ERGIR HWEBR AR Z 5N - BERFRER
cost of acquisition and have been recognised directly as expense REFI W AEBZA [EMmEX IR -

for the year and are included in "other expenses” in profit or loss.

The aggregate fair values of the trade and bills receivables and RUEE B - & 5B URGRTE & 45 F1 E b Uk
other receivables at the date of acquisition amounted to TENAALABERAEZES N AARIE
RMB51,819,000 and RMB47,737,000 respectively, which 51,819,000 7T K A R #47,737,0007T + B2 A
approximate to the gross contractual amounts of the EEWEZSHELSNEN e BEER
corresponding balances acquired by the Group. At the dates of EoRWER EIRERABBERIKEAN
acquisitions, management considered that the contractual cash SHBRERELTEK

flows not expected to be collected were insignificant.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible BEHAEENE TEEEROFELD
for income tax purposes. A HOFR o
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as BREAZWENIESREDTWOT :
follows:
RMB'000
AREFTT
Cash consideration paid ENBEERE 96,695
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired W BEREReRBEEED (21,021)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents KEESHRENRE LIRS
included in investing activities ZEEBYIRLFRE 75,674
Since the acquisitions, these subsidiaries contributed BUEELAR - ZEHMB AR AEREBIRAR
RMB64,927,000 to the Group's revenue and recognised a profit BIA R 64,927,0007T » R AFE BT
of RMB594,000 in profit or loss for the year. PHER)% M A R ¥ 594,000 7T °
Had the combinations taken place at the beginning of the year, Wz A HRFINET  AEERANFENHK
the Group's revenue and profit for the year would have been A Kas M 8 9 BII3E 0 A R ¥ 218,463,000 7T
increased by RMB218,463,000 and RMB395,000, respectively. B A REE 395,0007T °
38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. WARAE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any RBERAR  AEBVEEMERIAEE
significant contingent liabilities (2019: Nil). (20194 : 48) -
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AR A M SRR

39. COMMITMENTS 39. AiE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of RIREHIR  REEEAR LT EARNKIE
the reporting period:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETT
Contracted, but not provided for: ERTAVE M AR B -
Property, plant and equipment and M -~ BB MEREBMN
investment properties LB E 2,404,045 738,811
Investment in a joint venture R—HEEELENTE - 23,520
2,404,045 762,331
40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 40. BABEAN £ 5 R 48R
BALANCES
(A) THE GROUP'S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS (A) FRAEEHEBEBALTHERR
WITH RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR 2
2020 2019
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
s AR¥T T ARETFT
Connected transactions HERS
Transactions with companies under RZBHRST I EE
the common control of a director: THIM R EIRRZ S
Sales of goods, services, utilities HESM R AAEXE
and others N E At @i 12,502 22,127
Rental income MW= (ii)! 6 -
Rental expenses iz Aba (iii)* 4,056 4,047
Purchase of materials EREEM B (iv)* 17,014 8,424
Purchase of machinery and/or AR R
equipment iR v) 148,208 114,170
Purchase of electronic accessories REE TR (v)* 1,893 109
Purchase of other intangible assets ~ #REEH M\ EE (v)* 129 553
Hotel expenses B IEE A (vi)* 2,236 3,169
Acquisition cost for Guangdong FE R AR 2 W
Lingsheng B AN (vii) 39,117 -
Rental expenses paid to directors MEELMMEEAX (viii)* 159 1,839
Non-connected transactions FBEERS
Purchase of goods and/or SR EREE R R
equipment from associates SRR (ix) 188,352 168,485
Design and maintenance services &2 ERERRT N
from a joint venture HEIEBR 5 x) 3,600 3,600
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AR R MR

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(A) THE GROUP'S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS
WITH RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR
(Continued)

Note:

@

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Sale of goods, services and others to related companies were made
with reference to the prices and conditions offered by the Group to
third-party customers. Utilities were provided by related companies

at cost.

Rental income from related parties were made with reference to the
prices and conditions offered by the Group to the third-party

customers.

Rental expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

Purchase of materials from related companies were made based on
mutually agreed terms.

Purchase of machinery, equipment, electronic accessories and other
intangible assets from related companies were made with reference
to the prices and conditions offered by the related companies to
their third-party customers.

Hotel expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

The consideration was determined after arm’s length negotiation
with reference to (i) the appraised value of the total equity interest in
Guangdong Lingsheng as at 30 September 2020, amounting to
RMB71,119,000, as set out in the valuation report prepared by Foshan
Dingxing Asset Appraisal Firm, an independent asset appraisal firm,
and (i) the proportion of equity interest being acquired by the Group
under the acquisition. For details, please refer to the Company's
announcement on connected transaction in relation to the acquisition
of Guangdong Lingsheng dated 5 and 6 November 2020.

Properties including office premises, cafeteria, workshops,
warehouses and yacht were leased to the Group based on mutually

agreed terms.

Purchase of goods and equipment from associates were made on
normal commercial terms negotiated on an arm’s length basis by the

parties with reference to the prevailing market prices.

Services were provided by a joint venture based on mutually agreed

terms.

These related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules but are exempted from complying with the disclosure

requirements under the Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (Continued)

(B) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARITIES (B)

ire MR MR

40. A TR Z REGSHR @

ERRANE A T HYAERR

2020
RMB’'000

2019
RMB'000
ARETTE

Note
{h=a AR¥T

Balances with companies under REBHRAZ —UES
the common control of a director THIE A BB KRR
arising from: ’E :
Deposits paid for the purchases BEMER R E
of machinery and/or equipment FIX RS 0) 128,056 109,205
Purchase of machinery and/or PRAEMEEE N B
equipment %&Lfﬁ (ii) 42,844 50,033
Sales of module, utilities HEBRR AHAEER
and others HA (iif) 8,551 -
Balances with associates arising from: B’\H%%E\ AR S
Purchase of goods and/or BEEEmN 5
equipment ?&Lﬁ (ii) 93,312 36,598
Note: fiET -
(i) The balances are included in the Group’s deposits paid for the (i) EHTARNEEEE LM ME - BER

purchase of land, property, plant and equipment.

REAXEIRE -

(i) The balances are included in the Group's trade payables and other (i) ERETAREBNE SN FIEME R
payables and accruals. NHRIBREAER -
(i) The balances are included in the Group's trade receivables and other (iii) HEHFTAREENE F R IAME A FE
receivables. Wk o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRE MR

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 40. BB N £ R 5 R &R (80)

BALANCES (Continued)

(C) COMMITMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES (C) EEBAEE A L HAFESBIE
Certain of the Group's subsidiaries have entered into lease AEBETHEBRARABHEMEEL
agreements with a director and a company under the ERBE-ZEER—HART
common control of a director to lease properties for EFEFINRREIVEHERZE U A
operations, and sale and purchase agreements with a BEMELR R EEEERSE —
company under the common control of a director to AR —UEEEHHORRILE
purchase machinery and/or equipment for production. The B o AR 100,619,000t (2019
capital commitments of RMB100,619,000 (2019: F: ARM115,013,0007T) H) & A &
RMB115,013,000) have been included in note 39 to the ERSNRAMBEHRRMEI? -

consolidated financial statements.

(D) COMPENSATION OF THE GROUP’S KEY (D) XEBEFXEEE ASHM
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The remuneration of the Company’s directors and the ARREEZEREREERENIGNOT

senior management was as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Short-term employee benefits RHEERA 20,004 19,971
Post-employment benefits RIREEH 258 253
20,262 20,224
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BB M

41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 41.
INSTRUMENTS

EMITENAAEENE

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) &I AEEH

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RI|ERR FEERTANERE
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as m
follows:

Note
Bt =E

2020
RMB’'000

ARBT R

2019
RMB'000
ARETTE

Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: RS B BE 2 B B -
Loans receivables eI &R 20 1,014,650 376,286
Contract assets BB E 23 547,952 361,014
Trade and bills receivables oW IE R EE 24 3,850,194 3,259,456
Financial assets included in ST AE A IR IR AY
other receivables PEAE 166,551 138,299
Other long-term receivables H b K HA e W FR0A 21 21,985 4,093
Cash and bank deposits Re RIETER 26 7,447,436 7,604,221
13,048,768 11,743,369
Financial assets at BT BB AR M E K m
FVTOCI: BE A E
Debt instruments at BARBEFAHLMEZE K
FVTOCI WESIA 19 54,639 564,933
Equity instruments at BRARBE AEMEEK S
FVTOCI IR AR T A 19 1,890,415 1,136,280
1,945,054 1,701,213
Financial assets at BATEBEET A B
FVTPL: EHEE -
Equity instruments at BRARBEAEED
FVTPL xR T HE 19 742,137 56,344
Funds at FVTPL AR BESFABENES 19 18,730 21,926
760,867 78,270
15,754,689 13,522,852
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Are SRR T

41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 41. ¢ TEWNARABHENHE @)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A)
(Continued)

i

TR T BRI ()

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Financial liabilities TRBeE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: & #E#5K NI BEH < G B &
Trade and bills payables BIEMNTIBLEE 27 5,678,208 5,829,534
Financial liabilities included in =A< B K st
other payables and accruals ERNsRAaE 28 871,037 990,615
Borrowings =R 29 15,446,485 12,678,380
Convertible loans A AR E X 30 627,362 652,595
Lease liabilities HEAE 13B 162,316 206,124
Other long-term payables Hth & HAfE T 5/I8 16,953 106,093
22,802,361 20,463,341
Financial liabilities at AT EBEETABZAY
FVTPL: ZEERE
Other financial liabilities HEthemBaE 31 81,226 14,360
22,883,587 20,477,701
(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B) BAAEBEIENEMIANA

THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of financial instruments together with a

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at the end of the
reporting period:

REE

AT RitBEBRe TAKENE

KTT&E%@EJJ\%@F B[R EEHRE
DITROBEE

Significant Sensitivity of fair value to
Valuation technique unobservable input the input
ERRUER AREBEEHGARE
fHER % BAHE HEBE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI  Net asset value approach Net asset values N/A
BRAREBEFAAGEZEKE BEFEE BEFE TER
HRATA
Recent transaction approach Recent transaction prices N/A
R F% R HER TER
Funds at FVTPL Net fund value approach Net asset values of the funds, ~ N/A
BRAREBEAAEENES EEFEE determined with reference  EA

to observable (quoted)
prices of underlying
investment portfolio

EeMBEFE(E2ZAH

REEANIER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(B)

THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

(Continued)

iR e B g R MR

41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 41. €T AW A ABELTE @®

RAABENSENERMIANR
J‘ME{E("E)

Sensitivity of fair value to
the input

DABEBEAYE
HEBRE

Equity instruments at FVTPL
BAREER AR
BRATA

Other financial liabilities

Hioeraf

Significant
Valuation technique unobservable input
EXATABER
fRER* BARIE
Black-Scholes model and Discount rate of 18.5%
discounted cash flow model 18.5% A IR &

R —HFRMEERERES

e e
TEER

Discount rate of 12.0%
12.0% 8L 3R %

Monte Carlo method and
discounted cash flow model

SEREDELSRRSRERE

Monte Carlo method
SRRERE 50%
50% AR 7N B 18 R B)

The discount for lack of marketability represents the

amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the

Group that market participants would take into account

when pricing the investments.

Equity price fluctuation rate of

1% increase in discount rate would
result in decrease in fair value by
RMB2,882,000

BB FH1% BEB AR EERD
AR 2,882,0007C

1% decrease in discount rate would
result in increase in fair value by

RMB3,536,000
BRRR T 1% BEB AR EGEILM
AR 3,536,0007T

b increase in discount rate wou
1% d trat Id
result in increase in 